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Notification of General Meeting
Notification of General Meeting

Time and location:

The Annual General Meeting (AGM) of Catena
AB (publ) will be held on Wednesday, 27 April,
at 16:00 p.m. at the IVA Conference Centre,
Grev Turegatan 16 in Stockholm, Sweden.

Entitlement to participate

To be entitled to participate at the AGM, share-
holders must be registered in the share register
maintained by Euroclear Sweden AB not later than
21 April. Shareholders who have registered their
shares with a trustee must have temporarily re-
registered the shares under their own name not later
than the above date. Any such registration should
be requested in good time ahead of the AGM at the
party holding the shares in trust.

Registration

Notification of participation in the AGM must be
made not later than 21 April at 14:00 p.m. by e-mail
to ulrika.holmer@catenafastigheter.se. Notification
can also be provided by telephone on +46 (0)730
70 22 46 or by letter to Catena AB (publ), General
Meeting, Box 5003, SE-250 05 Helsingborg, Swe-
den. In the notification, shareholders should provide
their name, personal identity number/corporate
registration number, address, telephone number,
any assistants and the number of shares. Any prox-
ies should be made in writing and submitted not
later than at the AGM. Proxy forms are available at
www.catenafastigheter.se and at the head office in
Helsingborg. These will also be sent to shareholders
on request. It is advantageous for any participant
planning to attend with the support of a proxy,
certificate of incorporation or other certificates of

authorisation to submit such documentation in good
time ahead of the AGM to Catena AB.

The picture above and on the cover shows Catena’s new

facade concept, which was developed during the year.
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Goods flows that
generate cash flows

Catena has a clear business model with a streamlined offering based
on strategically located and attractive logistics properties that generate
stable cash flows. The company’s vision is to link Scandinavia’s cargo
flows by developing logistics facilities that are efficient in terms of cost
and the environment and that are able to supply growing Scandinavian
metropolitan regions with goods.

Katrineholm, Orebro, Norrkdping, Jonkdping, Nissjo,
Borés, Gothenburg and Angelholm. This gives Catena
favourable opportunities to grow.

Sustainably and through partnerships, Catena
develops efficient logistics facilities that serve the
metropolitan regions of Scandinavia.

In Sweden, with its substantial distances, transport effi- » Read more about the projects on pages 22-23.

155

ciency is an important factor in companies’ profitability.
Catena offers leasing of facilities that are efficient in

terms of cost and the environment to logistics, trading and
manufacturing companies. The properties are strategically
located along major transport routes or adjacent to popu-
lation centres. They are specially adapted to their primary
task: transshipment, storage or distribution. At the same
time, they meet stricter new requirements to reduce envi-
ronmental impact imposed by the climate challenge.

» Read more about the offering on pages 20-21.

An attractive project portfolio of logistics locations
with potential for development.
By means of extensive studies and analyses, Catena has a
good picture of Scandinavia’s cargo flows. That knowl-
edge provides the basis for Catena’s investments in both
existing premises and future projects. It is a prerequisite
for successful property management while generating
increased property values.

Catena’s extensive project portfolio, with its own
land, options and development rights, includes two
large partly owned objects in Malmé and Helsing-
borg, each with a developable area of 270,000 square
metres. The portfolio also includes other development
projects in attractive locations, including Stockholm,

2

logistics properties

817,000

sqg. m. logistics space

SEK 5 1 2,000 thousand

rental value
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A leading market position.
Since the inception of the modern Catena, the company has been a leader in
logistics properties. Following the acquisition of Tribona that has been initiat-
ed, Catena will be the largest real estate company in logistics in Sweden with
more than 90 properties and a combined property area of more than 1,500,000
square metres. This will provide Catena with cost and revenue synergies
and will broaden Catena’s customer portfolio. Among other things, this
strengthens the company’s position in food which is a prioritised sector.
» Read more about the acquisition of Tribona on pages 24-25.

Improvements in profitability, demonstrating

o that Catena’s business model works well.
50 /ﬂ' CASH FLOW In recent years, Catena has been able to report continuously improved profit
from property management, which consists of the company’s cash flow
from operations. This corresponds to about half of Catena’s rental revenue.

» Read more about the financial results on pages 45-48 and 66-71.

A clear and realisable growth vision with

well-defined and implemented strategies.

To expand its property portfolio and generate continued favourable cash
flow, making it possible both to develop activities and generate returns to
shareholders, Catena applies four well-defined strategies for clients and
markets, property development, sustainability, and finance.

» Read more about the strategies work on pages 16-17.

Total return on the share: The trend for Catena’s share is stable.

o The total return on the share, that is, share price per-
12.3%

formance plus dividends, amounted to 12.3 percent.

» Read more about the share on pages 62-63.
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Catena continued to grow

Efficient and expanding property management generated favourable cash flow
over the year. The divestment of the "Haga Norra” project properties stream-
lined the operations and further strengthened Catena’s financial position. This
allowed the acquisition of a number of attractive logistics properties and the
bid for Tribona, which was completed in January 2016. Moving forward, this
also permits continued expansion, particularly through project development.

Change, Theyearin brief

Ke:y data . 2015 | 2014 %+ Rental income increased primarily due to the acquired
Fair value of the properties, SEK m 5,340.3 5,750.9 -7.1 . . . . .

i properties, completed projects and an increase in net leasing
Loan-to-value ratio, % 70.3 60.1 17.0 of 7.6 vercent to SEK 464.2 million
Lettable area, thousand sq.m. 816.8 753.1 8.5 ’ p . ) .
Letting ratio, % 95.5 95.8 .03 * The fair value of the properties decreased, despite several
Rental income, SEK m 4642 4313 7.6 new acquisitions, by 7.1 percent to SEK 5,340.3 million
Net operating surplus, SEK m 3513 3257 7.9 as a result of the divestments that were made.
Surplus ratio, % 75.7 75.5 0.3 -« The operating surplus increased as a result of increased
Profit from property leasing and efficiency enhancements of 7.9 percent to
management, SEK m ' 259.3 204.9 26.6 SEK 351.3 million.
Cash flow from operational . .
activities, SEK m 241.5 204.8 17.9 ¢ Profit from property management, which basically rep-
Pre-tax profit, SEK m 590.3 = 440.3 34.1 resents the operating cash flow, increased by 26.6 percent
Interest-coverage ratio, % 4.8 3.1 54.8 to SEK 259.3 million as a consequence of the improved
Return on equity, % 25.6 19.0 34.7 operating surplus and relatively lower financial expenses.
Return on equity, % 10.5 123 -14.6 . Cash flow before changes in working capital increased by
IEqu'tY: assets ratio, % 357 324 102 17.9 percent to SEK 241.5 million (204.8), primarily as a

rofit from property :

management per share, SEK 10.11 8.02 26.1 result of the improved profit from property management.
Earning per share, SEK 22239  13.49 65.2 * Profit after tax for the year rose by 66.0 percent to SEK 571.5
Dividend per share, SEK 3.00? 3.00 0.0 million (344.2). Changes in the value of properties are in-
Net asset value per share, cluded in the amount of SEK 300.5 million (386.0) and in the
EPRA NAV, SEK 115.00 96.60  19.1  yalye of derivatives by SEK 30.5 million (negative 150.6).
Share performance over . -
the year, % 9.5 58 63.8 ° Earnings per share before dilution rose by 65 percent to

SEK 22.29 (13.49).
* The Board of Directors proposes a total dividend of SEK

1) According to the proposal by the Board of Directors and the CEO.

» See also the multi-year overview on page 114.

In the Annual Report’s consolidated financial tables and diagrams, Catena
reports financial data for a maximum of four years, that is, from Catena AB’s
acquisition of Brinova Logistik on 30 September 2013, plus the comparison
year 2012.

99.7 million (76.9), equivalent to 98.6 percent of the divi-
dend policy, 50 percent of profit from property management
excluding standard tax, meaning SEK 3.00 per share (3.00)
following the rights issue.

Property portfolio Profit from property management and cash

development New tenancies/vacancies Rental income flow before changes in working capital
SEK m SEK m SEK m SEKm SEK m
6,000 120 500 300 300
80 400
4,000 40 200 200
300
0
200
2,000 -40 100 100
-80 100
0 e ——— -120 ) e—————— 0 m— )
-12 -13 -14 -15 -2 -13 -14 -15 -12 -13 -14 -15 -12 -13 -14 -15
N In Profit from property management
H Out B Cash flow before change in working capital

B Net



Significant events during the year of operations
Catena’s project properties at “‘Haga Norra” in Solna, out-
side Stockholm, were divested, with Catena relinquishing
possession on 23 June. The sale generated a pre-tax gain
in 2015 for Catena of about SEK 100 million after trans-
action costs. On the whole, the divestment strengthens the
balance sheet and provides a liquidity contribution over
time of nearly SEK 1 billion, providing a good foundation
for Catena’s continued expansion in logistics properties.

During the year, Catena divested two other complet-
ed properties that are not strategically prioritised, with a
total area of 1,450 square metres. The total property value
amounted to SEK 7.5 million.

To strengthen its positions and expand its customer base,
Catena acquired 11 properties with a total area of some
106,000 square metres. The total property value amounted
to SEK 571.7 million.

Catena AB, acquired all of Klovern AB’s shares in
Tribona AB. At the same time, the company issued a
public takeover bid to the other shareholders in Tribona to
acquire all remaining shares outstanding in Tribona.
Following the subscription period, Catena’s holding in

Tribona amounted to 94.5 percent of the shares.

Through the acquisition of Tribona, Catena becomes not
only the leader in its segment but also the largest player.
Additionally, Catena strengthens its positions in the prior-
itised food sector, for example.

» Read more about Catena’s important events on pages 56-57.
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The divestment of “Haga Norra” in Solna
strengthens Catena’s financial capacity.

Vindtunneln 2 in Bords - one of the year's acquisitions.

Equity and return
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ICA - one of Tribona’s customers.
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From cargo flows
to cash flow for expansion

As I summarise the modern Catena’s second full year of
operation, I derive a certain satisfaction from what we
have achieved so far. Thanks to active customer care and
consistent market processing, we reported clear growth
in both rental income and operating profit for the year.
Despite a number of newly acquired spaces, we can report
a letting ratio of 96 percent. This means we need to con-
tinue increasing our space to be an interesting partner for
both existing and new customers. [ am also pleased that
we have managed to concentrate our operations. We have
responsibly divested a number of properties that we no
longer deem to be strategic. These included Pripps’ for-
mer premises, the Hogsbo 21:2 property in Gothenburg.
This strengthens our cash position by approximately
SEK 220 million as of January, 2016. Above all, however,
we have streamlined our operations through the sale of the
project properties in Solna. Over time, this gives us a li-
quidity surplus of nearly SEK 1 billion that we can use to
continue developing our logistics business. Accordingly,
in our second year of operation, we have already fulfilled
our objective of becoming a streamlined logistics property
company and Sweden’s leading company in this area, able
to focus on its vision: to link Scandinavia’s cargo flows.
Over the year, our cash flow from operational activi-
ties rose by 17.9 percent. Combined with a strong balance
sheet, this provides us with opportunities to generate
shareholder value through dividend payments and reduced
indebtedness. But, above all, through investments in con-
tinued expansion. During the year, we acquired a number
of well-situated properties that complement our customer

offering and
broaden our
customer base.
Through the ac-
quisition of Tri-
bona, which we
finalised after the
end of the year,

Business development
we can establish

ourselves more quickly in a prioritised segment for us

— food, which involves close and frequent contacts with
consumers. This is central to our development of what is
called “last mile distribution”. The acquisition of Tribona
also doubles our size. This allows us to realise additional
economies of scale in our management. Even following
the Tribona acquisition, our debt/equity ratio remains
reasonable at a multiple of two. Naturally, our ambition is
to gradually reduce our loan-to-value ratio and strengthen
our balance sheet.

As a result of our rapid but balanced expansion of the
property portfolio, another priority was somewhat ne-
glected over the year: to expand the operations in indus-
trial terms. During the year, we did, nonetheless, pursue
construction projects, both in Sunnané outside Malmo and
in Katrineholm. Going forward, we will further prioritise
acquisitions of development projects and developable
land ahead of existing logistics premises.To lead the
development of the logistics sector while developing our
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own business from a property perspective, we have two
principal areas of expansion: Strategically located rational
terminals and city logistics, that is, terminal and ware-
housing positions directly adjacent to our metropolitan
regions. Our investments in e-commerce logistics can also
be viewed against this background.

The challenge lies mainly in gaining access to the right
locations for the specific task. As a community builder,
we maintain frequent contacts with municipalities and
other parties to safeguard society’s cargo flows efficiently
in terms of cost and the environment. For the benefit our
community, customers, shareholders and all other stake-
holders, to thereby be able to develop attractive logistics
facilities along the country’s transport routes and around
city centres, close to final consumers who increasingly
rely on e-commerce. We have good human and financial
resources to be able to achieve that.

From cargo flows, we can generate cash flow allowing
us to build new types of logistics positions and to estab-
lish Catena as Scandinavia’s leading property company
in the logistics sector. An exciting challenge that we at
Catena are well equipped to meet.

Solna, March 2016

Gustaf Hermelin, CEO
gustaf.hermelin@catenafastigheter.se
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Three trends -

Smarter, Better and Faster

The trend for smarter, better and faster logistics is driven by the requirements
of industry and commerce. Industry seeks to reduce its inventory to reduce
costs and working capital. More expensive city-centre locations mean that
centrally located shops are reducing their storage capacity. Combined with
rapidly growing e-commerce, this demands smaller, more frequent, cost-
efficient, environmentally friendly deliveries, which in turn imposes fresh
requirements on new, customised logistics premises.

Following recent years’ focus

w on efficient production, which has

also driven the outsourcing trend, interest is
increasing in distribution and logistics, where the mar-
ginal benefit on the investment made could conceivably
be higher. The highest marginal benefit can probably be
derived from what is usually called “last mile logistics”.
Today, transporting a container from China to Sweden
and transporting it to an urban area within the country is
relatively simple. It is only when the container is opened
and the goods are to be distributed in different directions
— to warehouses, shops or direct to consumers, that the
number of traffic movements, and thus the cost, escalates.

LOGISTICS SYSTEMS FOR CURRENT TRENDS

The requirements for smarter, better and faster logistics
demand well-developed logistics system with optimal-

ly designed and strategically placed national terminals
and warehouses. These are complemented by local
distribution warehouses, equipped for all kinds of cargo
and located close to urban centres. Premises that meet
customer requirements for sustainable development, not
only in terms of transport but also ventilation, heating and
lighting. All to reduce energy consumption and thus the
environmental impact.

Close to customers

Deliveries to the final consumer require logistics hubs lo-
cated close to customers, in new locations on the outskirts
of urban areas or in the centre. From there, cargo and

Increasingly, both con-

w sumers and industry demand

that their goods be delivered as planned,
at specified times suitable for them. With sustainability
growing in importance, particular demands are imposed
in terms of environmentally efficient distribution.

goods, can be distributed as needed to industrial custom-
ers, shops or direct to consumers using electric vehicles or
bicycles, which will also be possible for larger goods, as
cities become better adapted to bicycle traffic. Or goods
will be collected by the end customer.

Efficient

Efficient distribution is based on the strategic location of
terminals and logistics warehouses, near the main trans-
port routes, where large volumes of cargo and goods can

be stored and managed efficiently, or adjacent to industrial
facilities, which often outsource parts of their production

to specialised global producers. Here, goods and cargo

can be stored flexibly for shorter or longer periods. To

then be transported directly to the end user, or via >
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- -
Log Istlk Logistics Trends in 2015 - e-commerce
theme

As a leading company in logistics properties,

Smarter, Better, Faster! Catena monitors, analyses and debates current
logistics trends in various ways. This provides insights that
are valuable in designing the company’s logistics facili-
ties, which are expected to function for 30 and perhaps
up to 50 years. At the 2015 “Logistics Trends” event, 150
participants listened to some 15 speakers and discussed
the future of logistics, which are expected to grow smarter,
better and faster.
» See more from Logistics Day 2015 at www.catenafastigheter.se

Customers do not want to
wait. In some countries, consum-

ers can already receive their goods on the - - . 4,
same day they placed their order. Industry imposes the . ' f i | l o ‘ ‘E
11
same demands in terms of time and precision for its More than 150 participants who all share an interest in logistics
. . gathered for the fifth time at the Dunkers Cultural Centre in
supplies of components, input goods and spare parts, Helsinghogl

to thus reduce lead times. Not only do shorter lead times
reduce industry’s costs for capital, management and
obsolescence, etc., they also enhance service and
convenience for the end consumer.

-

flexible distribution warehouses equipped for the efficient

Gustaf Hermelin and Paul Kleiby from Catena discuss how
the company is building logistics facilities for the future.

picking and packing of goods from different suppliers.
Facilities built in suitable but central locations. For
example, underground, adjacent to parking facilities.

Cooperation i " Catharina Elmséter-
Smarter, better and faster logistics are also based on Sv o
gy structure minister
efficient terminals, where goods can be redirected on the and now a Board
. . . . . - Member of Catena
same day. This makes it possible to exploit the advantages 1'Iy AB, among other

positions, talked

of mixed-load container shipments of large, global vol- i

umes of both consumer and industrial goods. Advantages
that can be increased through coordination between differ-
ent actors and the increased use of third-party companies, .

Gustaf Hermelin, CEO

able to improve efficiency.
P Y gustaf.hermelin@catenafastigheter.se




Vindtunneln 2, Boras.
A logistics warehouse slightly more than 16,000
square metres in a highly favourable location near
nationalroute 40. The property is adjacent to
Catena’s other property in the area and fits into the
company’s portfolio well.

The warehouse is leased by NTG Logistics AB,
whose co-owner Stefan Pettersson explains the
choice of location:

proximity to the port of Gothen-

burg and Gothenburg Airport.
In addition, the property is designed in
a way that benefits our internal flows
with portals/load houses in three direc-
tions of the compass. This makes it
extremely flexible and reduces our
internal lead times.

, We chose the property for its
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Business model

Catena is a leading property company in logistics, offering companies and
third-party operators customised, cost-efficient and sustainable logistics
facilities. Facilities located in strategic positions connected with the country’s
cargo flows or urban areas. In this way, the company generates strong cash
flow, enabling both stable development of operations and an attractive return
for shareholders.

VISION

: BLISINESS
STRATEGIES CONCEPT

OVERALL PROPERTY
OBJECTIVE DEVELOPMENT

MANAGEMENT

Catena links Scandinavia's cargo flows. Catenashall sustainably and through
Today, flows of goods to and from Scan- partnerships develop efficient logis-
dinavia make use of maritime and air BUSINESS tics facilities that serve the metro-

transport, rail and road, individually or in CONCEPT politan regions of Scandinavia.
In Sweden, with its substantial distances,
transport efficiency constitutes an im-

combination, to collect and store goods at
selected logistics points, from which goods

can be re-distributed to shops and/or end users. At portant factor in companies’ profitability. At
these locations, from which the metropolitan regions of the same time, the challenges faced in terms of climate
Scandinavia can also easily be reached, Catena continues change impose stricter new demands on reducing the
to develop modern and well-suited logistics facilities. environmental impact of transport. Catena offers premises

solutions that provide benefits in terms of both costs and
the environment, along designated green corridors
adjacent to key transport routes and hubs.
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Active property development generates
value while also being a prerequisite

PROPERTY f ful ,
(o alec =g lorsuccesstul management. Catena’s

property development begins with an
acquisition or an option to acquire and
develop well-located properties that can
provide benefit in terms of cost and the environment.

Strategic locations

Through extensive studies and analyses, Catena has a
good understanding of where in Scandinavia goods from
different parts of the world arrive and how they are re-
distributed. This knowledge forms the basis for Catena’s
investments in land and development properties. To be
able to continue identifying the best locations, which is
crucial for logistics properties, Catena continues to map
Scandinavia’s national and local cargo flows in different
ways. In these efforts Scandinavia’s container terminals
are central because they handle all modes of transport.

Development of the property portfolio
New purchasing patterns, cargo flows and other devel-
opments in society mean that, as time passes, logistics

properties become better suited to other purposes. Catena

divests these to a responsible buyer thus generating
resources for new acquisitions. Over the year, Catena
acquired a number of well-situated modern logistics fa-

City logistics

Catena usually establishes city logistics locations and
distribution warehouses on the outskirts of population
centres when the detailed development plan is complete.
In this way, the development process can be focused on
solutions to further enhance the tenant’s earnings and
environmental performance.

Improvement

Individual properties and buildings are improved. Occa-
sionally, particularly when it comes to capital or energy
efficiency, Catena initiates improvements itself, and
sometimes in coordination with an existing or new tenant.
A current example is the Hogsbo 21:2 property in Gothen-
burg, which, starting this year, will, among other things,
be equipped with 800 square metres of solar cells on the
roof, which is fully in line with the company’s ambition to
become self-sufficient in energy.

» Read more about Catena’s projects on pages 22-23.

cilities with good cash flows, thus increasing its property

volume more rapidly, establishing new locations or broad-
ening the customer base. However, development projects
and land acquisition are prioritised since they afford the
company greater flexibility in designing a logistics lo-
cation or property with the optimum logistics solution

for its purpose.

Terminals

Not infrequently, the first building in a logistics
location is a terminal from which a large number
of companies can distribute their products to end
users via logistics warehouses and distribution
centres. At some of the company’s logistics
locations, customers are offered container ter-
minals, where several modes of transport con-
verge. In the future, these will become increas- P
ingly important, not least due to reasons of cost

and the environment, even though a large part P
of current transports are still made by road.

Property development is a long process that

may originate in comprehensive and detailed

planning. Some projects are conducted in partnership with
others. This allows Catena’s project portfolio to grow in a

Kd
@ Catena’s logistics locations
\ -

Logistics locations along key transport routes
Catena’s properties are well-situated along Sweden'’s key transport routes,

capital—efﬁcient manner for the company. atan optimum distance from the country’s major population centres.
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b

Although Catena acquired a number of attractive logistics properties in
2015, the company prioritises proprietary development. During the year,
the company completed, among other things, a terminal for DHL at the
Sunnand property adjacent to the E20 motorway just outside Malmé, which
it co-owns with Peab. The 16,940 square-metre property has 85 doors,
making it possible to re-load large quantities of goods on the same day.

i
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On its own or in partnership, Catena’s
main business is managing strategi-
cally located logistics properties that
generate continuous stable cash flows.

In addition to earnings trends, cash flow
is driven by the short amortisation periods

typical of investments in logistics properties.

Theright location
Catena’s terminals and logistics warehouses are stra-
tegically located adjacent to key transport routes. To
determine optimum logistics locations for customers,
Catena works to analyse each customer’s unique flow
and distribution of goods. This allows the client to
minimise the steps between production and
consumption and to minimise the time,
cost and environmental impact of its
transports.

For obvious reasons, distribution
centres and city logistics facilities are
located immediately adjacent to, or
in, central locations and in special
premises.

Theright premises

As a leading manager of

logistics properties, Catena

also offers customers a variety

of types of premises, specifically

designed for the principal defined

purpose — terminals designed for same-day
transshipment, warehouses for products awaiting sale
and distribution warehouse for goods stored for short-
er periods pending further transport to end users. The
company’s extensive and diverse property portfolio also
makes it possible to regulate space flexibly and in pace
with customer development. Catena also operates as a
customer-oriented logistics consultant for its tenants,
who can develop a complete solution or function for
more rational operations.

Therightservice

Conceptdevelopment

Catena develops logistics concepts that generate value
for tenants and other stakeholders in different ways — for
example, flexible spaces and coordinated transport to
facilitate development of city logistics. Together with

partners, Catena takes a comprehensive approach to the
logistics concept, with tailored security solutions, various
types of handling equipment, and IT systems for manage-
ment and control.

At the macro-level, Catena’s studies of cargo flows
also provide a basis for future transport and logistics
infrastructure.

Catena has also initiated an e-commerce cluster in
Angelholm. There, in addition to traditional logistics
services, a number of e-commerce, companies are offered
a range of services, such as platforms for goods manage-
ment, invoicing, administration, security and, of course,
flexible spaces.

Local management organisation
Having a competent management
organisation in place in the prioritised
regions ensures close relationships
with customers in particular, but also
with the local business community
and society in general. This
also means that the prob-
lems that can arise can
quickly be resolved. At
the same time new needs
are identified that can
lead to new business.

Increased lettings
Catena’s active management
over the year has allowed it to

strengthen its customer relationships significan tly and to
increase the number of customers. Despite increased letta-
ble space, the company has an exceptionally low vacancy
rate, which also increases Catena’s need for new develop-
ment projects. The average contract period remains stable
at more than four years, despite
market demand for shorter lease Average contract period
periods, which is also driven Years
by an increased component of
e-commerce companies, which 4
operate on the basis of shorter 3
cycles. Shorter lease periods
can be managed for properties
in attractive locations and are 1

often offset by adjusted rent I —————

412 -13 -14 -15
levels.



Catena’s overriding objective is to show
strong cash flow to enable stable develop-

OVERALL

OBJECTIVE ment and dividends for shareholders.

Compared with other properties, a

modern logistics property has a relatively
short period of use. This is driven by technolog-

ical developments and changes over time in cargo flows.
Short amortisation periods, low financing costs, combined
with operating costs often being borne directly by the
tenant, mean that about half of Catena’s rental income
consists of cash flow from operating activities.

Because of its strong cash flows, Catena has, since
its inception in 2013, managed to increase its property
volume by almost 50 percent, while maintaining stability
and distributing nearly SEK 140 million to shareholders.

ol
i!-_- Contacts
Gustaf Hermelin, CEO
‘ S gustaf.hermelin@catenafastigheter.se

The energy efficiency of Catena’s properties is improved with, for
example, solar panels that can reduce energy consumption by 30 percent.
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To expand its property portfolio, realise
its vision, achieve its financial targets
and generate continued favourable cash
flow, Catena applies four well-defined

strategies: property development, clients

and markets, sustainability, and finance. This
makes it possible both to develop the business and to
generate return for shareholders (read more about these
on the next page).

Capacity to implement strategies

Catena’s Board of Directors, management and employ-
ees have extensive experience in logistics, as well as in
property development and management. With its short de-
cision-making paths, the organisation, which has a clear
strategic expertise, is also competent to make decisions.
Catena also maintains a local administration organisation
close to its customers in the metropolitan regions. This is
also well prepared to handle large volumes.

The attractive portfolio of logistics properties gen-
erates favourable cash flow, continuously enhancing the
company’s strong financial position. Catena also has a
portfolio of developable projects to generate future value.
Overall, this provides positive opportunities for both
continued strategic development of the business, as well
as continued dividends.
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STRATEGY ACHIEVEMENTS IN 2015

Property development

The property portfolio is to grow
with modern, cost-efficient prop-
erties with stable cash flows at
strategically located existing or
expected logistics hubs. In this way,
Catena becomes an even better
alternative for customers, investors
and employees.

» Read more about property develop-
ment, our logistics facilities, and
acquisitions and divestments on
pages 45-48.

Clients and markets

Catena focuses on innovative, suc-
cessful and financially sound com-
panies with whom it works closely
to rationalise their operations. In
this way, long-term customer rela-
tionships are built and long-term
leases are secured. The company
pro-actively monitors trends and
new players in the logistics market.

» Read more about the market and
customers on pages 20-21 and 39-43.

Sustainability

Catenais involved in social progress
through its commitment in priority
logistics areas. The company con-
tributes to a better environment by
enhancing the energy efficiency of
properties and developing econom-
ically and environmentally efficient
logistics locations. In addition, the
company shall also be a responsible
employer that attracts engaged and
competent employees.

» Read more about the sustainability
work on pages 27-37.

Income

Catena shall ensure long-term
stable funding in the form of equity
and loan capital in the form of bank
loans and covered bonds.

» Read more on pages 60-63.

The project properties in Solna were sold, streamlining the operations and
strengthening the company’s financial position.

In addition to the project properties in Solna, two other properties were sold
for a total value of SEK 7.5 million, as well as the H6gsbo 21:2 property,
where the new owners took possession in January 2016.

The acquisition of Tribona, which was completed on 26 January 2016
doubles the property portfolio.

In addition to Tribona, 11 properties were acquired with a total area of ap-
proximately 106,000 square metres and with a value of SEK 571.7 million.
Construction began of a new distribution warehouse in Angelholm, designed
specifically for e-commerce.

Construction of the terminal owned jointly with DHL was completed in Sunnana.
Construction of a new terminal at the Sothénan 3 property in Katrineholm
commenced.

SEK 131.6 million was invested to modernise and streamline the existing
properties.

A facade concept was established for several of Catena’s properties.

The acquisition of Tribona, which was completed in January 2016, will
strengthen Catena’s market position and broadens its customer base
including in the prioritised food sector.

An e-commerce cluster with a number of service functions was initiated
in Angelholm.

More frequent contacts with existing and potential tenants.
Management capacity was strengthened in all regions.

Senior management was extended by one individual, responsible for the
food sector.

The Logistics Trends seminar was arranged for the fifth consecutive year,
attracting more than 150 participants.

Continued establishment in optimum logistics locations.

Continued reduction of energy consumption by means of new technologies,
improved ventilation and lighting in the properties.

Installation of 800 square metres of solar cells on the roof of the Hégsbo
21:2 property to reduce energy consumption.

Continuous monitoring of the properties’ energy consumption was initiated.
A special service for improving energy efficiency was set up.

Through Nya Svensk FastighetsFinansiering AB (Nya SFF), Catena can issue
green bonds to finance climate-friendly and sustainable properties.

Establishment of Nya Svensk FastighetsFinansiering AB (Nya SFF).

Within the framework of Nya SFF, Catena issued covered bonds to a value
of SEK 112 million with collateral in the Terminalen 1 property in Hallsberg.
Continuous development of financing terms and volumes in pace with acqui-
sitions and other developments.



OPERATIONAL TARGETS

Growth in property values
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Since Catena’s incep-
tion in 2013, the proper-
ty portfolio has grown
by nearly 50 percent.
The lower value in 2015
is primarily attributable
to the sale of the proj-
ect properties in Solna,
whose value exceeded
that of the 11 proper-
ties newly acquired for
a value of about SEK
570 million.

Surplus ratio

The average contract % The surplus ratio has

period has increased. 100 been continuously
This decreased some- o improved.This is the
whatin 2015 as a result result of a determined
of demand for shorter 6o effort in day-to-day
contract periods, driven management focusing
by factors includingan 40 on nurturing and de-
increased component 20 veloping existing cus-
of e-commerce cus- tomer relationships
tomers, who operate in e, aNd properties, as
a growth market. This -12 -13 -14 -15  well as active property
can often be offset by development.
higher rent levels.

eNPSs
Total energy consump- eNPS Despite the very high
tion increased margin- 100 level of employee loy-
ally due to properties 80 alty in 2014, the value
acquired and a some- rose sharply in 2015.
what higher letting 60 This is a clear sign of
ratio. Heat consumption the positive atmo-
per square metre has gU sphere and confidence
decreased due to effi- 0 in the future prevailing
ciency improvements within the company.
resulting from methodi- o

-14  -15

cal work with increased
monitoring and review.

The average period
during which capital
was tied up decreased
slightly, primarily as
aresult of a tempo-
rary financing of the
acquisition of Klévern’s
shareholding in Tribona.
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PLANNED

Continued development
of various types of logis-
tics facilities.

Restructuring and
consolidation of the
total property portfolio
following the acquisition
of Tribona.

Continued development
of relations with both
existing tenants and
selected potential new
customers.

Continued development
of the e-commerce clus-
ter in Angelholm.

Continued concept de-
velopment to strengthen
the customer offering.

Continued work toward
the objective of making
Catena energy neutral
by 2020.

Continuous monitoring
and fine-tuning of all of
the properties’ energy
consumption.

Continued efforts to
reduce energy consump-
tion through improved
ventilation and lighting
in the properties.

Continued development
of financing with regard
to sources, volumes and
terms.
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Financial targets

Catena’s overriding objective is to show strong cash flow, enabling stable
development of operations and dividends for shareholders. To achieve this,
the Board of Directors and management control operations on the basis of
three financial targets that are communicated externally. These focus pri-
marily on profitability and financial stability. The financial targets are based
on a number of qualitative and quantitative internal operational objectives
linked to the company’s strategies for clients and markets, property devel-
opment, sustainability, and finance.

Average capital tied-up

The average period during which
capital is tied-up should be at least
two years. In this way, the company
has secured funding over a period
of time that reduces financing risk,
while the company can, at any time,
secure optimum credit terms for the
continued funding of operations.

Comment

The average period during which
capital is tied up decreased slightly,
primarily as a result of temporary
financing for the acquisition of
Kldévern’s shares in Tribona, but also
as a result of improved credit terms
in general. However, the amount

of capital tied up still exceeds the
target.

Years

2 =——————————Target

-12 -13 -14 -15

Interest-coverage ratio

The interest-coverage ratio shall not
be less than a multiple of 1.75. This
level provides an adequate safety
margin, for example, in the event of
rising market interest rates.

Comment

The interest coverage ratio remains
above target. The increased level
for the year, compared with 2014, is
primarily explained by better net op-
erating surplus, slightly lower loan
volumes and lower interest rates.

Multiple
6

Target

) ——

-12 -13 -14 -15

» Read more about Catena’s financing on pages 60-61.

Equity ratio

The equity ratio shall not be lower
than 30 percent, which is con-
sidered well balanced taking the
company'’s cash flow into account.
This provides good opportunities for
returns with a balanced level of risk
in the operations.

Comment

As a consequence of strong cash
flow, it was possible to improve the
equity ratio over the year, despite
the increased dividend to share-
holders for the year.

%
40

30— Target
20
10

-12 -13 -14 -15

Contacts
Peter Andersson, CFO
peter.andersson@catenafastigheter.se



Norra Varalév 31:11 - E-City Engelholm

Controlled finances and strong cash flow make it possible to develop
Catena’s business. Growing e-commerce is one of Catena’s prioritised
areas. Through a majority-owned development company the company is
planning an e-commerce cluster just outside Angelholm. This is located
centrally to reach both the entire Nordic region and northern Europe. A
cluster where companies trading over the Internet will be able to interact
with each other in various areas, such as administration, service and distri-
bution, thereby achieving synergies. Within the cluster, both small, local
players and large, international e-commerce companies will establish
operations in premises adapted and equipped for digital commerce. The
facility will also be easy to reach for those who do not want to wait or pay
for the final transport to the end consumer, but who would prefer to collect
their goods themselves. This is facilitated by short road connections and

OPERATIONS AND STRATEGY
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good parking facilities, but also by municipal transport connections
directly at the site. An outlet shopis also planned in the area. The 157,000
square-metre site allows logistics buildings of about 77,000 energy-effi-
cient square metres, on which work began in early 2016 with the signing
of two new leases. One of these leases is with Boozt Fashion AB.

Contacts
Goran Mansson, Business Development
goran.mansson@catenafastigheter.se
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Customer offering

Catena leases logistics properties. This is a collective term for buildings
whose purpose is the collection, storage and distribution of goods. The
goods, volumes, timing and, above all, the task impose different require-
ments on logistics premises. Consequently, Catena provides different

types of premises.

TERMINAL

D=l E

Terminal forimmediate transshipment

A terminal is a logistics facility that is primarily designed
for the transshipment of cargo and goods that are received
and shipped on the same day. Goods arrive there from
manufacturers and distributors in Sweden and elsewhere
in the world, by sea, air, rail and road. Some are container
terminals that are especially well equipped for transferring
cargo from one mode of transport to another. The termi-
nals are strategically located close to population centres.
Above all, however, they have efficient connections to
ports, railways and major roads, and, in particular, favour-
able access, making it easy to reach the property and to
leave it. Operations at the terminal are generally run by
one of the major players in third-party logistics. From one
and the same terminal, the operator can service several
hundred customers, limiting Catena’s commercial risk.

DISTRIBUTION

LOGISTICS eI RE

WAREHOUSE

CITY LOGISTICS
[ I I I
I I I

Logistics warehouses for storage

Both manufacturing and trading companies place goods in
logistics warehouses while those goods are waiting to be
sold. The warehouse thus represents a buffer between the
customer and the supplier, regardless of whether consum-
er products or industrial input goods are concerned. For
this reason they are also equipped differently in terms of
fittings and temperature control. Warehouse properties are
often located at the producer’s warehouse or the import-
er’s port. Alternatively, they may be located at a meeting
point shared by several units — positioned to minimise the
steps in the logistics chain by identifying the centre of
gravity. The logistics warehouse is also often located adja-
cent to a terminal. Operations at a logistics warehouse are
often conducted by a single tenant or a small number of
tenants, who may be a producer, wholesaler, importer or

a third-party operator. The risk with a smaller number of
clients for a logistics warehouse is balanced by long-term
contracts with stable customers. Furthermore, a strategi-
cally located logistics warehouse, with an underlying flow
of goods, is always attractive to multiple operators and
thus easily leased.



Distribution centre pending onward transport

A distribution centre is designed to store goods in a
central location, over a shorter period of time, to then
be transported on to retailers or consumers in the region
the distribution centre is intended to serve. In particular,
this requires good loading and unloading opportunities.
Distribution centres are often located along ring roads
surrounding population centres. Operations are often
conducted by third-party logistics companies such as
DHL, Schenker, PostNord and others.
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ANNUAL REPORT 2015 | CATENA AB

Contacts

. Mikael Halling, Deputy CEO
mikael.halling@catenafastigheter.se

City logistics for frequent deliveries

Certain distribution centres are specially designed for
frequent, fast and short distance transports of fast-mov-
ing consumer goods to retailers. This is referred to as
city logistics. The premises, which are centrally located
hubs, are specifically designed to handle different types
of goods from multiple suppliers. They are equipped for
rational picking because shipments, although small, may
consist of several different products. In this way, shops,
which are often in expensive locations, can minimise
storage space, save costs and tie up less capital. Produc-
ers also get their products out to the shops where there is
relevant demand.

E-warehouses are a variant of city logistics that
specialises in serving the growing e-commerce segment.
They also often have equipment for packing goods prior
to delivery to distribution points where end users can
collect their goods.
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Project portfolio

Catena’s property portfolio generates ongoing, stable cash flow, which affords
the company favourable opportunities to conduct active project development,
with the aim of developing and growing its property portfolio,

Catena conducts active project development to meet the
demand for the company’s properties and to fulfil its
express ambition to continue growing. Accordingly, the
company invests actively in both existing and new logis-
tics locations. Following several years of collaboration
with qualified advisors, Catena has a good understanding
of where cargo from different parts of the world arrives in
Scandinavia and how it is redistributed.

Attractive locations

This means that Catena has considerable opportunities
to offer new and existing tenants attractive logistics
locations. Today, the company’s project portfolio,
either under its own auspices or in partnerships

with others, land, development rights and

options with developable space for different :
logistics properties. Development rights and S ykvarn“
options represent a capital-efficient method i
for safeguarding a project portfolio that <=
can be activated when the time is right

enburg
OBoras

jonképing

and the customer is in place. 9Nass;o
The portfolio includes two major

items that are owned in partnership: one

in Malmo that offers a total developable

property area of 270,000 square me-
tres and one in Helsingborg, offering P

an equal area. In addition, the project = O Catena's development project
portfolio includes other well-positioned — guet® i;gs logistics positions
projects having reached various stages \ “‘?ﬁ;

ranging from lease negotiations to detailed

development planning. These are located in, for example,

the Stockholm region, Katrineholm, Orebro, Norrkdping,

Jonkoping, Nissjd, Boras, Gothenburg and Angelholm. be developed by a number of smaller logistics operators

or companies. In a third phase, many logistics properties
Transactions modernise the property portfolio out-played their role as logistics locations. Following
Catena updates its property portfolio on an ongoing basis.  divestment to a responsible buyer, when the city or town

New purchasing patterns and cargo flows continuously in question has grown, redevelopment of the property as
impose new demands on logistics properties. Catena homes and offices awaits. Catena takes these possibilities
calculates that a logistics property can satisfy a major into account right from the start of the project. As was
operator’s requirements for about 15 years. Then, in a the case with the centrally located Hogsbo 21:2 property

second phase, the property is particularly attractive to in Gothenburg, which was divested with Catena relin-



quishing possession in 2016. Today, instead of logistics
premises, it contains premises for various purposes, such
as schools and a range of service operations. Properties
considered to be of less strategic importance and that
cannot be developed into major logistics locations or
where future value growth is limited may also be divest-
ed. Another reason for disposal is that certain customers
seek to own the property where they operate. A disposal
frees up resources for the company, and these can be used
in the development of new, modern logistics properties.
This ensures that Catena always has an attractive property
portfolio that generates strong cash flows.

Project acquisitions for the construction

of new properties

In regenerating and developing its property portfolio,
Catena prioritises the construction of new properties.

On the Sothénan 3 property in Katrineholm, Catena began
construction of a 10,000 square-metre terminal to handle
heavier industrial products thatimpose specific demands on
handling capabilities, but less on temperature.
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This generally provides the customer with the best solu-
tion from all perspectives and provides the company with
the best return. However, during the year, Catena has also
acquired a number of existing, modern properties with
good cash flow, in order to grow faster, establish opera-
tions more quickly in a new location or to expand the cus-
tomer base. Acquisitions that are made for amounts where
the production cost for equivalent facilities provides the
basic yardstick.

» Read more about acquisitions and disposals during the year on
pages 47-48.

Contacts
Mikael Halling, Deputy CEO
mikael.halling@catenafastigheter.se
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Acquisition of Tribona

In October, Catena acquired Klévern AB’s shares in Tribona AB. At
the same time, Catena submitted a public takeover bid to the other
shareholders in Tribona to acquire all of the remaining shares in
Tribona. The transaction was finalised in late January 2016.

About the transaction

In October, Catena acquired Klovern AB’s 14,377,428
shares, representing 29.55 percent of the share capital in
Tribona AB, for a cash consideration of SEK 42 per share.

At the same time, Catena submitted a public takeover
bid to the other shareholders in Tribona to acquire all
of the company’s remaining shares. As payment for the
shares in Tribona AB, Catena offered three newly issued
shares in Catena for every eight shares in Tribona AB.
That corresponded to an offer value of SEK 45 per share,
based on the closing price for the Catena share on 19
October 2015.

As an alternative Catena offered Tribona’s sharehold-
ers a cash consideration of SEK 42 per share in Tribona
AB.

That entailed a market value for Tribona of approxi-
mately SEK 2.1 billion.

ICA, which is one of Tribona’s major tenants, represents the
attractive customer segment, food, where players have a devel-
oped system of frequent deliveries to shops and direct to
consumers and thus can deliver an effective “last mile logistics”.
This refers to the final transport to the end consumer.

Tribonain brief

Property company Tribona, domiciled in Lund and with
its head office in Arl6v on the outskirts of Malmd, manag-
es and develops properties, focusing on warehousing and
logistics in Sweden. The company owns 37 properties, of
which 36 are in Sweden and one in Denmark. The total
lettable area amounts to slightly more than 700,000 square
metres. All of the properties are strategically located at
logistics hubs near major traffic flows, including Euro-
pean highways and railways, mainly within the so-called
Nordic Triangle. Tribona was founded in 2006 as North-
ern Logistic Property (NLP).

Increased presence in the food

and other motivations for acquisitions

The acquisition of Tribona makes Catena Sweden’s
leading property company in logistics with a total of 92
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properties with a combined value of approximately

SEK 10,000 million and delivering strong cash flow. This
gives Catena good opportunities to continue expanding its
business.

Tribona’s property portfolio complements Catena’s
well and strengthens the company’s position in the
locations that the company has defined as strategically
significant, such as Stockholm, Gothenburg and Malmg.

Catena also gains several important new customers

and customer segments. Particularly in the food sec- A e
tor, which traditionally has a well-developed logistics A sungsvau
function. Customers include ICA, Netto and other large

supermarket chains of interest to Catena. A e

The larger combined property portfolio also
improves opportunities for rational management,
resulting in cost synergies, as well as revenue

synergies. N
The increased number of shareholders is ® A
also expected to improve conditions for at- e Y\
) . : . Pe o a®
tracting new investors, which can improve ® ° A...
the liquidity of Catena’s shares, adding :
value for shareholders. Ao
& ()
Income AA
The transaction was financed with cash, ..A A ®
new loans of approximately SEK 400 ® o A—ge® o%¢ ®
million raised by Catena with existing Yo
collateral and a share issue in Catena AB
directed at shareholders of Tribona. A
When the acceptance period expired A ® AA
on 5 February 2016, 94.5 percent of ) @ Catena's investment properties
Tribona’s shareholders had accept- e®® AaA A Tribona's investment properties
ed Catena’s bid. Among Tribona’s AQA...
shareholders, 41.6 percent chose the .: ()
exchan'g'e option. As a consequence, copentagen A :.A : : : : (]
an additional 7,593,585 Catena shares ®
will be issued, with the total number A
of Catena shares amounting to 33,235,506.
Integration prepared The impact of the acquisition Proforma
C . . on Catena’s key performance 31 Decem-
The acquisition of Tribona was completed on 26 January indicators Catena Tribona ber2015
2016. The integration of the companies was then initiated.  |nvestment properties, No. 55 37 92
In connection with this, the workforce was reviewed, with  property value, SEK m 4,781 5,262 10,043
the result that nine of the 12 employees agreed to transfer ~ Equity, SEK m 2,478 1,918 3,328
to Catena. The others have chosen to leave the operations.  Liabilities to credit
At the same time, a review of the organisation of opera- institutions, SEK m 3,407 2,950 6,670
Debt/equity ratio, multiple 1.5 1.5 2.0

tions into regions has begun This will soon be completed

and work will then continue to consolidate and develop Tribona's operatior)s were consolidated ir]to Catena eﬁ:’ective fron.'l 26
January. Catena will report on the consolidated operations effective from

each region’s property portfolio. the first quarter of 2016.
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NorraVaralév 31:5, Angelholm

On the property, which is situated in'a convenient loca-
tion just adjacent to the E6 slightly south of Angelholm
and in direct connection with Catena’s Norra Varalév
31:11developmentsite, is alogistics warehouse of more
than 4,000 square metres. Nicklas Bengtsson at tenant
company KM Pack explains the choice of location:

provides good transport links and

excellent advertising opportunities
towards the motorway. Catena’s venture
in e-commerce logistics will also benefit
us by offering extensive opportunities for
cooperation. Our range of packaging is in
demand among the actors within the new
E-City that we want to be a part of.

, , The location adjacent to the E6
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The CEO comments on the
year’s sustainability work

With regard to Catena’s sustainability efforts, 2015 was an eventful year.
We have continued to work with the sustainability targets that we set out
within the framework of the business plan that applies until 2020. In 2015,
we focused primarily on improving energy efficiency in our properties and
on ongoing work with sustainable logistics and societal development.

During the year, we have recruited an energy and tech-
nology developer to work exclusively with saving energy.
We have also implemented an energy monitoring system
that allows for more methodical monitoring and analysis.
At the same time, practical energy efficiency efforts out
among our properties continued to produce good results.

In efforts on sustainable logistics and societal devel-
opment, we have been active in meeting local government
leaders in various places around Sweden. The aim is to
establish a dialogue on logistics issues and to ensure that
these matters become a part of community planning, par-
ticularly when planning new residential areas. Here, we
notice that Catena contributes a perspective that has partly
been lacking in these discussions.

In the metropolitan areas, the predominant topic of
discussion is city logistics or “urban logistics”. In other
municipalities where Catena operates, we are mainly dis-
cussing long-distance cargo and how we can together make
these municipalities more attractive hubs for logistics.

We are continuing the process of building an organisa-
tion that interacts closely with the operations. From hav-
ing been centred around Helsingborg, we now also have
two well-functioning regional offices in Gothenburg and
Nykoping. During the year, we increased our personnel
by five people, strengthening the organisation in business
development, administration and management. At the
same time, this has led to a rejuvenation of the company
and more women in management.

As we now look forward to 2016, I believe the year
will be pervaded by efforts to integrate the properties and
new employees brought in with the addition of Tribona
AB. We are also looking forward to continued expansion,
both through new construction and acquisitions of exist-
ing properties in the right locations.

Solna, March 2016
Gustaf Hermelin, CEO

gustaf.hermelin@catenafastigheter.se
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Catena’s sustainability

activities

Sustainability is one of Catena'’s four prioritised strategic areas. Our
work focuses on participating in social progress by establishing the
conditions for more sustainable logistics, reducing environmental im-

pact and being an attractive employer.

In connection with Catena’s development of a new busi-
ness plan in 2014, the focus of our sustainability work
was clarified. The company also developed targets for its
sustainability work over the next five years. The priorities
are based on the ongoing dialogue that Catena maintains

questionnaire survey regarding its sustainability work at
the end of 2013. In connection with this, nine areas were
identified as important and the illustration on the next
page shows how these areas are prioritised by Catena and
its stakeholders.

with customers, investors, suppliers and communities.

Catena has daily contacts with numerous stakeholders.

Forums for dialogue include Catena’s annual Logistics

Trends conference and the company’s activities at the

Swedish Open in Bastad. To receive input on priorities

for its sustainability work, Catena performed a specific

Stakeholder group

QWNERS,
INVESTORS
AND ANALYSTS

SOCIETY

Opportunities for dialogue

¢ Annual general meeting

¢ Regular meetings, includingin
connection with quarterly reports

* Ongoing phone contacts

» Capital Markets Day in Bastad

¢ Regular contacts

¢ Atleastone annual performance
interview and salary review

* Annual personnel conference
to educate and motivate

¢ Regular contacts with public sector
decision makers to improve logistics
locally, regionally and nationally

e Logistics Trends - an annual day for
the industry’s stakeholders, with a
topicalissue being discussed and
penetrated in detail

e Logistics Trends - an annual day for
the industry’s stakeholders, with a
topicalissue being discussed and
penetrated in detail

¢ Regular personal meetings with
suppliers

e Logistics Trends - an annual day for
the industry’s stakeholders, with a
topicalissue being discussed and
penetrated in detail

¢ Reinforced active management
organisation that maintains regular
contact with tenants

About Catena’s sustainability report

Catena’s sustainability report was prepared in accordance with
the Global Reporting Initiative (GRI). The report was prepared
in accordance with the GRI's G4 at the Core reporting level.
» See www.catenafastigheter.se for background information on

the contents of the sustainability report and the GRI index.

¢ Logistics Trends - an annual day
for the industry’s stakeholders,
with a topicalissue being
discussed and penetrated in detail

* New improved website introduced
in2015

e The managementorganisation’s
regular contact with tenants,
businesses and local officials

e New improved website introduced
in 2015

e Financialsupportto local sports
and community associations

* New improved website intro-
ducedin 2015

* New improved website
introducedin 2015

Key issues

* Business model, objectives and strategy
e Income
¢ Growth
¢ Results

* Sustainability and Corporate Governance

¢ Publication of information
e Share liquidity

* Opportunities for training and skills
development

e Clear career paths

* Salary and benefits

* Balance between work and leisure

* Diversity

* Goods supply and smooth logistics
* Trends

« Traffic intensity

* Low environmental impact

* Cost-efficient solutions

* Long-term view

e Stable partner

« Stable and flexible landlord

o Accessibility

* Cost-efficient premises

« Environmental efficiency

* Proximity to road/rail/port

e Access to multiple modes of transport



Stakeholders’ priorities

Prioritised areas

« Create financial returns
- « Establish the conditions for
1 logistics flows with a
:‘;':_ minimal environmental
2 impact
i~
; « Focus on energy efficiency
£ and renewable energy
I « Offer training and skills
development for employees
¢ Disseminating knowledge « Aim for a low environ-
aboutsustainable logistics mentalimpactin new
« Preventing bribery and builds and conversions
B corruption
n
= ¢ Imposing demands on
T - -
o suppliers with regard to
& health, safety and the

environment

e Striving for diversity in the
organisation

Prioritised Highly prioritised

Importance for Catena

The nine aspects represent the areas deemed critical for

Catena. The aspects to the top right of the chart are those

valued highest by both Catena and its stakeholders. Con-
sequently, these are the areas on which Catena’s sustain-
ability targets are based and the three areas of focus in the
company’s sustainability work.
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In this sustainability report, Catena describes each focus
area in more detail, as well as the sustainability targets
adopted by the Board of Directors and senior manage-
ment. The targets for Catena’s sustainability work are
that, by 2020, the company shall:

SUSTAINABLE LOGISTICS AND
SOCIETAL DEVELOPMENT

¢ Being engaged in networks and holding

regular meetings with local government
leaders in our market areas.

ENVIRONMENTALLY EFFICIENT PROPERTIES

¢ Building its own renewable energy to a capacity
equivalent to our total energy consumption in 2020.

» Offer green leases for all major tenants.

* Environmentally certify all newly produced
properties.

CATENA ATTRACTIVE EMPLOYER

‘n‘ww 'l”n”n'w 'nl e Participate in job fairs and offer intern-
. ships and holiday jobs to young people.

* Have an eNPS of at least 25.

Patrik Hjelte, economist at head office and Marija

Maznevska, management assistantin the Gothen-
burg Region. Both were recruited in 2015, contrib-
uting to Catena’s renewal and rejuvenation.
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Sustainable logistics and
societal development

Efficient logistics means lower costs and reduced environmental impact.
Catena shall be a driving force in making logistics in Scandinavia more
sustainable. In this way, Catena generates value for shareholders, cus-

tomers and society in general.

The logistics industry is undergoing major changes — a
key cause being the growth of e-commerce. From goods
mainly being transported between warehouses and shops,
goods are increasingly transported directly from the ware-
house to the end consumer. This has, for example, brought
changes in transport routes, smaller packages and new
demands on the timing and frequency of goods deliveries.
In pace with these changes, the competitive advan-
tages of niche companies like Catena are enhanced. The
company’s dedicated focus on logistics properties allows
it to work with the challenges of the logistics sector on
a day-to-day basis. This gives Catena substantial knowl-
edge of the sector and opportunities to work closely with
customers. In this way, the company creates an under-
standing of its customers’ challenges and can identify land
and properties that resolve their issues. In 2015, Catena
hired a business developer with a particular focus on the
e-commerce sector, providing even greater opportunities
to create solutions that contribute to customers’ success.
Within the framework of the business plan, Catena has
set out targets for its contacts with the community:

e Being engaged in networks and holding regular meetings
with local government leaders in our market areas.

To be even more proactive, Catena works increasingly

in networks and meets regularly with local government
leaders in prioritised regions. This affords Catena the
opportunity to express its view on logistics challenges and
to ensure that logistics issues are included in the planning
of new residential areas, for example.

Potential for more sustainable logistics

Catena sees considerable potential in more sustainable
supply chains. For this reason, the company conducts
ongoing discussions with both existing and potential
customers with a view to providing them with premises

that can streamline their logistics flows. One challenge in
logistics planning is to optimise a number of parameters
that often point in different directions by means of what
is known as a centre of gravity calculation. Examples of
what this seeks to accomplish to varying degrees include:
* Maximum occupancy

+ Shortest possible route to the goods’ final destination.
* Transport options with minimum energy consumption.

* Minimum transport time.

The optimum solution varies and is different for different
customers in different situations. For Catena, this plac-
es demands on the flexibility and speed of the solutions
offered by the company. Catena also strives to always
stay one step ahead and to understand emerging trends,
challenges and new hubs.

Two major trends in sustainable development at the
moment are increased rail transport and increasingly spe-
cialised city logistics, also referred to as urban logistics.

Transport by rail
A large, growing portion of Catena’s premises are located
in areas with access to container terminals. This means
that the properties are located near several forms of trans-
portation — usually various combinations of roads, rail-
ways, ports and dry ports. Access to container terminals
gives customers the flexibility to optimise their logistics
by combining several modes of transport.

In Sweden, 80 percent of shipments are by truck.
Increasingly, however, long-distance transports are tran-



sitioning to rail. One of the reasons is that rail transport
is more energy efficient and can therefore help reduce
transport costs. Furthermore, the energy consumed in

rail transport is based to a greater extent on renewable
sources, while most road transports are still dependent on
oil-based fuels. Catena’s logistics locations give tenants
the opportunity to optimise their choice of transport
options — whether the aim is efficiency in terms of cost,
time or the environment.

City logistics gains a foothold
City logistics involves streamlining transport in dense
urban environments. In many major Swedish cities,
the traffic situation is strained, creating congestion and
inefficient logistics. The traffic situation also makes for
irritated drivers of both passenger vehicles and commer-
cial transports.

Catena is working with several municipalities and

companies to establish warehouses and terminals just out-

side cities. In these reloading terminals, goods to be for-
warded into the urban centre can be reloaded in a manner
that enables higher load factors, flexibility in truck sizes
and more accurate route planning. With such terminals in
suitable locations, cargo continuing long-distance can be
reloaded without first passing through the city centre as
is often the case today. In this way, Catena enables more
cost and environmentally efficient logistics.

The right location reduced DHL's carbon emissions

In early 2016, DHL moved into a new terminal in Sunnana outside
Malmaé. This made them the first tenant at the Catena’s Logistikpo-
sition Malmaé. In connection with its move to Sunnangd, DHL vacated
its former terminal in central Malmo - entailing major environmen-
tal gains with the amount of long distance cargo traversing central
Malmo being greatly reduced.

Itis very important to us that we locate our freight terminals as
close as possible to ring roads and major thoroughfares. This
particular change has resulted in a saving of 400 tonnes of CO.e
per year, of which 350 tonnes derives from reduced transport and
the remainder from new property technologies, says Per Karjer Vice
President Corporate Real Estate at DHL Nordic AB.

DHL’s move to Logistikposition Malmo is a typical example of how
logistics properties in the right location can reduce the environmen-
tal impact of transports. Besides the strategic location, Catena and
DHL have worked together to reduce the energy consumption and
environmental impact of the terminal building.

We have focused greatly on smart lighting control and invested in
geothermal heating. The property is also environmentally certified in
accordance with the Green Building standard. Throughout, Catena
has been a professional partner and a keen listener. An additional
step was taken by preparing for a photovoltaic installation on the
roof, Per Karjer concludes.

Catena owns the area in Sunnana jointly with Peab. It covers a total
270,000 square metres of developable land.
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Socio-economic impact

In addition to the positive effects on society offered by
more sustainable logistics, all companies have a direct
impact on the social economy. Examples are the impact
on tax revenues, the actors with whom the company has
business relations, as well as the people working with-
in the organisation. The diagram to the left shows how
Catena’s income in 2015 was distributed among various
stakeholder groups.

Created and distributed economic value, SEK m

Suppliers, 103

Retained economic Employees, 34

value, 285

Shareholder dividend, 77

Interest, 94
Taxes, 16

The diagram to the left shows how Catena’s income in 2015 was distrib-
uted among various stakeholder groups. The total value created in 2015
amounted to SEK 609 million.
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=== Environmentally efficient

properties

The most important aspect of Catena’s internal environmental work is the
properties’ energy consumption. The company is working to reduce con-
sumption and increase the proportion of renewable energy. The environ-
mental management system is certified in accordance with ISO 14001.

Environmental policy

Catena AB

e strives to minimise the use of energy, water and products that
are hazardous to health and the environment.

* strives to consume as little energy as possible, in relation to what
is financially reasonable and the requirements set forindoor
environments.

* strives to increase the proportion of renewable energy.

e strives to reduce environmentalimpact and energy use in part-
nership with tenants.

e strives to achieve energy efficiency in its day-to-day operations.
e strives to outperform environmental legislation.

Catena has identified five areas where operations have a
significant environmental impact: electricity consumption,
heat usage, choice of building materials in new construc-
tion and remodelling, waste management and reduced
transport through efficient logistics locations. Overriding
environmental targets and business goals exist for these
aspects that are monitored and evaluated on an annual
basis. Within the framework of Catena’s business plan,
three targets for 2020 have been developed. Catena shall:

¢ Build its own renewable energy to a capacity equivalent
to our total energy consumption in 2020.

o Offer green leases for all major tenants.

e Environmentally certify all newly produced properties.

Catena is a member of the Sweden Green Building
Council network and can offer properties that are environ-
mentally certified in accordance with all of the accepted
standards. In 2015, one property was certified in accor-
dance with the Green Building standard, a certification
that requires 25 percent lower energy consumption than
that stipulated by the new building requirements of the
National Board of Housing, Building and Planning.

Energy use

Catena continued to assign a high priority to efforts in
the area of energy in 2015. Heating and electricity are
the single largest cost item for properties, meaning that

optimised use of energy leads to both improved environ-
mental performance and positive financial effects for both
Catena and its tenants.

During the year, Catena recruited an energy and
technology developer who focuses on energy work on a
daily basis. The comprehensive energy inventories made
in 2014 provided the basis for efforts in 2015. In many
cases, Catena works together with tenants to achieve the
most efficient use of energy possible.

In the autumn of 2015, an energy monitoring system
was implemented. This facilitates more methodical mon-
itoring, with the effect that measures can be implemented
at an earlier stage. Meter readings for heat consumption
can now also be made via mobile apps.

A number of major projects focusing on energy
optimisation were carried out and initiated during the
year. Positive experiences from previous installations
have also led to several projects during the year in which
lighting was switched to LED.

Property portfolio develop-
ment and purchased energy

per square metre Purchased energy

SEK m kWh/sq. m. %
6,000 300 100
80
4,000 200
G0
40
2,000 100
——
20
0 0 0
-13  -14  -15 -13  -14  -15
Development of property M District heating
portfolio Heating oil
M Energy consumption/ B Electricity

square metre

The diagram shows how the distribu-
tion of purchased energy has devel-
oped. Catena is working with projects
to completely phase out oil heating
options at the company’s properties.
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Examples of energy saving projects implemented in 2015

Gothenburg, Hogsbo 21:2

Several energy-saving measures
were implemented during the year.
Ventilation units were replaced
with more energy efficient models
and existing fluorescent lighting
was switched to LED lighting. Older,
uninsulated exhaust ducts on the
roof were removed with exit points
being filled in, reducing both
condensation and downdrafts. On
the roof, additionalinsulation and a
new photovoltaic system were
installed. The annual savings
resulting from these measures are
estimated atabout 500 MWh.

Stockholm, Vanda 1 - Savings:
Catena has worked to .

convert the property
from the previous
printing operations to
logistics. In connection
with this, technologies
and ventilation have
been adapted to the
new operations. The
resultis thatannually
normalised heat
consumption
decreased by about 16
percent over the past
year.

Kungsbacka, Varla 6:15

In connection with the property
being converted into a logistics ware-
house, several measures have been
taken to reduce energy consump-
tion. Ventilation control has been
installed forincreased optimisation.
Existing units have been updated and
redundant air ducts and ventilation
shafts have been removed and
closed off. The entire sprinkler
system has been rebuilt for full-scale
high-bay storage. The resultis that
annually normalised heat consump-
tion decreased by 16 percent
compared with 2014.

Orebro, Savings:
Godsvagnen 6

The property includes a
distribution warehouse
and has an area of just
under 20,000 square
metres. During the
year, a lighting project
was carried out, in
which older fixtures
were replaced with
energy-efficient LED
lighting. The estimated
saving amounts to
nearly 50 percent.
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2015 2014
Pur- Pur-
Pur- chased Pur- chased

chased energy/ chased energy/

energy, square energy, square
MWh metre MWh metre

Electricity 14,699 42.8 12,664 40.7
Heating oil 822 1,100
District heating 13,397 34.8 12,380 36.0
Fuel (petrol, diesel) 113 88
Total: 29,031 77.7 26,232 76.7
Of which, renewable
energy 71% 65%
Sold to tenants 28,918 26,144
Of which sales with
individual meters 18,730 14,283
Percentage of energy
sold with individual
meters 65% 55%

The marginal relative increase is due to a higher average
letting ratio. Perhaps the most important parameter - heat
consumption - has, however, decreased as a result of
methodical work with increased monitoring, review and
efficiency enhancement.

et eI
1

S -

Greenhouse gas emissions

Catena monitors greenhouse gas emissions from its oper-
ations annually in accordance with the Greenhouse Gas
Protocol (GHG Protocol). In 2015, Catena’s total green-
house gas emissions were 978 tonnes of CO,e, of which
92 percent derive from purchased energy. Emissions
decreased somewhat compared with 2014 due to reduced
consumption of oil and a larger proportion of renewable
energy for both purchased electricity and district heating.
Catena mainly seeks to reduce emissions by enhancing
energy efficiency but also by replacing oil-fired boilers
with district heating or geothermal heating and by con-
tinuously evaluating opportunities to install solar panels
adjacent to its properties.

Catena’s asset managers, Michael Waldesten from the Oresund region and Tobias
. Karlsson from the Stockholm region, exchange experiences at the Hasthagen

property in Helsingborg. Sharing expertise is an important way of developing
property management, which is the foundation of Catena’s business model.



Total greenhouse gas emissions per square m.

ton CO,e kgCO.e/kvm
1,500 150
||
—
1,000 r— 100
B Electricity
500 50 Heating oil
District heating
B Business travel and commuting
0 m__ 0 B Greenhouse gas emissions/

13 -14 -15 square metre

Greenhouse gas emissions per scope 2015

Scope 1 - direct greenhouse gas emissions
Emissions from combustion at facilities or from vehicles owned
by the company. For Catena, this mainly involves combustion
of oil. However, Catena only has one property that is heated
directly by oil. Direct greenhouse gas
emissions are also caused
through the combus-
tion of fossil fuels in
Emission, tonnes CO,e OUr COMPpany cars.

Scope 2 - indirect greenhouse gas emissions
Greenhouse gas emissions that arise from

the production of electricity and district
heating that is purchased

by Catena and used in the 3 l 5
properties we own. Emission, tonnes COe

Scope 3 - indirect greenhouse gas emissions

Other indirect GHG emissions arising from the company’s opera-
tions. Catena reports emissions from electricity and heat bought
in by Catena but consumed by tenants with separate individual
metering of consumption. Emissions from business travel and

employees’ commut-

ing are also reported.
Emission, tonnes CO.e

Total emissions, tonnes CO.e | 2015 2014 2013

978 1,195 1,329
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Emissions form business travel and commuting
Environmental impact arising from employees’ business
travel and commuting is extremely minor in relation to
the environmental impact of energy use in the properties.
In 2015 emission from business travel and commuting
amounted to 83 tonnes CO,e. Of these emissions, 26
tonnes of CO,e were attributable to our employees’
commutes.

Requirements and collaboration with suppliers
Catena primarily requires that suppliers have environ-
mental management systems certified in accordance with
ISO 14001. For smaller local companies that do not have
the resources to develop and certify their management
systems, Catena also approves simpler environmental
management systems. The requirement is that they work
with guidelines, goals and training in a similar manner to
ISO 14001. Since Catena only has direct suppliers based
in Sweden, the company’s requirements and assessments
of its suppliers are based on local conditions.

Choice of materials for new builds and conversions
In addition to standard supplier requirements, for any
construction project exceeding SEK 5 million, Cate-

na requires the preparation of an environmental plan.

For contracts exceeding SEK 250,000, Catena requires
systems for assessing and following up the construction
materials used. Suppliers must use one of the three most
common systems for assessing construction materials —
Byggvarubedomningen (BVB), SundaHus Miljodata or
BASTA. For simpler projects carried out by local contrac-
tors, Folksam’s green construction guide can be used.

Waste

In most cases, Catena’s tenants are responsible for their
own waste management. For those tenants where Catena
is responsible for waste management, the objective is for
waste to be sorted into the fractions applicable for each
municipality. Sorting should be performed in a manner
that is easy and natural for the tenants.

Hazardous waste generated by Catena’s own opera-
tions is primarily handled by the property maintenance
contractors. Catena requires that contractors have envi-
ronmental management systems in accordance with ISO
14001, with their own procedures for waste management
or that they apply Catena’s procedures for the manage-
ment of hazardous waste.
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CATENA
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Attractive employer

Catena has a small but effective organisation comprised of individuals with
substantial industry experience and strategic competence. This allows the com-
pany to quickly understand the needs of customers and to generate business.

Catena’s organisation consists primarily of the Proper-
ty Management and Business Development functions.
Property management is adapted to the geographical
location of the properties within three regions: Stockholm,
Gothenburg and Oresund. Added to these are the Group’s
Economy/Finance and Communications functions. Catena
works with internal asset managers and hires external
maintenance contractors for the practical work on the
properties.

Within the framework of the business plan, Catena has
set two targets that focus primarily on current and future
employees:

e Participate in job fairs and offer internships and holiday
jobs to young people.

e Have an eNPS of at least 25.

Catena should be an exciting and responsible employer
that attracts dedicated and competent employees, both
new and existing. To continue developing as a workplace,
the company works with workplace health, equality and
continuous professional development.

Appraisals

Catena’s actions should always be pervaded by profes-

sionalism and good business ethics. Catena’s four core

values are to permeate the actions of all employees:

* Openness, dialogue and straightforward communica-
tion, which will make us efficient, prompt and reliable.

* Simplicity, which means that our work approach is
straightforward and avoids bureaucratic red tape.

eNPS (Employee Net Promoter Score)
Since 2014, Catena monitors employee loyalty through an annual
eNPS survey.

The entails employees responding to the question “How likely
are you to recommend your workplace to a friend or acquain-
tance?” on ascale of 0-10. The eNPS measure is then calculated by
subtracting the percentage of people who responded 0-6 (“detrac-
tors”) from the percentage of people who responded 9-10
(“promoters”). The resultis a figure between -100 and +100 where
Catena’s score was +64, which was clearly higher than the score
for the preceding year. The result holds up very wellin comparison
with other companies and is a sign that we have extremely loyal
employees.

* Proximity, which permits us to create good relations
and gain an insight into problems and opportunities.

* Genuine commitment, which permits us to go further in
identifying superior solutions.

An attractive employer

+6

Six individuals were newly recruited in
2015, of whom 50 percent were women.

-1

One individual left the company
in 2015 - a woman.

Catena seeks to create a
healthy and pleasant working
environment. Employees
should feel that there is a
balance between work and
leisure and feel able to
manage their own time and
assume a personal respon-
sibility. Catena has collective agreements, providing
security for all employees.

Catena conducts an annual online survey in which all
employees are given the opportunity to comment on the
company’s role as an employer and ongoing sustainability
efforts.All employees except one responded to the survey
in 2015. For the second consecutive year, eNPS (Employ-
ee Net Promoter Score) was measured. This is a measure
of how many employees would be willing to recommend
the company as a workplace. Catena’s score for the year
was 64, which is significantly higher than in the preceding
year, when it was 40. The score is very high in comparison
with both Swedish and international companies and shows
that our employees are good ambassadors for Catena.

Absence due toillness 2015 2014
Average for all employees, % 1.6 0.8
Women, % 1.9 1.1
Men, % 1.5 0.7

The table aboveillustrates sickness absence as a proportion
of the planned number of working hours. No work-related
injuries, accidents or illnesses were reported.

In-service training

Catena works actively with training and skills develop-
ment for employees. The aim is both to create a work
environment in which employees feel they develop in



Ulrika Holmér, marketing and admin-
istrative assistant, develops Catena’s
new website, among other things.

their work and for Catena to continue developing as a
company. Personal development plans are prepared in
conjunction with the annual employee dialogues carried
out with all employees. All employees are given a wide
range of possibilities for choosing training, courses and
seminars they wish to participate in on the company’s
account. Central and prioritised training areas are man-
agement issues, finance, the environment and law. During
2015, Catena implemented educational initiatives in the

Training hours/person 2015 2014
Board of Directors

Women 4 0
Men 0 0
Management

Women 86 40
Men 3 6
Other Employees

Women 18 32
Men 7 10

Thetable above shows the average number of training hours
per employee.
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company’s new energy monitoring system, leadership
and property management.

Equal opportunities for all

Skills, experience and personal qualities should always be
the criteria assessed in recruitment, promotion and contin-
uous evaluation. Catena do not discriminate individuals,
favourably or unfavourably, based on aspects unrelated

to how well the individual performs his/her work. The
company also follows up gender and age distribution

in different parts of the company on an annual basis. In
2015, the senior management team was extended with
another woman, meaning that the proportion of women is
now 25 percent. The Board of Directors was also extend-
ed with the addition of another woman and consequently
consists of 33 percent women. Catena continues to strive
for a better gender balance in both its Board of Directors
and senior management.

Composition of the company

2015 2014

Women, Women,

Number % Number %

Board of Directors 6 33 6 17
Under 30 0 0 0 0
30-50 1 100 1 100
Over 50 5 20 5 0
Management 8 25 7 14
Under 30 0 0 0 0
30-50 4 50 3 33
Over 50 4 0 4 0
Other Employees 18 39 14 43
Under 30 0 0 0 0
30-50 11 45 8 50
Over 50 7 29 6 33

The table shows the composition of the company by
gender and age category.

Distribution of employees

Age Gender
% %
100 - 100
80 75
60
50
40
2
20 >
0 0
-13 -14  -15 -13  -14  -15
B <30years Men
30-50 years B Women
B >50years
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Sunnana 12:50, Malmo

On the jointly owned property Arlév Sunnana 12:50 outside Malmao,
during the year, Catena completed.the construction of a terminal within
the framework of the 270,000 square-metre developmentarea. From
there, a large number of companies can distribute their products to-end
users through distribution warehouses, such as city logistics or logis-
tics warehouse facilities. The terminalis often the first establishment
of a complete logistics location that is gradually developed with other
types of properties.

The property is fully leased to one of Catena’s largest customers -
DHL Freight AB, which according to Per Karjer, Vice President, Corpo-
rate Real Estate at DHL Nordic AB, chose Catena because:

, , with growth in the Swedish and international
markets. It is also important that the new
terminal enables us to meet our customers’ needs

and wishes, while also providing more environmen-
tally sound handling.

The building is fully adapted to our needs,
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The market for logistics

properties

An increasingly globalised world has a growing need for international trans-
port. Increased consumption, urbanisation and new consumption patterns
drive the need for national and local transport, intermediate storage and
other logistics services. Major cargo flows along with increased demands
on capital and cost efficiency, as well as environmental concerns, drive the
need for customised and well-located logistics facilities.

GLOBALISATION

X

According to the National Institute of Economic
Research’s (NIER) December forecast, Swedish

GDP at constant prices increased by 3.8 percent

in 2015 and is expected to increase by 3.9 per-

cent in 2016. According to the forecast, following

a few years of negative growth, industrial production is
expected to rise by 3.8 percent in 2015. An increase that
is expected to persist in 2016. Unemployment is expect-
ed to remain high, although an improvement could be
discerned in the second half of 2015. Continued high
unemployment is also considered one of the reasons
behind the low level of inflation, which, in turn underlies
today’s negative repo rate. It is primarily rising consumer
spending in Sweden, fuelled by tax breaks and wealth
accumulation that has driven GDP growth, as well as
increased exports and investment in 2015. Increased
Swedish consumption has also driven cargo flows, partic-
ularly within Swedish retail. Certainly, some signals that

CAPITAL
MARKET

property credit was tightening could be discerned towards
the end of the year. However, combined with low returns
on alternative investments, the year’s favourable financ-
ing, which increased liquidity in the market, increased
investors’ demand for commercial properties in general.
Particularly for properties with stable cash flows, such as
logistics properties.

Increasing national and global cargo flows
Conditions in the logistics sector have changed. Glo-
balisation entails increased separation between produc-
tion and consumption, making international production
networks more commonplace. Production is gradually
becoming more specialised. Different stages
are performed in several countries before the
product finally reaches the country where
it will be consumed. This trend is helping
to increase trade flows globally. Sweden’s
foreign trade, like world trade in general, has
accelerated dramatically since the 1970s. To-
day, Swedish exports account for nearly 50 percent
of the country’s GDP, which is above average for both
the EU and the OECD countries. The Swedish balance of
current payments, which declined in 2014, rose in 2015,
according to the NIER forecast, and is expected to contin-
ue rising in 2016. In terms of goods leaving or arriving in
Sweden, maritime transport is dominant. In 2014, nearly
170 million tonnes of goods from both domestic and
international traffic were handled by Swedish ports, an
increase of 3 percent compared with in 2013. Of this, 11
million tonnes were handled within Sweden.
Globalised production and increased trade place great
demands on both logistics facilities and transport.
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Norra Varalév 31:11. Sketch of the e-commerce
cluster, which began constructionin 2015.

Retail continues to grow

In the aftermath of the financial crisis, it was noted that
growth in retail sales decreased in 2011. Over the ensuing
five-year period, however, the sector has shown a period
of steady growth, and increased by 5.7 percent in 2015.
Favourable conditions for consumption in the form of
low interest rates have increased households’ scope for
consumption. Accordingly, the Swedish retail sector has
fared well, avoiding international political and economic
concerns. Retail confidence indicators show a stronger
position than normal. At the same time, households are
signalling a more pessimistic view than normal, although
that value is roughly in line with the historical average.
Despite a slightly more pessimistic view than normal,
Swedish households currently have very good buying
power thanks to favourable real wage increases, low inter-
est rates and low inflation.

Supermarket sales in Sweden showed strong develop-
ment in 2015, growing by 4.1 percent. This was largely
due to price increases in the sector. In terms of volumes,
the trend was in line with the preceding year. The major
refugee flows over the year impacted the sector. This
is also predicted to have an effect in 2016, while price
increases are expected to weaken over the year.

For infrequently purchased commodities, 2015 was
a very strong year. All segments, except shoe retailers,
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increased their sales over the year. Alongside the effect on
trade in infrequently purchased commodities of the ROT
tax deduction on renovation work, the housing market re-
mained hot, further boosting the aforementioned segments.

e-commerce growing in importance
e-commerce has grown steadily for quite some time and
shows no signs of slowing down. Although retail as a
whole displayed strong growth over the year, e-commerce
is performing even better. The segments children’s items/
toys and building materials showed the strongest increase
in sales, although electronics also performed well during
the year. Internet sales of sports and leisure goods also
showed good growth.

During 2015, e-commerce rose from 6.4 to 6.9 percent
of total retail sales. In other words, online trade remains a
fairly small proportion although that is rising substantially
in certain segments. Infrequently purchased commodities
in particular have driven this trend forwards in recent
years. However, Internet sales of groceries also increased
over the year. In groceries, logistics is the principal
challenge, since many foods require refrigeration during
transportation. To increase geographic coverage, new
cost-effective solutions are required as consumers are
increasingly accustomed to avoiding shipping costs when
ordering online.

Retail trend, e-commerce trend,

current prices growth
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More food online

Online food sales continue to increase year after year.
Although growth is from low levels, as consumers begin
to adopt new purchasing behaviours due to digitisation
and as major players invest in their own solutions, in the
future, we will also see stronger growth as a proportion of
total retail. To date, online food orders account for about

1 percent of the total trade in groceries.

Increasing demands of e-commerce

Increased e-commerce imposes strict demands on
logistics with regard to flexibility, speed proximity and
reliability. In the highly competitive e-commerce sector,
efficient logistics, short lead times and access to storage
are a winning formula.

Stable rental market

As e-commerce continues its sharp growth, the need for
logistics premises will increase among both new and
established retail players, as well as suppliers of logistics
solutions.

In an international perspective, Sweden has high rents
for warehouse and logistics properties, which is attrib-
utable to higher building costs and limited speculative
development. Despite increasing new construction since
2010, most new spaces are built for pre-contracted ten-
ants, meaning that vacancies in new and modern logistics
spaces are very limited. Despite the limited supply of
space, development in rent levels has been weak. How-
ever, increasing differentiation can be discerned. For ex-
ample, rent levels for e-commerce space is slightly higher
than for warehousing. Even looking ahead, rent hikes
are expected to be limited by the considerable supply of
developable land and stable production costs, but also by
strong competition among contractors and project devel-
opers for new assignments in the segment. In Stockholm,
as well as in and around other major cities, the supply of
developable land lower is than in the rest of the country

Vacancy rates
logistics properties

Average rent levels
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and payroll expenses are generally higher, which has driv-
en up rents for newly built spaces in attractive locations.
This is driving a tendency to locate warehouses strategi-
cally but further out from major urban centres and some-
times supplementing these with local distribution termi-
nals. The trend is towards larger distribution centres that
serve increasingly large areas, as European infrastructure
improves and transportation times decrease. E-commerce
is also creating a need for end-customer distribution via
delivery points located near residential areas.

As aresult of increased environmental awareness, rail
transport now accounts for a larger portion of the overall
logistics mix, generating demand for improved access
to container terminals, where cargo can be transferred
between rail and road, for example.

The property managers

Apart from a certain degree of annual growth, the need
for logistics space is relatively constant, while the supply
of new space is more limited. This means that demand

Stockholm region

Together with other parts of the Mdlardalen region and other
key logistics locations, such as Orebro, Norrképing, Katrine-
holm and Soédertdlje, Stockholm comprises a major urban area
and accounts for a large proportion of the country’s cargo
flows. In addition to Catena, logistics premises in the region are
offered by Corem, Kilenkrysset, Sagax and certain local players.
In terms of project development, competition derives primarily
from the major building companies.

Gothenburg region

The country’s second-largest city, Gothenburg, is the centre for
aregion that also includes logistics-intensive towns and cities
such as Boras, Jonkoping, Vaxjo and Nassjo, all of which have
thriving business communities. The city is also home to
Sweden’s largest port, making Gothenburg one of the most
important locations in the country forincoming and outgoing
cargo. In addition to Catena, major property companiesin logis-
tics, such as Prologis, Tribona, Bocksjo, Eklandia and Corem
offer specialised premises. In addition, a few traditional prop-
erty managers, such as Klévern and Kungsleden logistics facili-
ties offer logistics facilities, as do certain local players, such as
Platzer and Harry Sjégren AB. In terms of project development,
competition derives primarily from the major building compa-
nies, such as NCC and Skanska.

Oresund is the largest region in the Nordic countries in terms of
population. Itis also the gateway to the continent. Major cargo
flows for export, import or local consumption are transported
via the Oresund Bridge and a large number of ports in the
Swedish provinces of Skane, and Blekinge, as well as in
Denmark. In addition to Catena, Tribona, Svea Real, Corem,
Wihlborgs and certain local players offer logistics premises. In
terms of project development, competition derives primarily
from the major building and property companies.
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The Barnarps-Krakebo 1:44 property in Jénképing bears Catena’s
colours. During the year, Catena developed a concept profile that clearly
indicates that the property is managed and operated by Catena.
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for logistics properties increases steadily since existing
freight volumes must be handled in existing spaces, re-
gardless of who currently manages the flow of goods.
Few property companies specialise in logistics prop-

erties. In addition to Catena, the larger Swedish listed
companies include Sagax and Corem, which also have
premises for light industry, and Tribona. The latter was
acquired by Catena in January, 2016. Privately owned
Kilenkrysset and international companies Prologis and
Goodman also operate in Sweden.

Customers

The sector’s customers include logistics companies to
whom producers and wholesalers outsource their logis-
tics function through so-called third-party logistics. The
largest companies in the area are, to name a few: DHL,
which is owned by Deutsche Post; PostNord, the devel-
opment of the Nordic postal operations; Schenker, DSV,
Bring and Green Cargo, which operates primarily rail
traffic throughout Sweden. The sector’s customers also
include producers and suppliers who handle their logistics
in-house. This applies particularly to heavy industrial
companies such as Volvo and Electrolux and major trad-
ing companies including ICA and IKEA.

Active investment market

Warehouse and logistics properties represent a sub-
segment of the wider property market, which has been
undergoing a structural transformation since the early
2000s. Previously, the portfolio was largely owned by
the companies using the premises, but a consolidation of
ownership is now underway. Domestic companies such
as Catena, Kilenkrysset, Sagax and Tribona, as well as
foreign players such as Goodman and Prologis, specialise
in the ownership of warehouse and logistics properties.
However, over time, warechouse and logistics properties
have become a property segment in which institutional
actors are also seeking exposure, such as NREP (and
through them, Danish pension funds). Such actors gain
this exposure either indirectly through companies and
property funds, or directly through property investments.
The growing interest in warehouse and logistics proper-
ties is partly attributable to the breakthrough of e-com-
merce, which in the longer term will entail a change to
the distribution chain in the retail sector. The logistics and
warehouse market continues to be characterised by a lack
of attractive investment objects and a wide spread with
respect to such parameters as ownership, size, modernity
and efficiency. This means that most institutional inves-
tors still have a smaller allocation, particularly of logistics
properties, than the segment’s share of the total commer-
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cial property stock. Transaction activity in the segment
has increased since the financial crisis in 2008-2009,
when the level of activity in the property market was
generally low. Norges Bank Investment Management’s
acquisition of 50 percent of Prologis’ European logistics
portfolio for approximately SEK10 billion in 2012 is an
example of this increased interest from institutional play-
ers. Other institutional transactions in recent years include
Sveareal’s divestment of some 850,000 square metres to
Starwood Capitals, of which more than half comprised
logistics facilities. Cordea Savills Nordic Logistics Fund’s
acquisition of approximately 185,000 square metres in
Gothenburg, Boras, Jonkdping and Halmstad. Acquisition
of half of NREP Logistics by PFA Pension of Denmark.
In 2012 and 2013, total transaction volumes approached
the levels noted in the years prior to the financial crisis
and in 2014 logistics properties valued at about SEK 12
billion were sold.

Transaction volumes in 2015 touched/exceeded those
from 2014 with some 14,000 square metres of logistics
space being sold at a value of approximately SEK 15
billion, excluding Catena’s bid for Tribona. This occurred
at declining yields, particularly in prime locations in the
metropolitan regions.

Major transactions completed in 2015 included
NREP’s sale of 31 properties in several locations to a
Danish consortium. The value amounted to approximately
SEK 4.5 billion. NREP’s acquisitions over the year also
included a number of properties in central Sweden, at a
value of SEK 550 million. Other financial transactions
were Pareto’s acquisition of XXL’s central Pilingen
warehouse in Orebro at a value of SEK 300 million.

Major operational acquisitions included Estancia’s
acquisition of nine properties, most of which were lo-
gistics properties, at a value of SEK 900 million. Other
operational acquisitions included W.P. Cary’s Oskarshamn
acquisition at a value of SEK 216 million and Tribona’s
acquisition of seven logistics properties in Malmo, sold
by Er-Ho for SEK 257 million. In addition to its bid for
Tribona, in 2015, Catena acquired 11 existing logistics
properties at a total value of SEK 571.7 million.

On the whole it was thus an attractive transaction and
investment market, and this is expected to continue.

» Sources: HUI, NIER, Traffic Analysis Maritime Traffic 2014
Statistics 2015:12, Catena’s internal analyses. Note that
certain external analyses are updated continuously.
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Contacts
Mikael Halling, Deputy CEO
mikael.halling@catenafastigheter.se
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Rebbelberga 26:37, Angelholm
A logistics warehouse of 15,449 square metres stands on the
property, which is favourably located in a commercial and logistics
estate close to the EG/E20 motorways.

Logent ABis the tenant and holds a long-term contract. Oscar
Andersson, the company’s Business Development Director chose
Catena’s property because:

Catena is an important partner for Logent

and we have been partnering with them

since 2012. Our cooperation enables
continued growth for us as a logistics operator
and, when Logent helps Nordic companies to
sireamline their logistics, energy-efficient logis-
tics facilities, infrastructure and maintenance
are often essential building blocks in driving
continuous improvement and identifying compet-
itive advantages.

What we appreciate most about our partner-
ship is Catena’s flexibility and service-minded-
ness, as well as opportunities to work together to
find new business that benefits us both.

1
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The property portfolio

For the overall property portfolio of strategically located logistics properties,
the contract portfolio is long term. For the most part, tenants are large, well-
established organisations and companies.

Summary of property portfolio

On 31 December 2015, Catena’s property portfolio com-
prised 55 logistics properties (47) located along important
transport routes and population centres in southern and
central Sweden. The total lettable area is approximately
816,800 square metres (753,100). The total rental value
amounted to SEK 511.5 million (480.1) and contractual
annual rental income totalled SEK 488.6 million (459.8).
The economic letting ratio was 95.5 percent (95.8).

Portfolio .
by region Stockholm Gothenburg Oresund

Number of properties 20 16 19
Lettable area,

thousand sq.m. 309.8 291.9 215.1
Fair value, SEK m 2,308.3 1,864.0 1,168.0
Rental value, SEK m 211.9 189.2 110.4
Economic letting

ratio, % 95.0 96.0 97.0
surplus ratio, % 79.0 75.0 70.0

Project portfolio and development rights

Catena has an express ambition to grow, primarily through
new construction. Accordingly, the company has a portfo-
lio of developable projects. On the company’s own books,
these include the Norra Varalév 31:11 and Sothdnan 3 and
19 properties, as well as significant expansion opportunities
at many of the company’s other properties.

The project portfolio also includes acquisition options
for strategically located projects that have reached dif-
ferent stages, ranging from rent negotiations to detailed
planning, in all of the regions where the company oper-
ates. Two major items/options, in particular, are owned
jointly with Peab: the Logistikposition project in Sunnana,
outside Malmo, which offers total developable property
area of 270,000 square metres and the Logistikposition
Helsingborg project, which offers an equal area.

The portfolio is being improved continuously through
constant search processes. Taking the limited availabil-
ity of undeveloped logistics sites, these processes also
encompass developable existing buildings.

» Read more about Catena’s projects on pages 22-23.

» A complete list of properties is given on pages 54-55.

Income and rent

Over the year, rental income rose by 7.6 percent to

SEK 464.2 million (431.3), mainly due to property
acquisitions, completed projects and continued strong net
lettings. Despite the newly acquired spaces, at 96 percent
(96), the letting ratio remained high as a result of stra-
tegically located logistics facilities and focused leasing
efforts. Income from contracts with a maturity of more
than three years accounts for approximately 67 percent
(73) of Catena’s contracted annual rent. This entails stable
income with no appreciable variation between periods,
except when affected by acquisitions and sales.

Letting and occupancy

During the year, 83 (56) new contracts were signed for

a total area of 96,374 square metres (127,300) and a
contract value of SEK 70.1 million (79.1). At the same
time, 60 contracts (27) were cancelled for a total area

of 145,549 square metres (59,400) and a contract value
of SEK 85.9 million (32.9). Accordingly, the net effect
on the contract portfolio amounted to a negative 49,175
square metres. These tenants will be moving out over the
upcoming quarters and the process of re-letting is contin-
uously ongoing.

The contract value on new tenancies during the year
amounted to SEK 64.4 million (101.5) but only SEK 63.3
million (64.2) for discontinued tenancies. This entails a
net increase in new tenancies at a value of SEK 1.1 mil-
lion (37.3).

Lease structure

The contract portfolio is long term and tenants consist pri-
marily of large, secure and well-established logistics, in-
dustrial and commercial companies. This lessens the risk
of losses driven by customers’ insolvency. At 31 Decem-
ber 2015, Catena’s ten largest tenants accounted for 59.2
percent (65) of the Group’s contractual rental income. The
leases for these ten tenants expire within one to 19 years.
On the balance sheet date, the average remaining lease
period remained stable at 4.3 years (4.7). The table on the
next page shows Catena’s largest customers. However, it
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Catena’s ten largest shareholders per 31
December 2015

DHL
Logent AB
Rusta AB Industrial companies, 3
PostNord

TD Tech Data AB

Gronsakshallen Sorunda AB

Intersport AB

City of Gothenburg - Education Department
DS Smith Packaging AB

Lindab Sverige AB

Client categories, %

i

X . Other, 6
Educational companies, 3

Trading companies, 36

O e NS PN

Logistics companies, 52

[y
S

is worth noting that many of the companies are represent-
ed by a number of local decision-making units.

» A table showing the maturity structure of the leases is

presented on page 79.

Net operating surplus and surplus ratio

The net operating surplus, that is, rental income less

property expenses and property administration, rose by
7.9 percent over the year to SEK 351.3 million (325.7).
This is primarily a result of the increased revenues, the

continued strong letting ratio and efficiency improve-

ments, particularly in the area of energy. Among other

things, Catena has continued to invest in energy-saving

technology, more sustainable heating and better lighting

and ventilation systems.

Property expenses rose by 6.9 percent to SEK 112.9
million (105.6), mainly as a result of the larger property

portfolio. For comparable portfolios, property expenses

have risen by SEK 3.0 million due to increased repairs.

Profit from property management

Profit from property management, that is, reported profit

with changes in value and taxes reversed, rose by 26.6
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percent to SEK 259.3 million (204.9). This is an effect of
the acquired properties, revenue-increasing investments
and lower financial costs, which decreased from SEK
95.1 million to SEK 94.3 million, a result of completed
refinancing and lower market interest rates.

Profit from property management is basically the
company’s operating cash flow, which amounted to
SEK 259.3 million.

Results
Profit for the year after tax rose by 66 percent from SEK
344.2 million to SEK 571.5 million. The increase is partly
the result of improved profit from property management.
Profit was also affected by changes of SEK 102.2
million (negative 6.5) realised in the value of properties.
The change is primarily attributable to the “Haga Norra”
project properties in Solna, which were sold during the
year. Unrealised changes in the value of the property
portfolio during the year, relating largely to the Hogsbo
21:2 property and the project properties in Solna, of about
SEK 198.3 million (392.5) also affected profit. The value
changes are mainly the result of projects being imple-
mented well and good management work.

Profit from property

Operating surplus management
SEK'm SEK m
400 300
300
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200
100
100
_— ) ——
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Property portfolio Fair Number of
development, SEK m value properties
Property portfolio at beginning

of year 5,750.9 47
Acquisitions 566.7 11
Investments in existing properties 131.6

Sales -1,307.2 -3
Unrealised changes in value 198.3

Total investment properties 5,340.3 55

Profit was also affected by changes in the value of deriva-
tives, which increased from a negative SEK 150.6 million
to a positive SEK 30.5 million, mainly due to long-term
market interest rates having risen during the year.

The unrealised changes in value are of an accounting
nature and do not affect the existing cash flow.
» Read more about profit for the year on pages 66-67.

Development of property portfolio

Acquisitions

To increase operational volumes, strengthen its positions
in the various regions, broaden its customer base and
develop its concepts, particularly for e-commerce, Catena
acquired, over the year, properties and property compa-
nies for a combined fair value of SEK 571.7 million. In
the summary of the development of the property portfo-
lio, the final value is given. That is, the property value
adjusted for agreements made subsequently and that have
thus affected the final value, which amounts to SEK 566.7
million.

Catena also acquired approximately 60 percent of a
company that owns the Norra Varalov 31:11 development
property in Angelholm. The property comprises 112,000
square metres of land where the detailed development
plan permits logistics buildings of about 56,000 square
metres. This affords Catena substantial opportunities to

. o g . Barnarps-Krakebo 1:56 - a modern e-commerce warehouse. i
build new logistics premises close to the E6. P v

Development of Property portfolio
Average contract period Letting ratio property portfolio by region. Projects
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Catena also acquired 49 percent of Logistikposition
Katrineholm AB from the Municipality of Katrineholm.
Logistikposition Katrineholm AB, which owns the So-
thonan 3 and 19 properties in Katrineholm, was previous-
ly owned jointly by Catena AB and the municipality. In
connection with the acquisition, Logistikposition Katrine-
holm AB signed an agreement to acquire 75,000 square
metres of land with title adjacent to the existing Sothénan
3 and 19 properties.

During the year, Catena initiated the acquisition of Tri-
bona AB, which was completed in January, 2016. Tribona
develops and manages logistics properties in growing
communities in Sweden and Denmark. As per 31 Decem-
ber 2015, the property portfolio comprised 37 properties,
of which 36 are located in Sweden and one in Denmark,
valued at approximately SEK 5.2 billion. The acquisition
strengthens Catena’s presence in all of its regions. The
acquisition also increases the number of tenants represent-
ing various sectors, broadening Catena’s market exposure.
Particularly in the prioritised food sector. The combined
portfolios also provide a good foundation for an enhanced
and efficient management organisation. On the whole, the
acquisition forms a basis for further expansion.

» Read more about the acquisition of Tribona on pages 24-25.

» Read more under Important Events on pages 56-57.

Investments in existing properties

Catena invested SEK 131.6 million (180.4) in existing
properties, with most of that amount pertaining to
investments in the Barnarps-Krékebo 1:44 property in
Jonkoping, the Sothonan 3 property in Katrineholm and
the Dikartorp 3:12 property in Jérfélla.

Disposals

At the same time, three properties with a total value of
SEK 1,457.5 million were divested to streamline opera-
tions and create an attractive portfolio of logistics proper-
ties in the regions in which Catena has chosen to operate.

Closely related transactions
Catena has acquired the Férmannen 4 property Angel-
holm for a property value of SEK 120 million from
Backahill AB and sold the project properties in Solna to

Fabege AB, which will initially contribute profit before
tax of about SEK 100 million to Catena.
These transactions are considered related party trans-

actions and have therefore been subject to and approved

by Catena’s Annual General Meeting and Extraordinary
General Meeting.

Profit for the year includes smaller related party trans-
actions with AB Elmsiters in Enhoérna, Backahill AB and
Hansan AB for consulting services.

Property acquisition Space, Rentalincome/ Value,

Property Type sq. m. Region Municipality year,SEKm SEKm Transfer date
Férmannen 4 Inventories 22,241 Oresund Angelholm 11.9 120.3 5 May 2015
Misteln 1 Inventories 1,900 Oresund Ahus 1.5 20.0 24 June 2015
Tahe 1:64 Inventories 29,209 Gothenburg Jonkodping 14.9 60.0 1 July 2015
Rebbelberga 26:37 Inventories 15,449 Oresund Angelholm 9.1 115.0 6 July 2015
Norra Varalév 31:11  Projects Projects Oresund Angelholm 0.0 18.6 6 July 2015
Barnarps-Krakebo 1:56 Inventories 4,030 Gothenburg Jonkoping 2.7 35.0 1 September 2015
Vindtunneln 2 Terminal 16,391 Gothenburg Boras 9.2 84.0 1 September 2015
Norra Varalév 31:5  Inventories 4,056 Oresund Angelholm 1.8 22.0 2 October 2015
Rebbelberga 26:38 Inventories 975 Oresund Angelholm 0.5 6.2 10 October 2015
Postiljonen 1 Terminal 6,702 Gothenburg Vaxjo 6.4 79.6 4 November 2015
Sockret 4 Inventories 4,618 Oresund Malmo 0.0 11.0 2 December 2015
Total 105,571 58.0 571.7

» Read more about the acquisitions on pages 56-57.

Property divestments Value, Earnings,

Property Type Space, sq. m. Region Municipality SEKm SEKm Vacated
Storheden 1:75 Inventories 1,450 Stockholm Lulea 7.0 0.8 1 April 2015
Stora Frésunda 2 and

Hagalund 2:2 Projects 40,723 Projects Solna 1,450.0 100.5 23 June 2015
Slaggan 1 Projects Land Oresund Ljungby 0.5 0.9 13 October 2015
Total 42,173 1,457.5 102.2

&

Contacts
Peter Andersson, CFO

peter.andersson@catenafastigheter.se



Stockholm region

Tobias Karlsson, asset manager for the
Vasslan 1 property in Stockholm among others.

Key data 2015 2014 %
Number of properties 20 21 -4.8
Lettable area, thousand sq.m. 309.8 3113 -0.5
Fair value, SEK m 2,308.3 2,193.9 5.2
Rental value, SEK m 2119 210.7 0.6
Economic letting ratio, % 95.0 94.9 0.1
Surplus ratio, % 79.0 78.5 0.6
Contractual annualrent, SEKm 201.2 200.0 0.6
Rental income, SEK m 194.9 194.3 0.3
Net operating surplus, SEK m 153.2  152.7 0.3
Profit from property

management, SEK m 146.8 131.6 11.6
Number of contracts 72 76 -5.3

As a result of active market processing, it was possible to
maintain an exceptionally high letting ratio of about 95
percent. Consequently, rental income rose slightly to SEK
194.9 million. The surplus ratio also improved slightly
from 78.5 to 79 percent. This is a consequence, not only
of the high letting ratio, but also of investments in cost
and environmental efficiency.

Renegotiations and new leases increased the average
lease period from 4.7 to 4.9 years.

Customers

Customers, several of whom increased their space over
the year, include DHL, one of the largest companies in
third-party logistics, as well as reputable companies such
as Kopparbergs bryggeri, DS Smith and Tech Data, one
of the world’s leading IT distributors, all of whom impose
considerable demands on security. The list of customers
also includes Internet distributors such as Footway and
Caliroots, as well as food distributors Gronsakshallen
Sorunda and a new customer Matsmart.

Significant events in 2015

* The acquisition of 49 percent of Logistikposition
Katrineholm AB, which owns the properties Sothdnan
3 and 19 in Katrineholm, making Catena the sole owner
of the company.
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* The acquisition of 75,000 square metres of land with
title, adjacent to the S6thonan 3 and 19 properties in
Katrineholm, which have already been already leased.

* In order to increase Catena’s lettable area, work began
on a 10,000 square metre volume terminal in Katrine-
holm. It can handle all types of volume goods with
different requirements in terms of fittings and tempera-
ture. Van Dieren Logistics, with regular deliveries from
southern Europe, which have capacity for development,
has already been contracted as a tenant for a portion of
the space.

+ Reinforced management organisation.

Priorities in 2016

* Increase lettable space. Primarily through new construc-
tion on existing or acquired land, but also, to achieve
faster growth, through the acquisition of well-situated
modern logistics properties with reliable customers. All
at carefully considered prices.

 Continued focus on energy efficiency in line with the
company’s sustainability responsibilities and that im-
proves the surplus ratio at the same time.

* Increased rent to compensate for added value delivered
to customers.

Project portfolio

The region offers a limited number of developable lo-
gistics locations. Catena’s more attractive development
projects include acquisition options in Nykvarn, Katrine-
holm, Orebro and Norrkdping. The projects have reached
various stages ranging from lease negotiations to detailed
development planning.

Contacts
Maths Carreman, Regional Manager Stockholm
maths.carreman@catenafastigheter.se
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Gothenburg region

Magnus Bergkvist, business developer for
projectsincluding the Barnarps-Krakebo
1:56 property in Jonkoping.

Change,
Key data 2015 | 2014 %
Number of properties 16 12 33.3
Lettable area, thousand sq.m. 2919 2353 24.1
Fair value, SEK m 1,864.0 1,505.2 23.8
Rental value, SEK m 189.2 158.6 19.3
Economic letting ratio, % 95.5 97.8 -2.4
surplus ratio, % 75.0 71.9 4.3
Contractual annualrent, SEK m  180.6  155.1 16.4
Rental income, SEK m 161.8| 125.8 28.6
Net operating surplus, SEK m 121.4 90.4 34.3
Profit from property
management, SEK m 121.6 80.8 50.0
Number of contracts 82 75 9.3

Despite the newly acquired spaces, active market pro-
cessing meant that it was possible to keep the letting ratio
exceptionally high. As a consequence of 29 percent higher
income and the environmental and cost efficiency mea-
sures implemented in the properties, the surplus ratio also
rose from 71.9 percent to 75 percent. The average contract
period remains at 3.8 years (3.8 years).

Customers

Growing customers include the major third-party logis-

tics companies such as DHL, PostNord and Logent and
well-established institutions such as Erikshjélpen and
companies like Santa Maria, Dagab (Axfood), Intersport
and Selector Logistik AB which are at the forefront with
regard to automated picking in e-commerce. In Borés, two
new customers have been contracted who are engaged in
third-party logistics: Albini & Pitigliani and NTG Logistics.

Significantevents in 2015
« Significantly increased lettable space through, among
other things, the acquisition of:

- the Vindtunneln 2 property in Borés, close to national
route 40 and Gothenburg Airport with a logistics ware-
house of more than 16,000 square metres adjacent to
Catena’s existing properties;

- the Tahe 1:64 property, with a logistics warehouse of
more than 29,000 square metres plus development
rights for 17,400 square metres and the

Barnarps-Krékebo 1:56 property, a 21,000 square-
metre plot with a 4,000 square-metre rational logistics
warehouse, both in Jonkdping;

- the Postiljonen 1 property in Vaxjo with a 7,000
square-metre terminal strategically located near the
airport and major thoroughfares.

Strengthened management structure, including local
representation in the southern Swedish province of
Smaéland.

The fully developed Hogsbo 21:2 property was sold
for a value of SEK 580 million, with the new owner
gaining access in the first quarter of 2016.

Priorities in 2016
 Continued focus on energy efficiency in line with

Catena’s sustainability responsibilities. The surplus

ratio is improved at the same time.

+ Continued focus on increasing the business area’s
lettable logistics space by:

- actively seeking land for logistics projects in selected
areas in Gothenburg;

- continuing to develop properties in strategic locations
in the region, such as Boras and Jonkoping, but also
adjacent to container terminals;

- acquiring and developing existing modern, strategical-
ly-located logistics facilities;

* continuing activities to increase awareness of Catena in
the Gothenburg area.

Project portfolio

The project portfolio includes both opportunities to devel-
op existing locations, as well as developable land in the
already prioritised locations around Jonkdping, Borés and
Niéssjo.

Contacts
Johan Franzén, Regional Manager Gothenburg

@ 7L A johan.franzen@catenafastigheter.se

Rental income/ Fair value/
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but also the company’s offering to customers in
the food sector.
* Active market processing, with a large number of cus-
tomer meetings, not only reduced vacancy rates, but also
L identified a significant number of potential customers.

Priorities in 2016

+ Continued expansion of lettable space, both through
investments in existing properties and acquisitions.
Primarily in sub-areas where the business area already

operates, that is, Malmd, Helsingborg and Angelholm.

Johan Lundius, project manager at the Sunnané Continued focus on energy efficiency in line with Cate-

1253 prrarpEDly o M ), Sy @iicrs, na’s sustainability responsibilities and that improves the

surplus ratio at the same time.

Change,
Key data 2015 2014 % + Continued focus on new and existing customer relations
Number of properties 19 13 46.2 to retain tenants and fill newly added spaces.
Lettable area, thousand sq.m. 21511 165.8 297, Continued development of the e-commerce cluster in
Fair value, SEK m 1,168.0 816.8 43.0 ..
Rental value, SEK m 110.4 842 311  Angelholm.
Economic letting ratio, % 96.7 93.5 3.4

01 Project portfolio

surplus ratio, % 70.0 70.1

Contractual annual rent, SEKm ~ 106.8 ~ 78.7  35.7 Inparticular, the region offers two major sites that are
Rental income, SEK m 95.7 85.5 11.9  owned jointly with Peab. The Logistikposition Malmo
Net operating surplus, SEK m 67.1 59.9 12.0  project in Sunnand, which offers total developable proper-
Profit from property . .-
management, SEK m 76.0 56.3 350 tyareaof 270,000 square metres and the Logistikposition
Number of contracts 103 80 ogg Helsingborg project, in Tostarp, which offers an equal

Desni . . . area. The region also includes the 112,000 square-metre
espite property space increasing, active customer Norra Varalov 31:11 site, where the new e-commerce
cluster E-City in Angelholm is emerging. The detailed

development plan allows for logistics buildings of about

processing resulted in the letting ratio increasing signifi-
cantly, from 93.5 percent to 96.7 percent. Rental revenues
rose by 11..9 percent to SEK 95.7 mi'llion. {Xs a conse- 56,000 square metres.
quence of increased letting and efficiency improvements

being implemented, the favourable profit ratio could be

maintained. Renegotiations and new leases increased the

average lease period from 3.8 to 4.0 years.

Customers
Since previously, customers already include major players
in third party logistics, such as DHL and PostNord. But

also well-established and stable companies, such as Lind- Contacts

Goran Jénsson, Regional Manager Oresund
goran.jonsson@catenafastigheter.se

ab and Cramo. During the year, a number of new custom-
ers, such as Logent, Van Dieren, KM-Pack and Freja were

also added. . .
Rental income/ Fair value/
P . net operating surplus economic letting ratio
Significant events in 2015 P g surp 9
. ) L SEK'm SEKm  SEKm %
» Several acquisitions were made, particularly in Angel- 100 100 1,500 100
V
S . . ,
holm, which significantly increased the business area’s 2 75 1,200 80
lettable area.
. . 900 60
* The establishment of the e-commerce cluster in 50 50
Angelholm, offering unique opportunities for growing 600 40
25
e-commerce. » 300 20
* The management organisation was strengthened, in- 0 0 0 0
. ) . . i -12 -13 -14 -15 12 -13 -14 -
cluding with a service that will develop the Malmo area 12 13 14 13
Rental income Actual property value

B Operating surplus B Economic letting ratio
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Property valuation

Combined with effective procedures, clear guidelines and a thorough
approach create the right conditions for an accurate valuation of
assets, as well as for stable earnings and financing.

PROPERTIES'
CURRENT
VALUE

DEVELOPMENT

Valuation model

Like most listed property companies,
Catena has opted to recognise its invest-

ment properties at fair value, in accordance with IAS 40.

Catena performs quarterly internal valuations of all of

its investment properties. The internal valuation is used

to determine the fair values recognised in the balance

sheet, and is based on a six-year cash-flow model for each

individual property. The model is based on actual income

and expenses, adjusted for a normalised future earnings

capacity in terms of both income and expenses. When
assessing the future earnings capacity, factors taken into
account include the expected changes in the rent level
based on the current rent of the individual
lease compared with the market rent for
each date of maturity, and changes in

PROPERTY

letting ratio and property costs. The

yield value has then been calculated

in a cash-flow statement per property.
The yield value includes the value of the

VALLE

assessed future payment flows over the next
five years and the present value of the assessed value of
the property in five years’ time. The yield value has then
been adjusted for the value of on-going projects and land
with unutilised development rights.

Changes in value of investment properties

To verify the internal valuations, external valuations of a
selection of the company’s properties are also carried out.
In 2015, Cushman & Wakefield valued about 63 percent
of the portfolio, representing a value of SEK 3,374.0
million.

Project developmentis an important part of Catena’s business
and also affects the value of a property. The picture shows
new construction at the Sothénan 3 property in Katrineholm.




Jordbromalm 4:33, outside Stockholm, is one of
the properties valued externally during the year.

A certain discrepancy is permitted between the internal
valuation and the fair value before the fair value is adjust-
ed. The discrepancy should be within a range controlled
by a permitted discrepancy from the established direct
yield requirement of +/-0.25 percent. Only when the
deviation exceeds or falls short of this range is the real
value adjusted. This discrepancy is accepted since there is
always an element of uncertainty in the estimated value.

Significant variables
Compilation of outcomes for significant variables and the
normalised amounts used in the internal valuation model:

Normalised
Actual out- values,
come, total total
Rental value, SEK m 511.5 528.3
Economic letting ratio, % 95.5 86.8
Contractual annual rent, SEK m 488.6 458.7
Operating surplus before
property administration, SEK m 377.6 431.6
Property yield before property
administration costs, % % 7.1 8.1
Surplus ratio before property
admin. % 81.3 94.1
Discount rate 10.1

» For definitions, see page 115.
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The parameters that significantly impact the value of

a property are the discount rate and the rental value.
Assumptions including interest rates, debt/equity ratio,
inflation assumptions, the required return on paid-in capi-
tal, property location, tenant structure, etc. are included in
the discount rate. Rental value reflects the market’s view
of what tenants are willing to pay for property space. A
change of +/-1 percent in these parameters impacts the
estimated fair value:

Effect
Change +1% -1%
Discount rate, SEK m -257 152
Rental value, SEK m 211 -318

Other corrective parameters are the property’s develop-
ment potential in the form of, for example, development
rights.
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List of properties by region

Value Assessment Rental Contracted

Property Postal address Address year value, SEKt value, SEKt rent, SEKt Inventories

1. Basfiolen 7 Norrképing Moa Martinsons gata 10 A 1983 4,196 522 522 0
2. Dikartorp 3:12 Jarfalla Passadvagen 8-10 1977 140,299 16,603 16,603 29,586
3. Godsvagnen 6 Orebro Terminalgatan 2 1992 65,916 9,672 9,672 19,600
4. Jordbromalm 4:33 Haninge Lillsjovagen 19 2005 157,267 17,686 17,686 23,547
5. Mosas 4:57 Orebro Paketvagen 6 1970 31,199 4,186 4,156 12,089
6. Mosas 4:66 Orebro Paketvagen 10 Spec. 0 7,174 7,174 0
7. Morby 5:28 Nykvarn Morbyvagen 21 2009 33,000 11,628 11,628 0
8. Nattskiftet 11 Stockholm Elektrav. 15 / Drivhjulsv. 42 1996 14,528 27,066 26,482 25,484
9. Regulatorn 2 Huddinge Elektronv. 1 / Regulatorv. 10 1967 144,117 31,536 27,606 45,203
10. Slottshagen 2:1 Norrképing Kommendantvagen 5 Spec. 0 8,226 7,971 0
11. Sothénan 19 Katrineholm Terminalgatan 8 Land 864 0 0 0
12. Sothénan 3 Katrineholm Industrigatan 7 1986 11,886 4,200 3,872 0
13. Sorby Urfjall 38:2 Gavle Elektrikergatan 4 1990 4,427 763 763 0
14. Terminalen 1 Hallsberg Hallsberg terminal 12, 14, 19 Spec. 0 11,950 11,950 0
15. Tuvdangen 1 Sodertalje Morabergsvagen 25 2000 19,587 2,366 2,366 0
16. Torsjo 2:49 Orebro Paketvagen 1, 3 2004 172,620 30,390 30,390 55,255
17. Vanda 1 Kista Vandagatan 3 1990 168,200 22,023 16,387 23,240
18. Vasslan 1 Arsta Sockengrand 2 1986 42,510 4,468 4,468 0
19. Vardshuset 3 Sundsvall Vardshusvdgen 5 1985 3,114 762 762 0
20. Ostanvinden 5 Karlstad Ostanvindsgatan 4 1983 2,585 725 725 0
Total Stockholm Region 1,016,315 211,947 201,181 234,004

21. Backa 23:5 Hisings Backa Exportgatan 14-16 Spec. 540 16,165 16,165 7,300
22. Backa 97:10 Hisings Backa Exportgatan 43 1979 48,873 8,886 8,886 13,878
23. Barnarps-Krakebo 1:44  Jénképing Mobelvagen 39 1991 50,488 16,787 11,272 34,126
24. Barnarps-Krakebo 1:56  Jénképing Stolsvagen 2 2001 15,988 2,699 2,699 4,030
25. Hogsbo 21:2 Vastra Frolunda J A Pripps gata 2 1976 258,569 55,963 55,963 0
26. Kallbacksryd 1:408 Bramhult Tvinnargatan 17 1990 4,580 541 541 0
27. Lagret 1 Ndssjo Terminalgatan 6 2004 52,158 16,227 16,227 0
28. Postiljonen 1 Vaxjo Nylandavagen 2 Spec. 0 6,416 6,416 0
29. Tahe 1:64 Taberg Malévagen 2 1980 68,534 14,865 14,865 29,209
30. Tappen 1 Boras Lamellgatan 1 1984 15,568 2,752 2,633 5,700
31. Varla 6:15 Kungsbacka Kabelgatan 5 1980 69,164 14,961 14,961 25,006
32. Vindtunneln 1 Boras Vevgatan 18 2002 69,011 10,739 10,739 16,897
33. Vindtunneln 2 Boras Segloravagen 6 2006 72,000 7,612 5,473 16,391
34. Adelmetallen 1 Joénkoping Industrigatan 7 1976 53,798 7,415 7,415 0
35. Alghunden 3 Joénkoping Muttervagen 3 1983 13,212 1,790 1,790 0
36. Attehdgen 2 Jonkoping Herkulesvagen 56 1987 24,825 5,366 4,604 8,709
Total Gothenburg Region 817,308 189,185 180,648 161,246

37. Arnulf Ofverland 1 Kristianstad Estrids vag 2 1992 4,113 714 714 0
38. Bronsringen 1, 3 Oxie Bronsgjutaregatan 4 2008 45,159 7,736 7,736 0
39. Férmannen 4 Angelholm Transportgatan 13 1993 58,150 11,898 11,898 22,241
40. Hasthagen 4 Helsingborg Landskronav. 5, 7 A-E 2005 69,177 19,823 17,658 38,481
41. Konen 5 Halmstad Kristinehedsvagen 10 2011 4,586 1,045 1,045 0
42. Kopparverket 11 Helsingborg Stormgatan 11 2007 96,000 6,874 6,874 26,600
43. Kroksabeln 17 Helsingborg Muskoétgatan 11 1971 18,776 2,877 1,963 7,416
44. Kodpingegarden 1 Helsingborg Trintegatan 10, 13, 15 2004 120,849 24,066 24,066 14,403
45. Lejonet 6 Astorp Bangatan 7 1973 2,401 907 907 0
46. Lejonet 7 Astorp Bangatan 9A 1995 8,232 2,671 2,671 0
47. Misteln 1 Ahus Tappetleden 1 2011 9,428 1,447 1,447 1,900
48. Norra Varalov 31:11 Angelholm Helsingborgsvagen 529 Land 0 0 0 0
49. Norra Varaldv 31:5 Angelholm Produktionsvagen 11 2011 7,988 1,803 1,803 4,056
50. Rebbelberga 26:37 Angelholm Framtidsgatan 3 1999 26,336 9,118 9,118 15,449
51. Rebbelberga 26:38 Angelholm Framtidsgatan 5 1998 3,229 552 504 975
52. Remmen 1 Astorp Ji-Te gatan 9/Persbogatan 1-3 1985 11,519 3,621 3,621 0
53. Sockret 4 Malmo Lodgatan 11 1,979 10,582 462 0 4,618
54. Terminalen 3 Malmo Terminalgatan 7 Spec. 0 12,358 12,358 0
55. Terminalen 4 Malmo Terminalgatan 5 1979 14,111 2,413 2,410 0
Total Oresund Region 510,636 110,384 106,793 136,139

TOTAL 2,344,259 511,515 488,621 531,389
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Important events

h » Nya Svensk FastighetsFinansiering AB
(Nya SFF) was launched — a newly formed
finance company with a covered MTN
programme of SEK 8 billion. The compa-
ny, which is owned by Catena AB, Dids Fastigheter AB,
Fabege AB, Platzer Fastigheter Holding AB and Wihl-
borgs Fastigheter AB — each with a holding of 20 percent
— commenced financing operations in February 2015.

» A contract was signed for the sale of a smaller property
in Luled (which is not a priority area for Catena) for a
property value of SEK 7 million, with Catena relinquish-
ing possession on 1 April 2015.

» Acquisition of the Municipality of Katrineholm’s 49
percent holding in Logistikposition Katrineholm AB,
which was formerly owned jointly with Catena AB and
which owns the Sothonan 3 and 19 properties in Ka-
trineholm. The property value of the existing properties
was SEK 35 million. The purchase consideration for the
company amounted to SEK 6 million. The acquisition
makes Logistikposition Katrineholm AB a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Catena. In connection with the acquisition,
Logistikposition Katrineholm AB signed an agreement for
the acquisition of 75,000 square metres of land with title
adjacent to the existing Sothonan 3 and 19 properties.

» Through a corporate acquisition, Catena acquired the
Férmannen 4 property in Angelholm from Backahill Fas-
tigheter AB for a property value of SEK 120 million. The
transaction, which was made with one of Catena’s major
shareholders, was conditional on a decision by Catena’s
Annual General Meeting on 28 April 2015. There is a
logistics warehouse of 22,200 square metres on the prop-
erty, which is well located in a trade and logistics area
closely adjacent to the E6/E20 motorway. The property
has two tenants, with the larger lease expiring in 2023.

» Catena’s project properties Stora Frosun-

da 2 and Hagalund 2:2 in Solna were sold.

The divestment was made for a property

value of SEK 1,450 million with 23 June as
the transfer date. The transaction, which was made with
the closely-related party Fabege AB, was conditional on a
decision taken by the Extraordinary General Meeting on
23 June.

» The Misteln 1 property in Ahus was acquired for a
property value of SEK 20 million, with Catena taking
possession on 24 June. This recently constructed property
has 1,900 square metres of space.

» Catena has signed an agreement to acquire, through a
corporate transaction, the Tahe 1:64 property in Jonkdping
for an underlying property value of SEK 60 million.
Located on the property is a logistics warchouse of more
than 29,000 square metres. The transfer date was 1 July.

» Catena signed an agreement to acquire the Rebbelberga
26:37 logistics property in Agelholm through a corporate
acquisition. The property has some 15,000 square metres
of space at a property value of SEK 115 million. In addi-
tion, 60 percent of a development area in Angelholm with
a property value of SEK 18.6 million. Possession of the
property took place on 6 July.

» Through a corporate acquisition, Catena

acquired the Barnarps-Krakebo 1:56 prop-
q erty in Jonkoping at an underlying prop-

erty value of SEK 35 million. The 21,000
square-metre site, with is well situated on the Torsvik
industrial estate close to the E4 motorway, houses a leased
4,000 square-metre logistics warehouse.

» Catena acquired the Vindtunneln 2 property in Boras.
The transaction was made as a corporate acquisition at
an underlying property value of SEK 80 million. On the
property, which is located near national route 40 and
Gothenburg Airport, there is a leased logistics warehouse

of more than 16,000 square metres.
d » Catena acquired the Norra Varalov 31:5

property in Angelholm. The transaction was

carried out as a corporate acquisition for a

property value of SEK 22 million. On the

property, which is strategically located directly adjacent
to the Norra Varaldv development site acquired in the
second quarter, is a leased logistics warehouse of more
than 4,000 square metres.

» Catena signed an agreement to acquire the Postiljonen
1 property in Vaxjo. The transaction was carried out as a
corporate acquisition at an underlying property value of



Barnarps-Krakebo 1:44 in Jonkdping, with
the long row of doors typical of a terminal.
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SEK 80 million. On the property, which is strategically
located close to an airport and major thoroughfares, is a

leased terminal of nearly 7,000 square metres. The proper-
ty, which complements the company’s logistics positions
in Jonkoping and Néssjo came into Catena’s possession at
the beginning of November.

» Catena expanded its senior management with the addi-
tion of Lena Haraldsson, responsible for the Malmo area
and for logistics properties in the food sector. The man-
agement team will subsequently consist of eight people.

» Catena acquired all of Klovern AB’s 14,377,428 shares,
representing 29.55 percent of the share capital in Tribona
AB for a cash consideration of SEK 42 per share. At the
same time, Catena submitted a public takeover bid to the
other shareholders in Tribona to acquire all remaining
shares issued by Tribona. As payment for eight shares

in Tribona, Catena offered three newly issued shares in
Catena. At the time at which the offer was made, this
corresponded to an offer value of SEK 45 per share. As an
alternative to the exchange option, Catena offered a cash
consideration of SEK 42 per share in Tribona.

» On 16 December, Catena signed an agreement to sell

the Hogsbo 21:2 property in Gothenburg, with Catena
relinquishing possession in mid-January 2016. The sale
was made at a property value of SEK 580 million. The
transaction strengthens Catena’s cash position by about
SEK 220 million.

Significant events after the end of the year
Following the expiry of the acceptance period for the
public takeover offer on 5 February 2016, 94.5 percent of
Tribona’s shareholders had accepted Catena’s bid. Among
Tribona’s shareholders, 41.6 percent chose the exchange
option. As a consequence, an additional 7,593,585 Catena
shares will be issued, with the total number of Catena
shares amounting to 33,235,506. Share capital thus in-
creased to SEK 146,236,226.

Catena initiated a compulsory redemption of the
remaining shares in Tribona and de-listed Tribona’s shares
from the Nasdaq Stockholm exchange. The final day of
trading in Tribona’s shares was 22 February 2016.

Tribona will be included in Catena’s financial state-
ments as of the interim report for the first quarter of 2016.

Tribona’s personnel have been offered employment at
Catena.
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Market outlook

Over time, the market for logistics properties is driven by
increased goods flows and growing retail trade, partic-
ularly e-commerce. Consequently, demand for Catena’s
well-situated and, for their purpose well-suited and
environmentally efficient, logistics spaces is expected to
remain good in 2016.

The availability of modern, strategically located logis-
tics premises, preferably adjacent to container terminals,
is limited. For this reason, we expect the letting ratio at
our properties to remain high. The availability of devel-
opable land with suitable planning permission is also
limited, providing opportunities to move forward with
new production at our existing development sites.

Concluded agreement negotiations also indicate stable
rent levels in our existing portfolio. In addition, as a result
of increased space efficiency, we expect increased rental
income per square metre for our newer holdings of larger
buildings and newly developed properties.

Combined with favourable access to capital at low
interest rates, this means that the transaction market for
efficient, energy-smart and suitably located logistics prop-
erties remains good. Through acquisitions and property
development, we perceive good opportunities to expand
our operations over the coming years.

Appropriation of surplus

Proposed distribution of earnings
The following amounts are at the disposal of the Annual

General Meeting:
SEK
962,389,868.67
33,902,102.31
996,291,970.98

Accumulated profit
Netresult for the year
Total

The Board of Directors and CEO propose that the avail-

able profit be distributed in the following manner:
SEK

To be distributed to shareholders:
SEK 3.00 per share

Brought forward to new account
Total

99,706,518.00
896,585,452.98
996,291,970.98

The Board of Directors’ statement pursuant to
Chapter 18, Section 4 of the Swedish Companies
Act

The Board of Directors’ proposal

In the proposed appropriation of earnings, the Board of
Directors proposes to the 2016 Annual General Meeting
that Catena pay a dividend of SEK 3.00 per share for the
2015 financial year, which entails a total dividend pay-
ment of SEK 99,706,518 (76,925,763). From the annual
accounts it can be seen that Catena’s consolidated equity

ratio amounts to 35.7 percent. Following the proposed
dividend, the consolidated equity ratio is expected to be
approximately 34.7 percent. One of Catena’s financial
targets is that the consolidated equity ratio should be a
minimum of 30 percent.

Explanatory statement by the Board

In light of the aforementioned, the Board believes that the
proposed dividend to shareholders is warranted consider-
ing the stipulations in Chapter 17, Section 3, Paragraph 2
and 3 of the Swedish Companies Act. The Board is of the
opinion that there is full cover for the company’s restrict-
ed equity following the proposed dividend. After the
proposed dividend, the Board believes that the company’s
and Group’s equity and liquidity will be sufficient con-
sidering the nature, scope and risk of the operations. The
Board is of the opinion that the proposed dividend will
not affect Catena’s capacity to meet its short or long-term
commitments. Moreover, the Board believes that the in-
vestments required for the company’s operations will not
be adversely impacted. As regards the company’s earnings
and overall financial position in other regards, please refer
to the financial statements further on in this report and the
notes to the financial statements on pages 66-71.



Tahe 1:64, Jonképing
On the property, which was acquired in 2015 and
which enjoys a favourable location in Torsvik close
to the E4 highway just south of Jonkoping, is a
logistics warehouse of more than 29,000 square
metres. Catena also holds building rights for a
further 17,000 square metres on the property.
The existing building is a centrally and strategi-
cally located development property in a location
with no surrounding homes that could conceivably
be disrupted by frequent, 24-hour activities.

optimal as an e-commerce

Accordingly, the property is
, , cluster with multiple tenants.
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Interest-bearing liabilities

Catena’sfinancialstrategy, mandateandrisktakingareregulatedby
the Group’s financial policy, as adopted by the Board of Catena.

Policy and exposure

The Group’s treasury management, which is carried out
by the Parent Company, Catena AB, ensures that fund-
ing and liquidity are secured, that payment systems are
appropriate and that the Group’s risk exposure is kept
within the framework of the policy. Catena has a poli-

cy that borrowing should mainly have a loan term of at
most ten years. All borrowing is to be conducted in SEK.
The policy also states that, to the extent this is possible,
the fixed-interest term structure is to be adapted to the
duration of leases signed. Consideration is also given to
the current business plan for each property. To manage
interest-rate risks, Catena uses financial instruments such
as interest-rate swaps and interest-rate caps, as mandated
by the Board.

Capital structure

The Group is financed partly through equity, which
amounted to SEK 2,477.8 million (1,984.8) and through
liabilities to credit institutions, which amounted to SEK
3,754.1 million (3,457.6), representing a total equity ratio
of 35.7 percent (32.4). Catena targets its long-term equity
ratio target not exceeding 30 percent.

Working capital and cash flow

Cash flow for the year before changes in working capital
improved by SEK 36.7 million to SEK 241.5 million
(204.8).

Cash flow was affected by divestments. In addition to
the divestment of the project properties in Solna, which
contributed SEK 768.0 million to cash flow, other divest-
ments affected cash flow by SEK 5.3 million.

Terminalen 1in Hallsberg - financed
through covered bonds issued by Nya SFF.



The year’s acquisition of 11 properties affected cash flow
negatively. The acquisitions have been financed in part by
raising new loans.

At the end of the year, cash and cash equivalents
amounted to SEK 201.5 million (199.4).
» See also page 110.

Liabilities to credit institutions
Liabilities to credit institutions totalled SEK 3,754.1
million (3,457.6), of which SEK 347.2 million relates to
the Hogsbo 21:2 property in Gothenburg, which, in accor-
dance with IFRS 5 is included under Assets available for
sale. An agreement for the sale of Hogsbo 21:2 has been
signed and the buyers took possession of the property on
15 January 2016.

At 31 December 2015, the existing credit framework
totalled SEK 3,900.3 million.

» Read more about the company’s interest-bearing liabilities
on page 110.

Bond financing

Catena is part-owner of the finance company Nya Svensk
FastighetsFinansiering AB (Nya SFF), a finance company
with a guaranteed MTN programme of SEK 8,000 mil-
lion. Catena has thereby broadened the base for its bor-
rowings at a time when there is great demand for bonds in
the capital market. In addition to Catena AB the company
is owned by Digs Fastigheter AB, Fabege AB, Platzer
Fastigheter Holding AB and Wihlborgs Fastigheter AB —
each with a holding of 20 percent. Operations commenced
in February 2015.

Capital structure
SEKm

SEK'm
7,000 4,500
6,000

3,600
5,000
4,000 2,700
3,000

1,800
2,000
1,000 900
0 0
-12 -13 -14 -15

Liabilities
B Equity

Capital tied-up
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In 2015, Catena issued covered bonds within the frame-
work of Nya SFF for a value of SEK 112 million, with
collateral in the Terminalen 1 property in Hallsberg, at a
fixed annual interest rate of 1.42 percent.

Through Nya SFF, Catena has the opportunity to issue
Green bonds to finance climate-friendly and sustainable
properties. The bonds are based on a Green Framework
that has also been verified by the independent CICERO
research institute, which is linked to the University of
Oslo. This strengthens the company’s long-term efforts
for greener operations, focused on mitigating negative
environmental impact, increasing energy efficiency and
environmentally certifying buildings.

Interestrisks

Catena has interest rate swap contracts for SEK 2,000.0
million (2,000.0) with an interest rate of less than 3 per-
cent. The fair value of the interest rate swap contracts was
SEK 1,884.3 million (1,853.8) on the closing date. The
nominal value of the derivatives is equivalent to 53 per-
cent of consolidated liabilities to credit institutions. The
average interest rate, including the cost of unused credit
frameworks and derivatives, amounted to 2.6 percent for
the year.

The derivatives are marked to market, meaning that the
carrying amount agrees with the fair value. The change is
recognised in the income statement. The carrying amount
was SEK 115.7 million (146.9). The change in the value of
the derivatives does not affect cash flow and, on reaching
maturity, the value of derivatives is always zero.

» Read more about the company’s financial risks and derivatives
on pages 110 and in note 19, Group.

Loan-to-value ratio -
real estate

%
80

70

60

5 ee—
-12 -13 -14 -15
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The Catena share and owners

Catena’s shares were listed on the Stockholm Stock Exchange on 26 April
2006. The shares are traded on the Nasdaq Stockholm exchange, Nordic list,
Mid Cap in the Real Estate sector, under the ticker CATE.

Price trend and turnover

During 2015, the share price rose about 9.5 percent (5.8),
from SEK 105.75 to SEK 115.75 On the balance sheet
date, the market capitalisation was SEK 2,968 million
(2,712). The lowest price quoted for the share was SEK
103.00 on 7 January, and a this highest price was SEK
141.00 on 28 April. The NASDAQ Stockholm’s all share
index OMXSPI rose 6.6 percent (11.9) and the Carnegie
Real Estate Index (CREX) climbed 26.3 percent (35.1).
The total return on the share amounted to just over 12
percent. During the year, a total of 5,468,818 Catena
shares (2,981,762) were traded on the Nasdaq Stockholm
exchange, corresponding to a turnover rate of 21.3 percent
(11.6).

Shares and share capital

The share capital of Catena AB is to be no less than SEK
50,000,000 and no more than SEK 200,000,000. The
total number of shares is not permitted to be less than
10,000,000 and more than 40,000,000. At 31 Decem-
ber 2015, the share capital in Catena AB totalled SEK
112,824,452.40 distributed among 25,641,921 ordinary
shares. The quotient value per share is SEK 4.40. Each
share confers one vote and each person entitled to vote at
the General Meeting of shareholders may vote for the full
number of shares held and represented. All shares confer
equal rights to participate in the company’s assets and

Share price trend 1 January 2015 -
29 February 2016

earnings. The shares are not subject to any limitations as
regards the right to transfer of ownership.

» The development of share capital is described in note 18
on page 86.

New share issue

An Extraordinary General Meeting on 30 November
resolved to issue new shares in connection with the
acquisition of Tribona. In January 2016, Catena registered
part of the issue with the Swedish Companies Regis-
tration Office, whereby the total number of shares and
votes increased by 7,246,971. In another part of the issue,
the number of shares and votes increased by a further
346,614.

On 29 February 2016, Catena’s registered share capital
amounted to SEK 146,236,226.4 distributed between
33,235,506 shares. All shares are of the same class of
shares and each share entitles the holder to one vote at
Catena’s General Meetings.

Owners

At 31 December 2015 the Catena AB had 14,090 share-
holders (14,545). Following the new share issue, there
were 14,557 shareholders on 29 February. The largest
shareholder is Backahill Kil AB with 33.8 percent (45.6)
of the capital and EndicottSweden AB with 11.2 percent
(13.5). No other shareholder held 10 percent or more

Share price trend 1 January 2013 -
29 February 2016
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of the shares outstanding on 29 February 2016. Owners
outside of Sweden accounted for 3.4 percent (6.1) of the
share capital. Owners in Sweden accounted for 96.6 per-
cent (93.9) of the share capital and votes, of which legal
entities accounted for 73.2 percentage points (86.9) and
private individuals for 7.7 percentage points (7.0) of the
share capital and votes. On 29 February 2016, Catena AB
held no treasury shares.

» Figures in parentheses refer to 31 December 2014.
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to issue any such financial instruments. Accordingly, none
of the Board members or any of the senior executives in
Catena hold any warrants in Catena.

Dividend policy and dividends

In the long-term, Catena’s dividends to shareholders
should amount to 50 percent of profit from property
management less standard rate tax. For the 2015 financial
year, the Board of Directors and the CEO propose a total
dividend of SEK 99.7 million (76.9), corresponding to
49.3 percent of total profit excluding standard tax. Taking

Ownership structure, per 29 February No. of

2016. shares, Votes,
Ten largest shareholders 000s %
Backahill 11,221 33.8
Endicott Sweden AB (CLS Holding plc) 3,719 11.2
Lansférsdkringar fondforvaltning AB 3,283 9.9
SFU Sverige AB 1,847 5.6
Nordea Investment Funds 1,316 4.0
Skagen Vekst Verdipapirfond 1,069 3.2
CGML PB Client Acct-Sweden Treaty 1,057 3.2
Swedbank Robur fonder 874 2.6
JP Morgan Bank Luxembourg S.A. 778 2.3
CRHE Invest AB 770 2.3
Other shareholders 7,302 22.0
Total 33,236 100.0
Ownership, distribution by size of Owners
shareholding at 29 February 2016 Number Share, %
1-500 13,794 94.8
501-1,000 423 2.9
1,001-5,000 234 1.6
5,001-10,000 38 0.3
10,001-15,000 10 0.1
15,001-20,000 12 0.1
20,001- 46 0.3
Total 14,557 100.0

Incentive programmes

the increased number of shares after the rights issue into
account, that amounts to SEK 3.00 per share (3.00). That

corresponds to a yield of 2.6 percent (2.8).

» Read more about the company’s stock market information

on page 116.

Data per share, prior to and

after dilution 2015 2014
Share price at year end, SEK 115.75 105.75
Price trend over the year, % 9.5 5.8
Highest price paid during the year, SEK 141.00 115.00
Lowest price paid during the year, SEK 103.00 94.00
Profit from property management

per share, SEK 10.11 8.02
Earnings per share, SEK 22.29 13.49
Dividend per share, SEK 3.007 3.00
Dividend yield, % 2.6Y 2.8
Total return on the share, % 12.3 7.8
P/E ratio 5.2 7.8
Cash flow per share, SEK 0.08 -0.58
Equity per share, SEK 96.46  77.22
Net asset value per share,

EPRA NAV, SEK 115.00 96.60
Turnover rate, % 21.3 11.6
No. of shares at year end, 000s 25,642 25,642
Average number of shares, 000s 25,642 25,556

Catena has no share-based incentive programmes, options
or convertible securities. Nor are there any authorisations

Dividend and
payout ratio

Dividend yield

1) According to the proposal by the Board of Directors and the CEO.

Net asset value, EPRA NAV
and total return
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1) According to the proposal by the Board of Directors and the CEO.

Net asset value, EPRA NAV

Contacts

Peter Andersson, CFO
peter.andersson@catenafastigheter.se
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Barnarps-Krakebo 1:56, Jonkoping
The property, which was acquired in 2015, isa 21,000 square-metre
plot with a modern and rationallogistics warehouse of 4,000 square
metres, leased to Selector Logistik AB. A logistics partner for a
number of customers’ e-commerce operations. According to Logistics
Manager, Ahdrian Albers, the company, which operates automated
e-commerce logistics, among other things, chose, the premises

because:
, , e-commerce and, being located well for
reaching Sweden, Norway, Denmark,
Finland and the Baltic countries, they facilitate the
operation of our automated e-commerce logistics.

They are tailored to the needs of third-party

h ’
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Financial statements - Group

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Note 1 January 2015 1 January 2014
SEKm 3 31 December 2015 31 December 2014
Rental income 4 464.2 431.3
Property expenses 5.7 -112.9 -105.6
Operating surplus 351.3 325.7
Central administration 5,6,7,8 -26.7 -28.9
Other operating income 23.1 9.6
Other operating expenses -13.7 -8.1
Participations in profit of associated companies 13 12.4 0.8
Financialincome 9 7.2 0.9
Financial expenses 9 -94.3 -95.1
Profit from property management 259.3 204.9
Realised changes in value of investment properties 11 102.2 -6.5
Unrealised changes in value of investment properties 11 198.3 392.5
Changes in values of derivatives 19 30.5 -150.6
Pre-tax profit 590.3 440.3
Current tax 10 -3.9 -1.9
Deferred tax 10 -14.9 -94.2
Net result for the year 18 571.5 344.2
Other comprehensive income for the year - -
Comprehensive income for the year 571.5 344.2
Attributable to:
Parent Company’s shareholders 18 571.5 344.8
Non-controlling interests - -0.6
Earnings per share
Earnings per share prior to and after dilution, SEK 18 22.29 13.49
Dividend per share, SEK 3.00Y 3.00
1) The Board's proposed dividend.
Consolidated quarterly earnings

2015 2014

SEKm Qi Q2 Qa3 Q4 Qi Q2 Qa3 Q4
Rental income 114.6 113.0 117.5 119.1 100.1 111.5 105.4 114.3
Operating surplus 85.8 87.2 91.9 88.4 71.0 89.4 81.5 83.8
Profit from property management 55.9 57.7 78.5 67.2 42.7 59.4 52.9 49.9
Pre-tax profit 87.7 270.8 67.1 164.7 29.2 30.8 337.4 42.9

Net profit after tax 68.4 305.5 52.3 145.3 22.8 24.0 263.3 34.1



Rental income

Rentalincome increased by 7.6 percent, primarily as a result of
the acquired properties, also offsetting the sale of the Norra
Solna project properties, completed projects and a continued
high letting ratio, which amounted to 95.5 percent.

Income from contracts with terms of more than three years
accounted for approximately 67 percent of Catena’s contract-
ed annualrent, which entails stable income with no apprecia-
ble variation between periods, except when affected by acqui-
sitions and sales. The average remaining lease period is
approximately 4.3 years.

During the year, 83 new contracts (56) were signed for a to-
tal area of 96,374 square metres (127,300) and a contract val-
ue of SEK 70.1 million (79.1). At the same time, 60 contracts
(27) were cancelled for a total area of 145,549 square metres
(59,400) and a contractvalue of SEK 85.9 million (32.9). Ac-
cordingly, the net effect on the contract portfolio amounted to
anegative 49,175 square metres.

Distribution of income, %

0 20 40 60
M Stockholm Gothenburg M Oresund

80 100

Lettable area and letting ratio in terms of space per region

Rental Lettable area, Economic letting
income thousand sq.m. ratio floor space, %
Stockholm 194.9 309.8 95.0
Gothenburg 161.8 291.9 95.5
Oresund 95.7 215.1 96.7
Solna project 11.8 0 0
Total 464.2 816.8 95.5
Duration of leases
Number Contracted Contracted
Duration contracts annualrent, SEKm annualrent, %
2016 105 39,322 8
2017 66 74,098 15
2018 28 50,574 10
2019 21 99,060 20
2020 19 48,977 10
2021 4 45,928 10
2022+ 22 130,663 27
Total 2G5 488,622 100

Operating surplus

The net operating surplus rose by 7.9 percent. Property ex-
penses as a percentage of rentalincome remain at a low level,
24.3 percent. Compared with 2014, they rose by 6.9 percent,
mainly due to the larger property portfolio. For comparable
portfolios, property expenses have risen by SEK 3.0 million due
toincreased repairs.

Property expenses in relation to rental income, %

2015 24.3
2014 24.5
2013 30.1
2012 35.4
0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40

Profit from property management
Compared with 2014, profit from property managementin-
creased by 26.6 percent as aresult of the increased property
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space. Financial expenses decreased somewhat over the year
as a consequence of completed refinancing processes, re-
structuring of the credit portfolio and lower marketinterest
rates. The average interest rate over the year was 2.6 percent.

Average interest rate, %

2015 2.6

2014 2.8
2013 3.1
2012 2.9

0.0 0.5 1.0 1.5 2.0 2.5 3.0 3.5

Fixed interest

Year SEK m Interestrate, %" Share, %
2016 1,603.7 1.62 43
2017 30.7 1.72 1
2020 112.0 1.42 3
2021 500.0 4.33 13
2022 500.0 3.72 13
2023 500.0 3.13 13
>2024 507.7 2.82 14
Total 3,754.1 2.62 100

1) Refers to the current average interest rate as per 31 December 2015. Interest
rates change in pace with the generalinterest situation, although this is limited
by applicable interest rate caps.

Interest rate hedges through interest-rate swaps

Startyear Endyear Interestrate, % SEKm
2011 2021 2.9 500.0
2012 2022 2.3 500.0
2014 2023 1.7 500.0
2014 2024 1.4 500.0
Total 2,000.0
Results

Pre-tax profit was affected positively by realised changesin the
value of the properties, primarily attributable to the “Haga Nor-
ra” project properties in Solna. But also, following an external-
ly validated valuation, unrealised changes in the value of the
property portfolio in other regards. These are primarily driven
by projectand property development, cash flows and direct re-
turn on market terms.

Earnings are also affected positively by the book undervalue
of interest rate derivatives, which decreased to EUR 115.7 mil-
lion (146.2), mainly due to higher long-term interest rates
around the end of the year. The changes in value are of an ac-
counting nature and do not affect the existing cash flow. The
nominal value of the derivatives is equivalent to 53 percent of
consolidated liabilities to credit institutions.

Deferred tax is largely attributable to changes in the value of
properties and derivatives. Tax paid amounted to SEK 3.9 mil-
lion.

Return on total capital

Return on total capitalamounted to 10.5 percent (12.3). The
decrease, which is limited by improved profit from property
management, is primarily attributable to the new properties
acquired late in the year and that therefore generated income
only during part of the year. But also to the lower return on the
“Haga Norra” project properties’ increased property value. The
project properties were divested during the year.

Return on equity,%

2015 10.5
2014 12.3
2013 6.3
2012 9.7
0 3 6 9 12 15
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

SEKm

Note 31 December2015 31December2014

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Investment properties

Property, plant and equipment
Participations in associated companies
Deferred tax asset

Other long-term receivables

Total fixed assets

Current assets

Accounts receivable

Assets available for sale

Other receivables

Prepaid expenses and accrued income
Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

TOTAL ASSETS

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share capital

Other capital contributions

Accumulated profit

Shareholders’ equity attributable to Parent Company
shareholders

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Liabilities to credit institutions
Deferred tax liabilities

Other non-current liabilities
Total Long-term liabilities

Liabilities related to assets held for sale
Liabilities to credit institutions
Accounts payable

Liabilities to associated companies
Other liabilities

Accrued expenses and prepaid income
Total current liabilities

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

19,

19, 20,

19, 20,

11
12
13
10
20

14
15
16
17
19

20

18

21
10
19
20

15
21

22
20

4,781.5
1.6
665.7
57.8
617.0
6,123.6

1.9
559.2
46.2
15.5
201.5
824.3

6,947.9

112.8
733.9
1,626.7

2,473.4
4.4
2,477.8

2,409.4
395.7
125.9

2,931.0

386.3
997.5
45.9
14.9
28.9
65.6
1,539.1

6,947.9

5,750.9
1.8
28.0
63.9
2.6
5,847.2

1.6
65.9
21.9

199.4
288.8

6,136.0

112.8
733.9
1,133.3

1,980.0
4.8
1,984.8

2,404.1
413.7
146.9

2,964.7

1,053.5
22.0
14.2
17.7
79.1

1,186.5

6,136.0



Assets

2015

plkvy 5,750.9 96.3 I288.8

0 1,000 2,000 3,000 4,000 5,000 6,000 7,000
M Properties Other non-current assets M Current assets

Return on capital employed % 2015 2014
Stockholm 8.84 6.58
Gothenburg 11.23 6.04
Oresund 10.05 2.05
The Solna project 15.28 32.41
Central administration -27.65 9.37
Total 11.69 10.67
Investment properties Number
Property portfolio Fair of proper-
development, SEK m value ties
Property portfolio at beginning of year 5,750.9 47
Acquisitions 566.7 11
Investments in existing properties 131.6

Sales -1,307.2 -3
Unrealised changes in value 198.3

Total investment properties 5,340.3 55

Catena’s capital employed is mainly invested in 55 logistics
properties, located along key transport routes adjacent to
Stockholm, Gothenburg and Malmad. According to the tables
below, the lettable area has over the year increased by 8.4
percent, following acquisitions and divestments. The property
value decreased by 7.1 percent or SEK 410.6 million, pri-
marily due to the sale of the “Haga Norra” project properties
and the sale of the Hogsbo 21:2 property, for which the sale
contract has been signed and which is consequently reported
under the item: Assets available for sale. The buyers took
possession of the property on 15 January 2016.

» A list of the properties is provided on pages 54-55.

» For specification, see Group Note 11, page 82.

Property acquisition

Property
Property value,
designation Transfer date Region SEKm
Férmannen 4 5 May 2015 Oresund 120.3
Misteln 1 24 June 2015  Oresund 20.0
Tahe 1:64 1 July 2015 Gothenburg 60.0
Rebbelberga 26:37 6 July 2015 Oresund 115.0
Norra Varalév 31:11 6 July 2015 Oresund 18.6
Barnarps-Krakebo
1:56 1 September 2015 Gothenburg 35.0
Vindtunneln 2 1 September 2015 Gothenburg 84.0
Norra Varalév 31:5 2 October 2015 Oresund 22.0
Rebbelberga 26:38 10 October 2015 Oresund 6.2
Postiljonen 1 4 November 2015 Gothenburg 79.6
Sockret 4 2 December 2015 Oresund 11.0
Total 571.7

In addition, for a purchase consideration of SEK 6 million,
Catena acquired the Municipality of Katrineholm’s 49 per-
cent holding in the jointly owned company, Logistikposition
Katrineholm AB, which owns the properties Sothénan 3 and
19 in Katrineholm. An agreement has also been signed to
acquire land through a re-allotment between Logistikposition
Katrineholm AB and the Municipality of Katrineholm. The
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Property sales

Property Property
designation Vacated Region value, SEKm
Storheden 1:75 1 April 2015 Stockholm 7.0
Stora Frésunda 2 and

Hagalund 2:2 23 June 2015 Projects 1,450.0
Slaggan 1 13 October 2015  QOresund 0.5
Total 1,457.5

company will acquire 75,000 square metres of land with
title located adjacent to the existing properties Sothénan 3
and 19. The acquisition of Norra Varaldév 31:11 involves 60
percent of the company that owns a development area with
an ongoing project in Angelholm.

An agreement was signed for the sale of Hogsbo 21:2 in
Gothenburg for a property value of SEK 580 million. The buy-
ers took possession of the property on 15 January 2016.

Financial fixed assets

As per 31 December 2015, financial fixed assets pertain
largely to the deferred purchase price arising in connection
with the sale of the project properties in Solna and the acqui-
sition of some 30 percent of the shares in Tribona, which is
reported as an associated company.

Current assets

A large part of Catena’s income is charged in advance, while
interest and other expenses are charged in arrears, limiting
the need for working capital. That and good liquidity mean
that Catena is well equipped for continued acquisitions and
investments.

Liabilities and equity

Capital structure

Catena manages its capital to generate a return to its owners.
A well-considered balance between equity, debt and capital
employed is pursued so that capital is sufficient considering
the operations being conducted. Profitability, measured as re-
turn on capital employed, rose to 11.69 percent and as return
on equity to 25.6 percent.

Capital structure, SEK m

2015 WHYNN]
2014 FEFELIN]

2013 ENIFN]

2012 WEFER
0 1,000 2,000 3,000 4,000 5,000 6,000 7,000
M Equity I Liabilities

Liabilities to credit institutions

Liabilities to credit institutions total SEK 3,754.1 million, of
which SEK 347.2 million related to the Hogsbo 21:2 property
in Gothenburg and were reported under the item: liabilities
related to assets available for sale since an agreement for the
sale of the property has been signed.

The average period during which capital was tied up
amounted to 2.5 years as per the balance sheet date. On the
same date, the loan framework amounted to SEK 3,900.3
million.

Capital tied-up

Contract Utilised, Unutilised,
Year volume, SEKm SEKm SEKm
2016 1,035.1 919.3 115.8
2017 2,414.7 2,384.3 30.4
2018 171.6 171.6 -
2020 112.0 112.0 -
>2024 166.9 166.9 -
Total 3,900.3 3,754.1 146.2



FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 | CATENA AB

Consolidated changes in shareholders’ equity

Comprehen- Acquisition Divestment New 31
SEKm 1 January sive income of minority of minority share December
Equity attributable to: 2014 for the year Dividend interest interest issue 2014
Parent Company’s
shareholders
Share capital 110.9 - - - - 1.9 112.8
Other capital contributions 685.8 - - - - 48.1 733.9
Profit brought forward 839.8 344.8 -51.3 - - - 1,133.3
Total, Parent Company
shareholders 1,636.5 344.8 -51.3 - - 50.0 1,980.0
Non-controlling interests 5.4 -0.6 - - - - 4.8
Total equity Note 18 1,641.9 344.2 -51.3 - - 50.0 1,984.8
Comprehen- Acquisition Divestment New 31
SEKm 1January siveincome of minority of minority share December
Equity attributable to: 2015 fortheyear Dividend interest interest issue 2015
Parent Company’s
shareholders
Share capital 112.8 - - - - - 112.8
Other capital contributions 733.9 - - - - - 733.9
Accumulated profit 1,133.3 571.5 -76.9 4.4 -5.6 1,626.7
Total, Parent Company
shareholders 1,980.0 571.5 -76.9 4.4 -5.6 - 2,473.4
Non-controlling interests 4.8 - - -0.4 - 4.4
Total equity Note 18 1,984.8 571.5 -76.9 4.4 -6.0 - 2,477.8

Equity and return
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Consolidated cash flow analysis

SEKm

1 January 2015
31 December 2015

1 January 2014
31 December 2014

Operating activities

Pre-tax profit

Adjustment for items not included in cash flow
Tax paid

Cash flow before changes in working capital

Changes in working capital

Change in operating receivables
Change in operating liabilities

Cash flow from operating activities

Investment activities

Acquisition of assets via subsidiaries
Acquisition of assets via subsidiaries
Acquisitions of investment properties
Divestment of investment properties
Acquisitions of property, plant and equipment
Disposals of non-current assets

Acquisitions of other financial assets
Divestments of financial assets

Cash flow from investing activities

Financing activities

Loans raised

Amortisation of loans

Dividend paid

Cash flow from financing activities

Cash flow for the year

Opening cash and cash equivalents
Closing cash and cash equivalents

Cash flow before changes in working capital

Compared with 2014, cash flow before changes in working
capital was SEK 36.7 million higher, mainly as a result of
improved profit and adjustments for items such as unrealised

changes in value that do not affect cash flow.

2015 241.5
2014 204.8
2013 187.8
2012 128.0
0 50 100 150 200

590.3
-348.3
-0.5
241.5

8.2
29.5
279.2

-467.0
771.9
-142.6
1.4
-0.3

-621.2
23.4
-434.4

1,641.4
-1,407.2
-76.9
157.3

2.1

199.4
201.5

Cash flow

440.3
-235.5

204.8

9.2
-39.8
174.2

-171.3

-180.4
15.0
-1.8
0.5
-56.8

-394.8

1,432.3
-1,174.6
-51.3
206.4

-14.2
213.6
199.4
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Cash flow was affected by divestments. In addition to the
divestment of the project properties in Solna, which contribut-

ed SEK 768.0 million to cash flow, other divestments affected

cash flow positively by SEK 5.3 million. The year's acquisition
of 11 properties affected cash flow negatively. The acquisi-
tions have been financed in part by raising new loans.

At the end of the year, cash and cash equivalents amounted
to SEK 201.5 million (199.4).

2015 2.1
2014 -14.2

2013 213.4
2012 0.2

-50 0

50 100

200 250 SEKm
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Notes - Group

NOTE 1. General information

Catena AB (publ), corporate registration number 556294-
1715, has its registered office in Solna, in the County of
Stockholm, Sweden. The company is the Parent Company of
a Group of companies including subsidiaries. The address of
the company’s headquarters is PO Box 5003, SE-250 05 Hels-
ingborg, Sweden and the visiting address is Landskronavagen
7A in Helsingborg.

Catena’s shall actively manage, enhance and proactively
develop its property portfolio by identifying and conducting
value-enhancing programs that raise the attractiveness of
the properties and their yield, with due consideration of risk.
Catena also sells properties when the opportunity to create
further growth is deemed to be limited.

Operations in the Parent Company Catena AB are com-
prised exclusively of inter-Group activities and the assets
mainly consist of shares and participations in subsidiaries
which, in their turn, own properties or shares in property
companies.

The Parent Company is listed on NASDAQ Stockholm, Mid
Cap.

The Annual Report and the consolidated accounts were
approved for publication by the Board of Directors and the
CEO on 22 March 2016 and will be presented to the Annual
General Meeting on 27 April 2016.

NOTE 2. Accounting and valuation
principles

Amounts in SEK million unless otherwise specified.

Compliance with standards and legal requirements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with the Swedish Annual Accounts Act, the
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and the
interpretation statements issued by the Inter-national Finan-
cial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) as approved
by the European Commission for application in the EU.

The Group also applies the Swedish Financial Reporting
Board’'s recommendation RFR 1 Supplementary accounting
rules for groups.

The Parent Company applies the Swedish Financial Report-
ing Board’s recommendation RFR 2 (Accounting for Legal En-
tities), which entails the same accounting policies as for the
Group exceptin the cases provided for in Note 1 to the Parent
Company’s accounts. Those deviations that occur between
the Parent Company’s and the Group’s policies are caused by
limitations in the possibilities for applying IFRS in the Parent
Company as a consequence of the Swedish Annual Accounts
Act and, in some cases, for tax reasons.

Preconditions for the preparation of the Parent Company’s
and the Group’s financial statements
The functional currency of the Parent Company is SEK and
this is also the reporting currency of the Parent Company
and the Group. This means that the financial statements are
presented in SEK. All amounts, unless otherwise stated, are
stated in SEK million. Assets and liabilities are recognised at
historical cost, except for investment properties and certain
financial assets and liabilities, which are recognised at fair
value. Those financial assets and liabilities that are rec-
ognised at fair value comprise derivative instruments.
Preparing the financial statements in accordance with
IFRS requires that senior management makes assessments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and the recognised amounts of assets,

liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and the
assumptions are based on historical experience and on a
number of other factors that seem reasonable under the
prevailing circumstances. The result of these estimates and
assumptions is then used to assess the carrying amounts for
assets and liabilities that are otherwise not clearly specified
from other sources. The actual outcome may deviate from
these estimates and assessments.

Those assessments made by the senior management on
application of IFRS that have a material impact on the finan-
cial statements and estimates made that can entail material
adjustment of following years’ financial statements are
described in the note for the item that could be the subject
of any such adjustment, and particularly in notes regarding
investment properties and financial instruments.

In accordance with these principles, the acquisition made
of 29.55 percent of the shares in Tribona AB (publ) in 2015
is recognised as a holding in an associated company. Senior
management decided to wait with the consolidation of
Tribona until the compulsory redemption procedure could be
initiated, which occurred in February 2016. In the preparation
of this Annual Report, the question remained as to the early
admission of compulsorily redeemed shares. Consequently,
Tribona will be consolidated first in the first quarter of 2016.

The accounting principles presented below for the Group
have been applied consistently for all periods presented in the
consolidated financial statements, unless otherwise stated
below. The Group’s accounting principles have been applied
consistently in the reporting and consolidation of the Parent
Company, subsidiaries and associated companies.

New and amended standards applied by the Group

The following standards are applied by the Group for the first
time for financial years commencing 1 January 2015 and
have an impact on the consolidated financial statements:

The implementation of IFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial
Statements”, IFRS 11 “Joint Arrangements” and IFRS 12
“Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities” has only had an
impact with regard to supplementary disclosures.

IFRIC 21 “Levies” is an interpretation of IAS 37 “Provi-
sions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”. IFRIC 21
addresses the recognition of levies, that is, different types of
fees that may be charged to a company by a state, or equiv-
alent body, through legislation and/or regulation, which, for
the Group, would have an impact on the reporting of property
taxes. The event that entails a commitment giving rise to a li-
ability is the event that triggers the payment of a fee (levy). In
accordance with application within the EU, this statement is
effective for financial years commencing after 17 June 2014.
Although the statement has not affected the Group on a full-
year basis, the liability for property tax is reported as per 1
January and the expense is then distributed over the year on
a straight line basis.

Other standards, amendments and interpretations that
came into effect for financial years commencing 1 January
2014 have had no material impact on the consolidated finan-
cial statements.

New standards and interpretations yet to be adopted by
the Group
A number of new standards and interpretations will come
into effect for financial years commencing after 1 January
2015 and have not been applied in the preparation of this fi-
nancial report. None of these are expected to have a material
impact on the consolidated financial statements except for
the following:

IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments, addresses classification, »



measurement and accounting for financial assets and lia-
bilities. The full version of IFRS 9 was issued in July 2014. It
replaces those parts of IAS 39 that address the classification
and measurement of financial instruments. The standard
shall be applied for financial years commencing 1 January
2018. Earlier application is permitted. The Group has yet to
assess the impact of the introduction of the standard.

IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” reg-
ulates the reporting of income. The principles that IFRS 15
builds on will provide users of financial statements with more
useful information about the company’s income. The expand-
ed disclosure requirements mean that information shall be
provided about the type of income, date of settlement, uncer-
tainties related to income recognition, and cash flow attribut-
able to the company’s customer contracts. According to IFRS
15, income shall be recognised when the customer gains
control of the sold goods or services and has the opportunity
to use and benefits from the product or service.

IFRS 15 replaces IAS 18 Revenue and IAS 11 Construction
Contracts, and related statements and guidelines from SIC
and IFRIC. IFRS 15 will come into effect on 1 January 2018.
Early application is permitted. The Group has yet to assess
the impact of the introduction of the standard.

In January 2016 the IASB published a new leasing standard
that will replace IAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations
IFRIC 4, SIC-15 and SIC-27. The standard requires assets
and liabilities attributable to all leases be recognised in the
balance sheet, with certain exceptions. This report is based
on the view that the lessee is entitled to use an asset over a
specific period of time and, at the same time, is obliged to
pay for that right. The accounts of the lessor will essential-
ly be unchanged. The standard is applicable to fiscal years
beginning on 1 January 2019 or later. Early application is
permitted. The EU has yet to adopt the standard. The Group
has not yet assessed the impact of IFRS 16.

None of the other IFRS or IFRIC interpretations that have
not yet entered into force are expected to have a significant
impact on the Group.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are recognised in a manner that cor-
responds to the internal reporting submitted to the Chief
Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The CODM is the function
that is responsible for allocating resources and assessing the
performance of the operating segments. In Catena, this func-
tion is identified as the CEO and senior management, that is,
the unit at Catena that makes strategic decisions.

Classification

Non-current assets and non-current liabilities, essentially,
consist of amounts expected to be recovered or paid after
more than 12 months of the balance-sheet date. Current
assets and current liabilities, essentially, consist only of
amounts expected to be recovered or paid within 12 months
of the balance-sheet date.

Consolidation principles
Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are all companies (including structured compa-
nies) over which the Group has decisive control. The Group
controls a company when it is exposed to, or is entitled to,
variable returns from its holdings in that company and has
the opportunity to affect the return through its influence
over the company. A controlling influence implies directly or
indirectly a right to determine a company’s financial and op-
erational strategies in order to gain financial benefits, which
is the general rule with a shareholding of 50 percent or more
of the voting rights. In assessing the existence of a controlling
influence, potential voting shares that can be utilised or con-
verted promptly are taken into consideration.

Subsidiaries are recognised in accordance with the acquisi-
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tion method if the acquisition of a subsidiary meant the acqui-
sition of a business and not solely of assets and liabilities.
This method entails that the acquisition of a subsidiary is
treated as a transaction through which the Group indirectly
acquires the subsidiary’s assets and assumes its liabilities
and contingent liabilities. The consolidated cost is estab-
lished through an acquisition analysis in conjunction with the
acquisition of operations. The analysis establishes the cost of
the participation rights or the business, the fair value of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed. The acquisition value of the shares in the
subsidiary or business comprises the fair values as of the day
of transfer for assets, liabilities arising or assumed and issued
equity instruments paid in consideration for the net assets
acquired. The acquisition value includes the fair value of all
assets and liabilities resulting from an agreed conditional
purchase price. Acquisition related costs are expensed as
incurred. Identifiable assets and liabilities assumed in a busi-
ness combination are initially measured at fair value on the
acquisition date. For each acquisition, the Group determines
if the non-controlling interest in the acquired company should
be recognised at fair value or at the holding’s proportional
share of the acquired company’s net assets.

If the cost exceeds the fair value of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed,
this difference is recognised as goodwill. If the cost is less
than the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired and
the contingent liabilities, this difference is recognised in profit
or loss.

When the acquisition of subsidiaries means the acquisition
of investment properties that are not part of a business, the
cost is allocated over the individually identifiable assets and
liabilities based on their relative fair values at the acquisition
date. All acquisitions of subsidiaries in 2014 and 2015 were
recognised as asset acquisitions.

The financial statements of subsidiaries are incorporated
in the consolidated financial statements from the moment
controlling influence arises until the date the controlling influ-
ence ceases.

Associated companies
Associated companies are those in which the Group has a
significant, but not controlling, influence over operational and
financial control. From the point at which a significant influ-
ence is obtained, and until it ceases, holdings in associated
companies are reported in the consolidated accounts in ac-
cordance with the equity method. The equity method means
that the Group’s carrying amounts for shares in associated
companies correspond to the Group’s share of the associated
companies’ equity as well as consolidated goodwill and any
other remaining values of consolidated surplus and deficit
values. In the consolidated income statement the Group’s
share of associated companies’ net earnings after taxes ad-
justed for any depreciation, amortisation, impairment losses
or reversals of acquired surplus and deficit values is reported
as participations in the earnings of associated companies.
Dividends received from associated companies reduce the
carrying amounts of the investment. “Participations in the
earnings of associated companies” are reported as part of
profit from property management

Where the Group’s share of losses reported by the asso-
ciated company exceeds the reported value of the Group’s
holdings, the value of the holdings is reduced to zero. The eq-
uity method is applied until the time the significant influence
ceases.

Joint ventures

For accounting purposes, a joint venture is an associated
company for which the Group, through partnership agree-
ments with one or more parties, has shared control over the
operational and financial management. Participations in joint
ventures are recognised according to the equity method. For

>
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a description of the equity method, see above under Asso-
ciated companies. The equity method is applied from the
moment that shared controlling influence arises and until the
time when the shared influence ceases.

Transactions that are eliminated on consolidation

Intragroup receivables and liabilities, income and expens-

es and unrealised gains or losses arising from intragroup
transactions between Group companies are eliminated in full
when preparing the consolidated accounts.

Unrealised gains that arise from transactions with associat-
ed companies and jointly controlled companies are eliminat-
ed to an extent that corresponds with the Group’s participa-
tion in the company. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the
same manner as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that
no indication of a need for impairment exists.

Transactions with holdings without controlling influence
The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests
as transactions with the Group’s shareholders. In the case
of acquisitions from non-controlling interests, the difference
between the price paid and the actual share acquired of the
carrying amount of the subsidiary’s net assets is recognised
in equity. Gains and losses on divestments to non-controlling
interests are also recognised in equity.

Divestment of a controlling influence, significant influence
and shared influence respectively

When the Group no longer exercises a controlling influence,
significant influence or shared influence, each remaining
holding is re-measured at fair value and the change rec-
ognised in profit or loss. The fair value is used as the first
carrying amount and comprises the basis for continued
reporting of the remaining holding in the associated compa-
ny, joint venture or financial asset. All amounts pertaining to
the divested operations that were previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are recognised as if the Group
had directly divested the attributable assets or liabilities. This
means that amounts previously recognised in other compre-
hensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

Transactions in foreign currency
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the
functional currency at the exchange rate in force on the
transaction date. The functional currency is the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the Group’s com-
panies carry out their business. All units in the Group use the
Swedish krona (SEK) as their functional currency. Monetary
assets and liabilities in foreign currency are translated to the
functional currency at the closing exchange rate. Exchange
rate differences arising from the conversions are recognised
in the income statement.

Transactions with countries outside of Sweden only arise in
exceptional cases.

Operating income

Income is recognised in profit or loss when material risks
and benefits have been transferred to the counterparty. If
any material uncertainty exists regarding payment, attached
costs or risk and if seller retains an involvement in the day-to-
day management such as would usually be associated with
ownership, the payment is not taken up as income. Income

is recognised at the fair value of what has been received or

is expected to be received after deductions for any discounts
given.

Rental income

Income from property and rental discounts are recognised on
a straight-line basis in profit or loss, based on the terms and
conditions of the lease. Advance rents are recognised as pre-
paid rental revenue. Income from early redemption of leases
is recognised as income in the period when the paymentis

received unless any additional performance is required from
Catena. Invoiced property tax and utilities costs are rec-
ognised as income in the period in which they are invoiced by
Catena.

Income from property sales

Catena recognises income and costs from the acquisition and
sale of property at the date risks and benefits are transferred
to the purchaser, which normally coincides with the occupan-
cy date.

Any agreement between the parties pertaining to risks and
benefits, and involvement in the day-to-day operations is tak-
en into account when assessing the moment in time for rec-
ognising income. Furthermore, any circumstances that could
impact the outcome of the transaction which are outside the
seller's and/or the buyer’s control are taken into account.

Criteria for income recognition are applied individually for
each transaction.

Operating expenses and financial income and expenses
Central administration

This includes the cost at overall Group level for items includ-
ing Group management, personnel administration, IT, inves-
tor relations, audits, financial statements and listing costs.

Expenses for operational leases

Expenses relating to operational leases are recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
lease. Benefits received in connection with the signing of an
agreement are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease.

Financial income and expenses

Financial income and expenses comprise interest income on
bank account funds, receivables and interest-bearing securi-
ties, interest expenses on loans, and dividend income.

Interest income on receivables and interest expenses on
liabilities are calculated using the effective interest method.
Effective interest is the interest-rate at which the present
value of all future incoming and outgoing payments during
the fixed-interest term is equal to the carrying amount of the
receivable or liability.

Interest income and interest expense respectively include
amounts distributed over time for transaction expenses and
any discounts, premiums and other differences between the
initial carrying amount of the receivable or liability and the
amount settled when the item falls due for payment.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
payment has been established.

Profit from property management

Catena’s operations focus on growth in cash flow from
on-going property management operations. Catena has
elected to present a single performance measure called
“profit from property management”, which reflects the cash
flow generated from its on-going property management
operations. Changes in the value of investment properties
and derivative instruments are not included in cash flow from
on-going property management operations and are therefore
not included in this performance measure.

Tax
Income taxes consist of current tax and deferred tax. Income
taxes are recognised in the income statement unless the un-
derlying transaction is recognised directly in equity, whereby
the associated tax effect is recognised in equity. Current tax
is the tax payable or receivable for the current year, which
includes adjustment of current tax attributable to preceding
periods.

Deferred tax is calculated in accordance with the bal-
ance-sheet method, based on temporary differences between
the accounting and tax values of assets and liabilities. The »



following temporary differences are not are not taken into
consideration: temporary differences arising on initial recog-
nition of goodwill, the initial reporting of assets and liabilities
that are not business combinations and that, at the transac-
tion date, do not impact the carrying amount or the taxable
earnings. Nor are temporary differences attributable to
participations in subsidiaries and associated companies that
are not expected to be reversed within the foreseeable future
taken into account. The valuation of deferred tax is based on
how the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities are expected
to be realised or settled.

Deferred tax assets pertaining to deductible temporary dif-
ferences and loss carry-forwards are recognised only insofar
as they are likely to result in lower tax payments in the future.

Deferred tax is calculated by applying the tax rates and tax
rules that have been decided or were, for all practical purpos-
es, decided at the balance-sheet date.

In legal entities, untaxed reserves are recognised including
the deferred tax liability. However, in the consolidated finan-
cial statements untaxed reserves are divided into deferred tax
liabilities and equity.

Financial instruments

Financial instruments recognised in the balance sheet include
assets such as cash and cash equivalents, accounts receiv-
able, loan receivables and derivatives. Equity and liabilities
include financial instruments in the form of accounts payable,
borrowings and derivatives.

A financial asset or liability is recognised in the balance
sheet when the company becomes a party to the commercial
terms and conditions of the instrument. Accounts receivable
including rent claims, termed accounts receivable in the An-
nual Report, are recognised when the invoice has been sent.
A liability is recognised when the counterparty has performed
and a contractual obligation to pay exists, even if an invoice
has not yet been received. Accounts payable are recognised
when invoices are received. A financial asset is removed from
the balance sheet when the rights inherent in the agreement
are realised or expire or if the company loses control over
them. This applies equally for part of a financial asset. A
financial liability is removed from the balance sheet when the
obligation arising from the agreement has been met or has
otherwise been extinguished. This applies equally for part of
a financial liability.

Acquisitions and disposals of financial assets are rec-
ognised on the transaction date, which is the date on which
the company agrees to acquire or dispose of the asset.

Financial instruments are classified at initial recognition
based on the purpose for which the instrument was acquired.
Financial instruments are initially recognised at a cost corre-
sponding to the instrument’s fair value with an addition for
transaction expenses. Exceptions are those categorised as
financial assets recognised at fair value through profit or loss,
which are recognised at fair value excluding transaction ex-
penses. Subsequent reporting depends on how the financial
instruments are classified in accordance with what is outlined
below.

In conjunction with every report, the company makes an
assessment of whether there are objective indications that
a group of financial assets requires impairment. For further
information, please refer to the Impairment section below.

Financial assets measured at fair value via profit or loss

This category includes financial assets held for sale and other
financial assets that the company has chosen to place in this
category. Catena reports derivatives under this category that
are not held for hedge accounting purposes.

Loan receivables and accounts receivable

Loan receivables and accounts receivable are financial assets
that are not derivatives with fixed payments or payments
than can be determined, and are not listed on an active
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market. The receivables arise on cash lending and when
Catena provides services directly to the credit recipient
without intending to trade in the receivables. This category
also includes acquired receivables. Receivables are mea-
sured at amortised cost. Amortised cost is determined on

the basis of the effective interest rate calculated at the time
of acquisition. This means that surplus and deficit values

and direct transaction expenses are accrued over the term

of the instrument. Accounts receivable are recognised in the
amount expected to be received after deduction of doubtful
receivables, which are assessed on a case-by-case basis. The
expected maturity of accounts receivable is short and, accord-
ingly, amounts are recognised at the nominal amount without
discounting. A provision for impairment of accounts receiv-
able is made when objective evidence exists that the Group
will not be able to receive all the amounts due in line with the
original terms the receivable. Significant financial difficulties
for debtors, the likelihood that the debtor will go into receiv-
ership or undergo financial reconstruction and default or late
payment (more than 30 days overdue) are considered indica-
tors that there may be a need for impairment of an account
receivable. The size of the provision comprises the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of future cash flows. An impairment of accounts receivable is
recognised in profit or loss as a reduction in operating income
and impairment of a loan receivable is recognised under the
item, financial expenses.

Financial liabilities measured at fair value via profit or loss
This category comprises derivatives that are not used for
hedge accounting. Liabilities in this category are measured
at fair value on an on-going basis and any value changes are
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Loans and other financial liabilities, such as accounts pay-
able, are included in this category. Financial liabilities are
initially valued at fair value, net after transaction expenses.
Thereafter, financial liabilities are measured at amortised
cost and any difference between amounts received (net

after transaction expenses) and the repayment amount is
recognised in profit or loss allocated over the term of the
loan using the effective interest method. Early repayment
charges on early redemption of loans are recognised in profit
or loss at the redemption date. Non-current liabilities have an
expected maturity exceeding one year, while current liabilities
have a maturity of less than one year. Accounts payable and
other operating liabilities with short expected maturities are
therefore normally recognised at nominal value. Dividends
paid are recognised as a liability from the moment the AGM
adopts the dividend.

Derivative and hedge accounting

Catena does not apply hedge accounting. All derivatives are
reported in the categories: “Financial assets measured at fair
value via profit or loss” and “Financial liabilities measured at
fair value via profit or loss.”

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of loans and interest-rate hedge agreements
is determined by discounting future cash flows by the quoted
market interest rate for each maturity. Values of interest-rate
cap agreements are determined using the option pricing
model. In all cases level 2 is applied under IFRS 13. The com-
pany’s own credit risk is taken into account in the fair value
valuation of the loans.

Set-off of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amounts
recognised in the statement of financial position only when
the following criteria are met:

There is a legal right to offset the recognised amounts and »
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the company intends to settle the items with a net amount or
to realise the assets and liabilities at the same time.

Financial income and expenses are offset in profit or loss
when they are connected to the offset financial assets and
liabilities.

More information is available about accounting policies and
financial risk management in Note 19, Financial instruments
and financial risk management.

Cash and cash equivalents!

Cash and cash equivalents include liquid funds and immedi-
ately available balances at banks and equivalent institutions
as well as current liquid investments with maturities of less
than three months from the acquisition date that are exposed
to only insignificant risk of changes in value.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset in
the balance sheetif itis likely that future economic benefit
will accrue to the company, and the cost of the assets can be
reliably determined.

Property, plant and equipment are recognised in the Group
at cost after the deduction of accumulated depreciation and
any impairment. The cost includes the purchase price and
expenses directly attributable to bringing the asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of oper-
ating in the manner intended.

Where property, plant and equipment comprise compo-
nents with significant differences in useful life, these are
treated as separate components of property, plant and equip-
ment.

The recognised amount of an item of property, plant
and equipment is derecognised from the balance sheet on
disposal or sale or when no future economic benefits can be
expected from its use. Gains or losses from the disposal or
scrapping of an asset consist of the difference between the
selling price of the asset and its carrying amount less direct
selling expenses. Gains or losses are recognised as other
operating income/expenses.

Additional expenses

Additional expenses are added to the cost only if it is likely
that the future economic benefits associated with the asset
will accrue to the company, and that the cost can be reliably
determined. All other additional expenses are recognised as
a costin the period they arise. Any undepreciated carrying
amounts for exchanged components or parts of components
are scrapped and expensed in conjunction with the exchange.
Repairs are expensed on an on-going basis.

Depreciation methods for property, plant and equipment
Depreciation is performed on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful life of the asset. Equipment, fixtures and
fittings are depreciated over 5-20 years. The applied depre-
ciation methods and the residual value and useful lives of the
assets are reassessed at the end of each year.

Investment properties

Investment properties are those held with the purpose of
generating rental income, value appreciation or a combina-
tion of the two. Investment properties are initially recognised
at cost in the balance sheet, which includes expenses directly
attributable to the acquisition. Investment properties are sub-
sequently recognised at fair value in the balance sheet. If the
Group begins refurbishing an existing investment property for
continued use as an investment property, during the renova-
tion, the property is recognised as an investment property.
Reassessments of fair value over the course of the year take
place through an internal valuation, which is described in
more detail in Note 11. The valuation model entails a present
value estimate of assessed future payment flows. If, during

the current year, any significant value changes exist for
individual properties, revaluation is carried out in conjunction
with the quarterly reports. Quality assurance is carried out of
any internal valuations performed through taking samples,
which are then externally valued every year, after which a rec-
onciliation is carried out for internal and external valuations.
Investment properties are at level 3 in the valuation hierarchy.
Both unrealised and realised value changes are recognised
in profit or loss. Realised value changes pertain to changes
in value over the past quarterly reporting period for proper-
ties sold. Unrealised changes in value pertain to other value
changes. On the acquisition of properties or companies, the
transaction is usually recorded as of the occupancy date,
since the risks and benefits of ownership typically accrue as
of that date. Rental income and income from property sales
are recognised in accordance with the principles described in
the section on operating income.

Additional expenses

Additional expenses are added to carrying amounts. Addition-
al expenses are added to the carrying amounts only if it likely
that the future financial benefits associated with the asset
will accrue to the company and the cost can be estimated in a
reliable manner. All other subsequent expenses are expensed
in the period they arise. Repairs are expensed as expendi-
tures are incurred.

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to purchases,
construction or production for larger new builds, extensions
and conversions of assets that take considerable time to
complete for the intended use or sale are included in the cost
of the asset. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is carried out
on the condition that it is likely that these will lead to future fi-
nancial benefits and that the costs can be reliably measured.

Assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale when their
carrying amounts will mainly be recovered through a sale
transaction and a sale is considered highly likely. They are
recognised at the carrying amount or at fair value less selling
expenses, whichever is lower.

Impairment

The carrying amounts for the Group’s assets are reviewed

on each balance-sheet date to ascertain whether any need
for impairment exists. IAS 36 is applied for testing the need
for impairment of assets other than financial assets, which
are tested under IAS 39, investment properties carried at fair
value, which are tested under IAS 40 and deferred tax assets.
The valuation of the excepted assets as noted above is tested
in accordance with the applicable standard.

Impairment testing of tangible assets and participations in
subsidiaries, associated companies, joint ventures, etc.

If an indication of a need for impairment exists, the recover-
able amount of the asset is estimated under IAS 36 as the
higher of the asset’s value in use and fair value less selling
expenses. When calculating the value in use, future cash
flows are discounted at an interest rate before tax that takes
into account the market’'s assessment of the risk-free interest
rate and the risk associated with the specific asset. If itis not
possible to establish substantially independent cash flows

to individual assets, the assets are grouped for impairment
testing at the lowest level where substantially independent
cash flows can be identify (known as a cash-generating unit).
Impairments are recognised when the carrying amount of an
asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are expensed in profit or loss.

Impairment tests for financial assets

In conjunction with every report, the company makes an as-
sessment of whether there is objective evidence that a group

of financial assets requires impairment. Objective evidence »



consists partly of observable conditions which have occurred
and which have a negative impact on the ability to recover the
cost, as well as from significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of a financial investment classified as an available-
for-sale financial asset.

Any impairment of loan receivables and accounts receiv-
able, which are recognised at amortised cost, is calculated
as the present value of future cash flows discounted at the
effective interest rate applicable when the asset was initially
recognised. Assets with short maturities are not discounted.
Impairment losses are expensed in profit or loss.

Reversal of impairments
Impairments are reversed if indications exist that the impair-
ment need no longer exists and a change has occurred in the
underlying assumptions for the calculation of the recoverable
amount. A reversal is only carried out to the extent that the
asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been reported after any applicable deduction
for depreciation, if no impairment had been carried out.
Impairment of loan receivables and accounts receivable
that are recognised at amortised cost are reversed if a subse-
quentincrease in amortised cost can objectively be attributed
to an event occurring after the impairment was made.

Cash-flow statement

The cash-flow statement is prepared in accordance with the
indirect method. The recognised cash flow only comprises
transactions that entail payments in or out. Cash and cash
equivalents in the cash-flow statement correspond to the
definition of cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet.

Share capital

Buyback of Catena shares

Holdings of treasury shares and other equity instruments are
recognised as a reduction in equity. The acquisition of such
instruments is reported as a deduction from equity. Proceeds
from disposals of equity instruments are recognised as an
increase in equity. Transaction expenses directly attributable
to the issue of new shares or warrants are recognised, net of
tax, in equity as a deduction from the issue proceeds.

Earnings per share

Calculation of earnings per share is based on consolidated
profit for the year attributable to the Parent Company’s share-
holders and the number of shares outstanding at year-end.
No instruments that entail dilution effects exist for the 2014
and 2015 financial years.

Employee benefits

Current employee benefits in the form of salaries, holiday
pay, paid sick leave, etc. as well as social security contribu-
tions are recognised as these are earned.

Pensions

Catena has various pension plans. Generally, the pension
plans are funded through payments to insurance companies
or nominee registered funds, where payments are deter-
mined by periodic actuarial calculations. Agreements regard-
ing pensions and other compensation paid after termination
of employment are classified as defined- contribution or de-
fined-benefit pension plans. A defined- contribution pension
plan is a pension plan, whereby Catena pays defined premi-
ums to a separate legal entity. Catena has no legal or infor-
mal obligations to make further payments if the legal entity
has insufficient assets to discharge all payments of employee
benefits relating to employee service in current or prior peri-
ods. A defined- benefit pension plan is a pension plan without
defined contributions. Instead, defined-benefit plans specify
an amount that the employee will receive as a pension ben-
efit following retirement. This is normally based on several
factors including age, length of service and salary. Catena
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has defined-contribution pension plans and commitments for
pensions under the so-called ITP plan which, according to a
statement issued by the Swedish Financial Reporting Board
RFR G, is a multi-employer defined-benefit plan.

The company has not been provided with information for
the 2004-2015 financial years that would allow the reporting
of its commitments under the ITP plan as a defined-benefit
plan. Accordingly, commitments under the ITP plan, which
are secured through insurance with Alecta, are reported
as a defined-contribution plan. The year’s fees for pension
insurance contracted with Alecta amounted to SEK 0.7 million
(0.4). For 2016, the company is expected to pay about SEK
1.2 million to Alecta. Alecta’s surplus can be distributed to
the policy owners and/or insured parties. At the end of 2015,
Alecta’s surplus in the form of the collective consolidation
level was 153 percent (143). The collective consolidation level
comprises the market value of Alecta’s assets as a percent-
age of the insurance obligation calculated in line with Alecta’s
actuarial assumptions, which do not comply with IAS 19.

Commitments as regards fees for defined-contribution
plans are recognised as an expense in profit or loss as they
arise.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is termi-
nated by Catena in advance of the normal retirement date or
if an employee accepts leaving service voluntarily to receive
such benefits. Catena recognises termination benefits when
the Group is demonstrably required to terminate employees
according to a detailed formal plan without possibility of
withdrawal. Benefits that fall due more than 12 months after
the balance-sheet date are discounted to present value.

Provisions

A provision is recognised in the balance sheet when the
Group has an existing legal or informal commitment due to
an event that has occurred and it is likely that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the commitment, and a
reliable estimate of the amount can be made. A present value
calculation is made to take into account significant time val-
ues for future payments.

Contingent liabilities

A contingency is recognised when there is a potential com-
mitment that stems from events that have occurred and
whose existence is confirmed only if one or more uncertain
future events, which are outside of the company’s control,
occur or do not occur, or when there is a commitment that
stems from events that have occurred, but which is not
recognised as a liability or provision because it is unlikely that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the commit-
ment or because the amount cannot be reliably calculated.

Leasing - lessee

Leases are classified in the consolidated financial statements
either as financial or operational leasing. Financial leasing
exists when the economic risks and benefits associated with
ownership are, essentially, transferred to the lessee, and
where this is not the case the lease is defined as operational
leasing. Operational leasing means that the leasing fee is
recognised as a cost in profit or loss, and allocated over the
term, starting from initial utilisation, which may differ from
what has actually been paid in the form of leasing fees during
the year.

Leasing - lessor

The Group enters into operational leases with customers in
its capacity as landlord, see Note 4. Accounting policies for
the recognition of rental income are stated above.
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NOTE 3. Operating segment information

Statement of comprehensive income

Central
) The Solna administration
Stockholm Gothenburg Oresund project and eliminations Total
Income Statement 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Rental income 1949 1943 161.8 125.8 95.7 85.5 11.8 25.7 - -  464.2 4313
Property expenses -41.7 -41.6  -40.4 -354 -28.6 -25.6 -2.2 -3.0 - - -112.9 -105.6
Operating surplus 153.2 152.7 121.4 90.4 67.1 59.9 9.6 22.7 - - 3513 325.7
Central administration - - - - - - - - -26.7 -28.9 -26.7 -28.9
Other operating income - - - - 8.0 - - - 15.1 9.6 23.1 9.6
Other operating
expenses - - - - - - - - -13.7 -8.1  -13.7 -8.1
Participations in the
earnings of associated
companies - - - - 0.7 0.8 - - 11.7 - 12.4 0.8
Financialincome 13.6 11.0 14.0 11.8 7.7 7.5 6.8 12.8 -34.9 -42.2 7.2 0.9
Financial expenses -20.0 -32.1 -13.8 -21.4 -7.5  -11.9 -2.9 -7.8  -50.1 -219 -943 -95.1
Profit from property
management 146.8 131.6 121.6 80.8 76.0 56.3 13.5 27.7 -98.6 -91.5 259.3 204.9
Realised changes in
value of investment
properties -1.7 - - - 0.9 -6.5 - - 103.0 - 102.2 -6.5
Unrealised changes
in value of investment
properties 39.4 62.5 70.4 15.2 23.7 33 64.8 311.5 - - 198.3 3925
Changes in values of
derivatives 9.8 -81.5 13.5 -23.1 7.2 -46.0 - - - - 30.5 -150.6
Pre-tax profit 194.3 112.6 205.5 72.9 107.8 7.1 78.3 339.2 4.4 -91.5 590.3 4403
Tax -18.8 -96.1
Total comprehensive
income for the year 571.5 344.2
Central
. The Solna administration
Stockholm Gothenburg Oresund project and eliminations Total
Balance sheet 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Investment properties 2,308.3 2,193.9 1,3052 15052 1,168.0 816.8 - 1,235.0 - - 47815 5,750.9
Property, plant and
equipment - - - - - - - - 1.6 1.8 1.6 1.8
Participations in
associated companies - - - - 27.7 27.0 - - | 638.0 1.0 665.7 28.0
Assets available for
sale - - 559.2 - - - - - - -  559.2 -
Other assets 493.3 415.1 486.7 363.9 2594 245.0 - 4.4 -299.5 -673.1 9399 3553
Total assets 2,801.6 2,609.0 2,351.1 1,869.1 1,455.1 1,088.8 - 1,239.4 340.1 -670.3 G6,947.9 6,136.0
Equity 1,021.4 9083 970.1 7521 5764 450.0 - 5625 -90.1 -688.1 2,477.8 1,984.8
Liabilities to credit
institutions 1,456.7 1,459.6 846.2 950.6 720.0 547.4 - 500.0 384.0 - 3,4069 3,457.6
Liabilities related to
assets held for sale - - 386.3 - - - - - - - | 386.3 -
Other liabilities 323.5 241.1 148.5 166.4 158.7 91.4 - 176.9 46.2 17.8 676.9 693.6
Total shareholders’
equity and liabilities 2,8016 2,609.0 2,351.1 1,8G9.1 1,455.1 1,088.8 - 1,239.4 340.1 -670.3 G,947.9 6,136.0
Other disclosures
Investments in non-
current assets 81.7 262.8 288.4 337.6 328.0 18.7 0.2 38.5 0.3 1.8 698.6 659.4
Depreciation - - - - - - - - -0.5 -0.6 -0.5 -0.6
Unrealised changes
in value, investment
properties 39.4 62.5 70.4 15.2 23.7 33 64.8 3115 - - 198.3 3925
Fair value of derivatives 9.8/ -81.5 13.5 -23.1 7.2 -46.0 - - - - 30.5 -150.6
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Operating segments

Catena’s operating segments, which consist of regions, have
been established based on information, which Catena'’s
Board (the CODM at Catena) has gathered to evaluate and
make strategic decisions.

The Group’s segments comprise the following regions:
Stockholm - comprises 20 properties in Norrkoping, Karls-
tad, Katrineholm, Sédertilje, Orebro, Hallsberg, northern and
southern Stockholm as well as individual properties in the
north of Sweden.

Gothenburg - consists of 16 properties in Gothenburg,
Boras, Jonkdping, Nassjo and Vaxjo. For one property in
Gothenburg, Hogsbo 21:2, an agreement to sell was signed
in December 2015, with the buyers taking possession of the
property on 15 January 2016. In accordance with IFRS 5, the
property is reported under the items Assets available for sale
and Liabilities related to assets available for sale.

Oresund - comprises 19 properties in Helsingborg, Astorp,
Malm®, Angelholm, Kristianstad and Halmstad.

The Solna project - consisted of the “Haga Norra” develop-
ment property in Solna, which was sold during the year.

Internal prices between the Group’s various segments are
calculated according to market terms and consist mainly of
invoiced administrative expenses.

Directly attributable items and items that can be allocated
to segments on a reasonable basis are included in the earn-
ings, assets and liabilities for each segment. The allocation
of property administration costs was primarily based on the
area. The segments’ investments in property, plant and equip-
ment and investment properties include all investments apart
from investments in current inventories and inventories of
minor value.

The Parent Company'’s earnings, after allocation of the
results of sales of participations in Group companies, are
included in the unallocated amount. Following elimination of
participations in Group companies and intra-Group settle-
ment as well as redistribution of participations in associated
companies, the Parent Company’s assets and liabilities are
included in the unallocated amount.

Income of about SEK 125.2 million (126.9) pertains to one
individual external customer. This income is spread across the
various regions.

All operations are carried out in Sweden and, accordingly,
all turnover was generated and all non-current assets located
in Sweden.

NOTE 4. Rental income

Duration of leases as per 31 December 2015
Information on operating leases - the Group as lessor.

Year of Number of Contractual  Contractual
maturity contracts annualrent, SEKm annualrent, %
2016 105 39.3 8.0
2017 66 74.1 15.2
2018 28 50.6 10.4
2019 21 99.1 20.3
2020 19 49.0 10.0
2021 4 45.9 9.4
2022+ 22 130.6 26.7
Total 265 488.6 100.0
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Contracted rental income by contract size, SEK m

Number of Contractual

contracts rentalincome, %

>10.0 12 39.8
5.0 - 10.0 19 29.8
3.0-5.0 12 10.1
2.0-3.0 13 6.9
1.0-2.0 18 5.9
0.5-1.0 21 3.2
<0.5 170 4.3
Total 265 100.0

NOTE 5. Property expenses and
central administration

Property expenses 2015 2014
Operating Expenses 27.4 24.4
Repair and maintenance 19.3 20.2
Property maintenance and technical

inspection 11.3 10.1
Property tax and ground rent 20.3 20.0
Other external costs 8.2 7.8
Property administration 26.4 23.1
Total 112.9 105.6
Central administration 2015 2014
Personnel costs 13.5 13.8
Services purchased 12.7 14.5
Depreciation of property,

plant and equipment 0.5 0.6
Total 26.7 28.9

Within the Group, part of the Parent Company’s costs are
invoiced on to subsidiaries and classified at subsidiaries and
the Group respectively as property expenses.

NOTE 6. Fees and expenses to
auditors

2015 2014
Auditing engagement 1.2 1.2
Audit activities in addition to the audit
engagement 0.5 0.2
Tax consultancy 0.2 0.5
Other Services 0.1 0.1
Total 2.0 2.0

Fees for audit engagements pertain to fees for the statutory
audit, that is, all work necessary to prepare the auditors’ re-
port, as well as audit advice provided in conjunction with the
audit engagement.

Audit activities in addition to the audit engagement pertain
to fees for various types of quality assurance services.

Other services pertain to activities not included in the audit
engagement, audit activities or tax consultancy services.

Costs for audits and other assignments from PwC pertain-
ing to all subsidiaries were charged to the Parent Company.
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NOTE 7. Leasing fees pertaining to
operational leasing

2015 2014
Minimum lease fees? 9.5 9.2
Total 9.5 9.2

1) There were no variable fees.

Contractual future minimum leasing fees pertaining to non-
cancellable leases fall due:

2015 2014
Within one year 9.6 9.3
Between one and five years 36.1 35.8
Later than five years 247.1 255.2
Total 292.8 300.3

Consolidated operating leases consist primarily of leasehold
agreements and an insignificant portion consists of operating
car leases.

NOTE 8. Employee and personnel
expenses

Average number of whom of whom
employees 2015 men 2014 men
Employees in Sweden 22 69 % 20 67%
2015 2014
Gender distribution Men Women Men Women
Board of Directors 67% 33% 83% 17%
Management 75% 25% 86% 14%
Salaries, fees, benefits
and other remuneration 2015 2014
Chairman of the Board 0.2 0.2
Other Board members 0.4 0.4
President
Base salary 2.7 2.6
Other remuneration 1.4 1.6
Other senior executives
(7 and 6 individuals respectively)
Base salary 5.6 4.9
Other remuneration 1.4 2.4
Other employees 10.1 9.8
Total 21.8 21.9
Pension expenses
President 1.3 0.8
Other senior executives
(7 and 6 individuals respectively) 2.1 1.2
Other employees 1.2 1.1
Total 4.6 3.1
Statutory social security
contributions incl. payroll tax
Chairman of the Board 0.1 0.1
Other Board members 0.1 0.1
President 1.6 1.5
Other senior executives
(7 and 6 individuals respectively) 2.7 2.5
Other employees 3.4 3.3
Total 7.9 7.5
Total 34.3 32.5

Fees, Board member, SEK t 2015 2014
Henry Klotz (Chairman of the Board) 200 200
Gustaf Hermelin - -
Bo Forsén 100 100
Erik Paulsson (effective from Sep 2013) 100 58
Andreas Philipson (resigned effective from

the Annual General Meeting of 28 April

2015) 100 100
Christer Sandberg

(until and including August 2013) - 42
Lennart Schénning

(until and including August 2013) - 42
Catharina Elmsater-Svard (elected at the

Annual General Meeting of 28 April 2015) - -
Katarina Wallin 100 100
Total 600 642

Remuneration to the Board and CEO pertains to the Board
and CEO of the Parent Company. No fees were paid to Board
members for participation in the Remuneration Committee.

Directors’ fees and terms of employment and dismissal for
senior executives

Policies

Remuneration paid to the CEO and other senior executives
comprises base salary, other remuneration (which comprises
bonus and mileage allowance) and pension. The term senior
executives refers to the seven individuals at Catena (6) who,
together with the Chief Executive Officer, comprise the senior
management. For the composition of management, see page
113.

Pension benefits and other remuneration paid to the CEO
and other senior executives are paid as part of total remuner-
ation.

Fees are paid to the Board fees in accordance with a deci-
sion by the Annual General Meeting. For 2015, fees totalled
SEK 0.6 million (0.6), of which the Chairman received SEK 0.2
million. No other fees or benefits were paid to the Board.

Market-based remuneration of SEK 0.1 million (1.9) and
0.1 million (0.0) for services rendered in, operational control,
financing and property advice was paid to companies owned
by Board Member Erik Paulsson and Board Member Catharina
Elmsater-Svard. The amounts are not included in the above
table. Board fees to Board member Katarina Wallin have
been paid to one of Wallin’s own companies.

Bonus

Bonus is payable to the CEO in an amount of 1 percent

of consolidated pre-tax profits, to the extent this amount
exceeds the budget set by the Board, with a cap set at an
amount corresponding to 50 percent of fixed salary in the
same calendar year. Bonus decisions are made on an annual
basis and do not imply any entitlement to bonuses in com-
ing years, Effective from 2015, the bonus is pensionable. In
addition, senior executives can receive a bonus in addition
to their fixed salaries. Other senior executives can receive a
maximum bonus of 25 percent of their fixed annual salary.

The main principle in the Group is fixed monthly salary.
For other company employees, when extraordinary work has
been performed or extraordinary results have been achieved,
a bonus may be paid corresponding to a maximum of one
month’s salary. This bonus is also within the scope of the
remuneration policy, according to which leasing and develop-
ment work beyond what has been budgeted provide opportu-
nities for a maximum bonus of one month’s salary. In some
cases the target is not measurable. This type of bonus is only
permitted to amount to 20 percent of the total bonus.

The Remuneration Committee considers the matter of the
company’s obligations and provisions have been made for bo-
nus of SEK 4.6 million (4.4) for 2015, including social security
contributions.

The bonus system only comprises one year at a time, »



currently only 2015. The Remuneration Committee is respon-
sible for evaluation of the system and the outcome.

Pensions
The pension age of the Chief Executive Officer is 65. Pension
contributions are made equal to 35 percent of pensionable
pay. Contractual ITP is utilised first and, thereafter, the
remainder is allocated to other pension insurances. Pension-
able salary is calculated according to the ITP plan’s rules.

The pension age for the Deputy CEO and other senior
executives, seven individuals in total (6), is 65. Their pensions
are secured through insurances. The pension agreements
stipulate pension premiums of 15-35 percent of pensionable
salary. In addition, other senior executives are also covered
by the ITP agreement.

The pension expense corresponds to expenses for
defined-benefit plans under IAS19.

Terms of severance

On termination by the company, in addition to salary for the
12-month (6) notice period, a severance payment amounting
to at most amount to 12 months’ salary is payable to the
Chief Executive Officer. Should the CEO secure other employ-
ment or start his own operations, the severance payment

is offset by income from the new employer. In the event of
notice being provided by the CEOQ, the notice period is six
months.

The employment contracts with the Deputy CEO and other
senior executives can be terminated by Catena with a notice
period of four to six months. In addition to salary during
the notice period, severance pay corresponds to four to six
months’ salary and is paid at the end of the notice period.
Should Catena release the executives from the obligation to
work during the notice period, any income from new employ-
ment or own operations is offset against salary from Catena.
In the event of termination by a senior executive, a notice
period of two to six months applies. In this case, no severance
pay is paid.

No severance payment was made to senior executives
whose employment ended.

Preparation and decision-making process
During the year the Remuneration Committee provided the
Board with recommendations for policies for remuneration
to senior executives. The recommendations included the
proportions between fixed and variable remuneration and the
amount of any pay increases. The Remuneration Committee
appointed by the Board prepares, negotiates and submits
proposals to the Board regarding the terms for the CEO. Fol-
lowing proposals from the CEO, the Remuneration Commit-
tee determines remuneration to other senior executives. The
Remuneration Committee also decides whether any bonus is
payable and then evaluates the system and the outcome.

All decisions taken by the Remuneration Committee are
reported back to the Board.

The Remuneration Committee met on one occasion in 2015.

NOTE 9. Financial income and

expenses

Financialincome 2015 2014
Interest income 7.2 0.9
Total 7.2 0.9
Financial expenses

Interest expenses -89.7 -89.1
Other financial expenses -4.6 -6.0
Total -94.3 -95.1
Net financial items -87.1 -94.2

NOTE 10 Tax

Recognised in the statement of
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comprehensive income 2015 2014
Current tax

Tax for the year -2.8 -0.1
Tax attributable to amended tax

assessment -1.1 -1.8
Total -3.9 -1.9
Deferred tax

Investment properties -5.9 -134.8
Derivatives -6.7 33.2
Tax loss carry-forwards -3.3 7.4
Untaxed reserves -1.1 -
Remeasurement at 22% - -
Other deferred taxes 2.1 -
Total -14.9 -94.2
Total recognised tax -18.8 -96.1
Reconciliation of effective tax 2015 2014
Pre-tax profit 590.3 440.3
Tax according to current rate: 22% -129.9 -96.9
Non-deductible expenses -0.2 -0.4
Taxes attributable to previous years -1.1 -0.4
Non-taxable sales of companies 108.8 -
Other non-taxable income 0.6 1.5
Re-measurement of deferred tax - -0.1
Tax on participations in profit of associa-

ted companies 2.8 0.2
Other 0.2 -
Recognised effective tax -18.8 -96.1

The recognised effective tax rate in per cent totalled 3.2

(21.8).

>
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2014

Acquisitions/
divestments

2015
Acquisitions/
Recognisedin divestments of

Tax recognised in the financial statements

Recognisedin

Deferred tax asset OB2014 profitorloss of companies CB2014 profitorloss companies CB2015
Investment properties 12.2 - -1.1 11.1 6.6 -3.5 14.2
Tax loss carry-forwards 3.9 7.4 9.3 20.6 -3.3 - 17.3
Derivatives - 32.2 - 32.2 -6.7 - 25.5
Losses on sales of shares - - - - 0.8 - 0.8
Total deferred tax assets 16.1 39.6 8.2 63.9 -2.6 -3.5 57.8
Deferred tax liabilities
Investment properties 271.6 134.3 7.3 413.2 11.3 -8.3 416.2
Derivatives 1.0 -1.0 - - - - -
Liabilities available for sale - - - - - -22.0 -22.0
Tax allocation reserves - 0.5 - 0.5 1.0 1.5
Total deferred tax liabilities 272.6 133.8 7.3 413.7 12.3 -30.3 395.7
In addition to the above tax loss carry-forwards, there are no unused tax losses for which deferred tax assets have been
recognised
NOTE 11. Investment properties
Investment properties are recognised at fair value. Logistics The Solna
Change for the year properties project 2015
Change for the year 2015 2014 Opening balance 4,515.9 1235.0 5,750.9
Opening balance 5,750.9 4,722.3  Acquisitions 566.7 - 566.7
Acquisitions 566.7 477.2 New builds, extensions
New builds, extensions and and remodelling? 131.4 0.2 1316
conversions? 131.6 180.4 Sales -7.2 -1,300.0 -1,307.2
Sales -1,307.2 -15.0  Unrealised changes
Other? 0.0 -6.5 in value 133.5 64.8 198.3
Unrealised changes in value 198.3 392.5 Total 5,340.3 0_5,340.3
Total 5,340.3 5,750.9 Assets available for sale -558.8 - -558.8
Carrying amount 4,781.5 - 4,781.5
Assets available for sale -558.8 -
Carrying amount 4,781.5 5,750.9 Lettable
Investment properties Number area, thou- Fair value,
Tax assessment value 2015 2014 byregion of properties sand sq.m. SEKm
Tax assessment value, buildings 1,596.2 1,554.8 Stockholm 20 309.8 2,308.3
Taxable value, land (of which Gothenburg 16 2919  1,864.0
leaseholds, SEK 112.0 m) 748.1 760.3  Oresund 19 215.1 1,168.0
Total 2,344.3 2,315.1 Total 55 816.8 5,340.3
1) Borrowing costs are expensed to earnings in the period to which they pertain
31 Decem- 31Decem- except for the interest expense under the production time pertaining to
Impact on profit for the year ber 2015 ber2014 larger new builds, extensiqns and con_versions that ta_\ke considerable timg to
- complete. These are organised as their own companies where all borrowing
Rental income 464.2 431.3 pertains to these new builds, extensions and conversions, which means that
Property expenses before property Capialised intorest expense was SEK 14 milion G0y, T
perties that generate rental income 86.5 81.6 .
Fair value
E’]rgreggteyrrel)éﬁ??cs)reisnt\l/gt;otrrlse%rtogreor-ty Fair value is established based on an internal valuation model
perties that do not generate rental that is updated every quarter. The calculation of fair value for
income - 0.4 eachindividual property is performed using a six-year cash
flow model.
Logistics Solna Valuation categories for investment properties
Change for the year properties  project 2014 Allof the Group’s properties are assessed as being at level 3
Opening balance 3.837.3 8850 4.722.3 in .the v'aluatilon. hierarchy..The Grloup's pro.pe.rties.comprise
Acquisitions 4772 _ 4772 p_rlmarlly loglstl_cs properties, wh]ch have similar risk pro-
files and valuation methods. During 2014, the Group also
New builds, extensions held a significant project property. Since the risk profile and
and conversions® 141.9 38.5 180.4  valuation method differ to some extent between project and
Sales -15.0 - -15.0  logistics properties, the Group has made the assessment
Other? -6.5 - -6.5 thatdisclosures should be provided for these two classes
Unrealised changes of properties. The assessed value of a project property is
in value 81.0 311.5 3925 based on the value of the development rights where the flow
Carrying amount 45159 1,235.0 5,750.9 in progress is also taken into account. The project property

concerned was sold in 2015.



Yield and real growth
The most significant variables in the model, which are deci-
sive for assessed fair value, are the yield requirement and the
estimated real growth, i.e. the inflation assumption. Other
key variables are net operating surplus, long-term vacancy
rate and geographic location.

Among other items, the applicable market risk-related
interest rate for property investments is used to establish
the yield requirement. This is based on a number of factors
including market interest rates, debt/equity ratio, inflation
forecasts and the required return on paid-in capital. However,
property-specific conditions also affect the yield requirement.
The yield requirement is the property’s net operating surplus
in relation to its fair value.

The approved yield is used as the discount rate with a
supplement for annual inflation. The level of annual future
inflation is assessed as being 2 percent.

Net operating surplus and vacancy rate

Net operating surplus is the difference between income from
property and operating and maintenance costs (property
expenses before property administration costs).

The starting point is the current forecast for net operating
surplus based on the previous year's outcome. However, in-
come and operating and maintenance costs for an individual
year can be impacted by factors that are not regularly recur-
ring under the long life of the property. If this should prove to
be the case for the actual forecast values, the amounts for
the individual year are normalised.

Income can be normalised if the estimated rent trend over
the six-year period is assessed as deviating from the initial
forecast. In which case, this is performed based on expected
changes in rental income based on the individual contract’'s
current rent versus the assessed market rent at the contract
maturity date and changes in long-term vacancy rates.

In addition, operation and maintenance costs can be the
subject of normalisation, based on an analysis of historical
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as well as current costs with respect to the tenant’s and the
landlord’s obligations under the lease.

Developmentrights

The fair value recognised in the balance sheet with regard

to development rights represents the estimated values of
planned development rights on each property. The valuation
method applied for the development rights is based on the lo-
cation price method whereby the value has been assessed rel-
ative to each location. Following an assessment whereby the
locations of Catena’s development rights have been weighed
in, deductions are made for estimated costs for demolition,
planning, etc. Deductions have also been made for waiting
times and assessed risk associated with development rights.
Most of the development rights have been divested in connec-
tion with the sale of the project properties in Solna.

Calculation

When all variables have been established based on the above
description, a calculation of the present value is carried out
for the next five years' net operating surplus in the cash-flow
model. In addition, the present value of the residual value

is based on the net operating surplus from year six in this
model. Thereafter, any adjustment for the value of on-go-

ing projects and land with unutilised development rights is
carried out.

The total of these values comprises the estimated fair
value. A certain discrepancy is, however, permitted between
the calculated value and the carrying amount prior to ad-
justment of the carrying amount. The discrepancy should be
within a range controlled by a permitted discrepancy from the
established direct yield requirement of +/-0.25 percent. Only
when the discrepancy exceeds or falls below this range is the
carrying amount adjusted. This discrepancy is accepted since
there is always an element of uncertainty in the estimated
value.

Compilation of outcomes for significant variables and the normalised amounts used in the internal valuation model:

Normalised
For definitions, see page 115. Outcome values?
Stockholm Gothenburg Oresund ProjektSolna Total Total
Rental value, SEK m 211.9 189.2 110.4 - 5115 528.3
Economic letting ratio, % 95.0 95.5 96.7 - 95.5 86.8
Contractual annual rent, SEK m 201.2 180.6 106.8 - 488.6 458.7
Net operating surplus before property administration
costs, SEK m 163.5 130.2 73.1 10.8 377.6 431.6
Property yield before property administration costs, % 7.1 7.0 6.3 0.2 7.1 8.1
Surplus ratio before property admin. % 83.9 80.5 76.4 91.5 81.3 94.1
Discount rate 10.1
1) Based on the property portfolio at the end of the year. The normalised surplus ratio is based on the contractual annual rent.
The discrepancy between the actual outcome for the net No. of properties valued 2015 2014

operating surplus before property administration and the nor-
malised value depends largely on projects that, during parts
of 2015, only generated costs but that, in the normalised val-
ues, have been calculated on the annualised values of the net
operating surplus generated when the project is completed.

The fair market value can first be established when it is
sold. The fair value calculations under the above model in-
clude various assessment factors that contain an element of
uncertainty.

To ensure the accuracy of the internal valuation, external
valuations are conducted of a selection of the portfolio, with
DTZ/Cushman&Wakefield valuing about 63 percent of the
portfolio, corresponding to a value of SEK 3.3 billion, during
2015.

Number of properties 29 21

External valuation, SEK m 3,374.0 4,272.9
Corresponding internal valuation, SEK m = 3,356.8 4,277.8
Deviation, SEK m 17.2 -4.9

Deviation, % 0.5 -0.1
Carrying amount 5,340.3 | 5,750.9
Proportion valued externally, % 62.9 74.4 )
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Valuation

Since all property valuations contain assessment factors with
varying degrees of uncertainty, normally, a specific uncer-
tainty interval is stated for the estimated values. Accordingly,
on comparison of the internally calculated values and the
external valuations, a deviation interval of +/-10 percent be-
tween these values is accepted before the internal values are
subjected to any retesting. Comparison is made at the total
level for the externally valued portfolio.

Sensitivity analysis
The parameters that significantly impact the value of a prop-
erty are the discount rate and the rental value. Assumptions
including interest rates, debt/equity ratio, inflation assump-
tions, the required return on paid-in capital, property location,
tenant structure, etc. are included in the discount rate. Rental
value reflects the market’s view of what tenants are willing to
pay for property space.

To illustrate how a change of +/-1 percent in these parame-
ters impacts the estimated fair value, the following sensitivity
analysis can be carried out:

Impact

Change +1% -1%
Discount rate, SEK m -257 152
Rental value, SEK m 211 -318
NOTE 12. Property, plant and
equipment

Equipment 2015 2014
Opening expenses 2.3 1.2
Acquisitions 0.3 1.8
Sales and disposals - -0.7
Closing cost 2.6 2.3
Opening depreciation -0.5 -0.1

Sales and disposals - 0.2

Depreciation for the year -0.5 -0.6
Depreciation carried forward -1.0 -0.5
Carrying amount 1.6 1.8
Depreciation is distributed over the
following items in profit or loss.

2015 2014
Central administration 0.5 0.6

NOTE 13. Participations in associated
companies

Joint Venture 2015 2014
Accumulated cost

At beginning of the year 27.0 26.2
Acquisitions 0.1 -
The year’s participation in profit after tax 0.6 0.8
Carrying amount at year end 27.7 27.0
Associated companies 2015 2014
Accumulated cost

At beginning of the year 1.0 -
Acquisitions 610.2 0.1
Shareholder contributions 15.0 0.9
The year’s participation in profit after tax 11.8 -
Carrying amount at year end 638.0 1.0
Total value associated companies

at year-end 665.7 28.0

Pertains to the percentage of share capital, which corre-
sponds to the proportion of voting rights.

PeBri Projektutveckling AB currently conducts no opera-
tions.

Log. Sunnana AB is a property-owning company that con-
ducts projects and is developing a logistics facility in Burlov,
outside Malmé.

Log. Tostarp AB is a property-owning company that is de-
veloping Logistikposition Helsingborg.

Log. Sunnana Tva AB owns part of the land at the logistics
facility in Burldv, outside Malmo and that will run projects and
the development of this facility.

Log. Tostarp Tva AB currently conducts no operations.

All of the joint ventures are owned together with Peab.

Catena’s associated company, SFF Holding AB, will through
the subsidiary Nya Svensk FastighetsFinansiering AB (publ)
engage in financing activities in the form of raising loans on
the capital market through the issuance of bonds (MTN-Me-
dium Term Notes) and lending operations, by providing cash
loans the partners: Catena, Dids, Fabege, Platzer and Wihl-
borg.

On 23 October 2015, Catena acquired 29.55 percent of the
shares in Tribona AB (publ). Tribona is a streamlined property
company in logistics and logistics properties, domiciled in
Lund in the southern Swedish province of Skane. In connec-
tion with the acquisition, a public takeover bid was submitted,
resulting in Catena AB owning 94.5 percent of Tribona as per
February 2016. In 2016, compulsory acquisition procedure
has been initiated and Tribona’s shares have been de-listed
from the stock exchange. On the closing date of 31 December
2015, Catena held only 29.55 percent of the shares in Tri-
bona and had no decisive control over Tribona, which is why
Catena has chosen to report the investment in Tribona as a
participation in an associated company. On 26 January 2016,
it was clear that Catena held more than 90 percent of the
shares and Catena will consolidate Tribona as of this date,
since Catena now has a controlling influence over Tribona.

The difference between the equity value using the equity
method in the consolidated financial statements compared
with the value of the participation if recognised under the
acquisition cost method amounts to SEK 32.9 million (5.5).

In addition to the proportion of ownership and the consoli-
dated recognised values, the following table displays the as-
sociated companies’ income statements and balance sheets,
SEK million (200 percent). »



FINANCIAL INFORMATION m
ANNUAL REPORT 2015 | CATENA AB [

2015

Joint ventures/ Registered Carrying
Associated companies Corp.Reg.No. office Share Assets Liabilities Income Earnings amount
PeBri Projektutveckling AB 556752-1108 Helsingborg 50.00% 0.8 0.0 - -0.4 0.4
Log. Sunnana AB 556699-7788 Helsingborg 50.00% 302.9 297.7 - 0.0 2.6
Log. Tostarp AB 556667-8784 Helsingborg 50.00% 118.9 69.7 4.1 1.7 24.6
Log. Sunnana Tva AB 559023-3911  Helsingborg 50.00% 0.4 0.3 - - 0.1
Log. Tostarp Tva AB 559025-2259 Helsingborg 50.00% 0.1 - - - 0.1
Tribona AB (publ)? 556870-4646  Lund 29.55% 5,452.0 3,534.0 402.0 140.0 622.3
SFF Holding AB 556958-5606 Stockholm 20.00% 5.0 0.0 0.0 -0.7 15.6
Total 5,880.1  3,901.7 406.1 140.6 665.7

1) On the balance sheet date, Catena held 14,377,428 shares in Tribona. The Tribona share was listed on Nasdaq Stockholm and the market price was SEK 42.9 per share.

2014
Jointventures/ Registered Carrying
Associated companies Corp. Reg.No. office Share Assets Liabilities Income Results amount
PeBri Projektutveckling AB 556752-1108  Angelholm 50% 1.2 0.0 - -0.1 0.6
Log. Sunnana AB 556699-7788  Angelholm 50% 121.7 116.5 - 0.0 2.6
Log. Tostarp AB 556667-8784 Angelholm 50% 118.2 70.7 3.5 1.7 23.8
SFF Holding AB 556958-5606 Stockholm 20% 5.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0
Total 246.1 187.2 3.5 1.6 28.0
Summary financial statements for Tribona: Other associated companies’ income statements and
2015 balance sheet statements, SEK m (100%)

Income statement, SEK m Jan-Dec
Rental income 402.0 31 December 31 December
Property expenses -88.0 2015 2014
Administrative expenses -33.0 Income statement
Net financial items -152.0 Rental.income 4.1 3.5
Changes in value 51.0 Operating surplus 3.7 3.2
Pre-tax profit 180.0 Net result for the year -1.0 0.4
Tax -40.0
Net profit after tax 140.0 31December | 31 December

S 2015 2014
Other comprehens!ve |.ncome -2.0 Balance Sheet
Total comprehensive income 138.0 Non-current assets 4,072.2 172.7

Current assets 233.5 26.3

Balance Sheet, SEI? m 31 December 2015 Total assets 4,305.7 199.0
Investmentpropertles 5,262.0 Equity 400.5 125
Other fixed assets 72.0 Provisions 0.8 0.6
Other assets - 63.0 " Other liabilities 3,904.4 185.9
Cash and cash equivalents 55.0 Total shareholders’ equity
Total assets 5,452.0 and liabilities 4,305.7 199.0
Equity 1,918.0
Long-term interest-bearing liabilities 2,892.0
Other non-current liabilities 449.0
Currentinterest-bearing liabilities 58.0
Other current liabilities 135.0

Total shareholders’ equity and
liabilities

5,452.0
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NOTE 14. Accounts receivable

Time analysis of accounts receivable 31 Decem- 31 Decem-
that are past due but notimpaired ber2015 ber2014

< 30 days 0.1 -0.7
31-60 days 0.2 1.0
61-90 days 0.3 0.1
>91 days 0.5 0.6
Total 1.1 1.0
Not yet due 0.8 0.6
Total 1.9 1.6
Impaired receivables

Opening provision 2.3 3.0
Provision for probable losses 0.0 0.1
Previous probable losses, paid 0.0 0.0
Acquired provisions 0.0 0.0
Confirmed losses -2.2 -0.8
Closing provision 0.1 2.3
Total accounts receivable 2.0 3.9

A provision is made for accounts receivable in excess of 30
days unless the assessment is that the customer’s payment
problems are of short-term transient nature.

NOTE 15. Assets and liabilities
available for sale

On 16 December 2015, an agreement was signed for the sale
of the company Fastigheten Preppen HB, with the associat-
ed property Vastra Frolunda Hogsbo 21:2. The subsidiary’s
assets and liabilities have consequently been reported as held
for sale in the Annual Report for 2015.

The buyers took possession of the subsidiary on 15 Janu-
ary 2016. Financial information on the divested company is
given below:

No analysis is made of earnings and cash flow, since the
sale is considered to have only a minor impact on these
items.

At the end of the year, the carrying 31 December

amounts for assets and liabilities were: 2015
Investment properties 558.8
Current receivables 0.4
Total assets 559.2
Equity -
Liabilities to credit institutions, non-current 347.2
Deferred tax liabilities 22.0
Other current liabilities 17.1
Total shareholders’ equity and liabilities 386.3
Net assets 172.9

NOTE 16. Other receivables

31 December 31 December

2015 2014
Receivable, associated companies 333 55.7
VAT and other tax receivables 12.7 10.1
Other receivables 0.2 0.1
Total 46.2 65.9

NOTE 17. Prepaid expenses and
accrued income

31 December 31December

2015 2014
Administration and property
expenses 6.0 2.0
Prepaid fee for credit facility 2.6 2.1
Prepaid project expenses 2.0 13.5
Prepaid ground rent 2.9 2.7
Prepaid insurance premiums 0.1 -
Accrued income 1.9 1.6
Total 15.5 21.9
NOTE 18. Equity and earnings per
share

Total

Number number

Number of registered shares shares of shares

New share issue
Bonus issue
Private placement
Private placement 13 February 2014

Number of reg.
shares

17 May 1999 490,754 11,555,662
9 March 2006 8,838 11,564,500
18 October 2013 13,630,952 25,195,452
446,469 25,641,921

25,641,921

Earnings per share, calculated on
earnings attributable to the Parent
Company’s shareholders during the
year, (expressed in SEK per share)

Earnings per share prior to
and after dilution

Net result for the year
Ordinary shares outstanding

Weighted average of ordinary
shares outstanding

Earning{s per share prior to and
after dilution, SEK

2015 2014

571.5 344.8
25,641,921 25,641,921

25,641,921 25,556,348

22.29 13.49

Equity
Catena’s goal with asset management is to ensure that fund-
ing and liquidity is secured, that financial risk exposure is kept
within the mandate decided by the Board and that payment
systems are appropriate.

Catena defines capital as total equity as recognised in the
statement of financial position.

Financial targets Target 2015 Outcome 2015
Interest-coverage ratio >1.75 multiple 4.8 multiple
Average capital tied-up >2 years 2.5 years
Equity ratio >30% 35.7%

Financial policy
Catena has prepared a financial policy that requlates which
financial instruments that may be used, which investments
that may be made, how lending is to be carried out as well as
the management of interest rate exposure on borrowings.
In accordance with the company’s financial policy, divi-
dends shall, in the long term, amount to 50 percent of profit
from property management, less standard rate tax. For the
2015 financial year, the Board of Directors and the CEO pro-
pose a total dividend of SEK 99.7 million, corresponding to
49.3 percent of the defined profit.

External capital requirements

The main external capital requirements that Catena is subject
to as regards property loans are an interest- coverage ratio

of 1.5, a loan-to-value ratio of less than 70-75 percent and

an equity ratio in excess of 25 percent. Catena has met all
external requirements on Group companies.



NOTE 19. Financial instruments and
financial risk management

Financial policy

The Group’s assumption of financial risk is governed by the
risk mandate set by Catena’s Board. The Group's treasury
management is carried out by Catena AB, which is tasked
with ensuring that funding and liquidity is secured, that finan-
cial risk exposure is kept within the mandate decided by the
Board and that payment systems are appropriate.

Catena’s policy is that net debt (interest-bearing liabilities
less cash and cash equivalents) will be mainly covered by bor-
rowing with a loan term between nought and ten years. All
borrowing is to be conducted in SEK. Catena'’s aim is, where
possible, that loan terms should be adapted to the duration
of leases signed. The loan portfolio has been adapted to the
risk strategy through the use of fixed-rate loans, interest-rate
swaps and interest-rate cap agreements to adjust fixed-inter-
est terms.

Financing and financing risks

Interest-bearing liabilities at Catena comprise mainly liabili-
ties to credit institutions and liabilities to associated compa-
nies. On 31 December 2015, liabilities to credit institutions
amounted to SEK 3,754.1 million (3,457.6), of which SEK
347.2 million related to liabilities available for sale in accor-
dance with IFRS 5, see Note 15.

Financing consists of property loans with mortgages as
collateral, in some cases, the subsidiaries’ shares are also
pledged and guarantees are provided by the Parent Company.
Property loans are subject to the following covenants: the in-
terest-coverage ratio must exceed 1.5, the loan-to-value ratio
may not exceed 70-75 percent of market value and the equity
ratio must exceed 25 percent. See Note 17 for more informa-
tion about target fulfilment.

The aim of Catena’s liquidity planning is to ensure that
liquidity is always available to meet payment obligations at
a given time. Catena makes overall liquidity forecasts each
quarter, which then form the basis for on-going work. To
minimise the cost of Catena’s borrowing and to ensure that
financing can be obtained, the company has committed credit
facilities in place that cover the need for operating loans.
Furthermore, Catena endeavours to distribute loan maturities
evenly over time and to diversify sources of capital. At 31
December 2015, lines of credit totalling SEK 3,900.3 million
(4,201.5) were available, of which SEK 146.2 million (743.9)
was unutilised.
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The table below shows when the financial assets and liabili-
ties fall due for renegotiation or amortisation.

The properties owned by Catena are financed by a combina-
tion of loans and equity. The majority of financing comprises
loans from banks and other credit institutions. Financing risk
is the risk that future financing in the form of new loans has
a negative impact on Catena’s earnings due to increased bor-
rowing costs. Catena manages this risk by allocating borrow-
ing to various maturity dates.

Loan maturity structure

Maturesin 2015 2014
2015 - 1,037.8
2016 1,344.7 849.3
2017 1,968.1 1,404.1
>2018 441.3 166.4
Total 3,754.1 3,457.6

Maturity structure for recognised
liabilities to credit institutions

31 December 31 December

2015 2014
Maturity, 1-5 years from
balance-sheet date 2,250.0 2,237.7
Maturity, > 5 years from
balance-sheet date 159.4 166.4
Total 2,409.4 2,404.1

Loan terms and conditions, effective interest rate
and maturity structure

Nominal amount Average
in original currency effective interest rate

31Decem- 31Decem- 31Decem- 31Decem-
ber2015 ber2014 ber2015 ber2014
Liabilities
to credit
institutions 3,754.1 3,457.6 2.6% 2.8%

The average interest rate takes in to consideration interest-
rate swap contracts and interest-rate caps.

The total volume outstanding was SEK 2,000.0 million
(2,000.0) for interest-rate swap agreements and SEK 0.0 mil-
lion (0.0) for interest-rate caps.

Maturity structure of financial assets and liabilities, 31 December 2015

Financial liabilities

Financial Associated Unutilised Paymentflows,

assets Loans Supplier companies Accrued lines of credit intereston loans

0-3 months 236.7 369.3 48.0 14.9 38.8 - 11.0

3-12 months - 975.4 - - - 115.8 30.2

1-2 years 294.5 1,968.1 - - - 30.4 21.0

2-5 years 169.9 - - - - 6.5

More than 5 year 318.6 271.4 - - - - 59.2

Total 849.8 3,754.1 48.0 14.9 38.8 146.2 127.9
Maturity structure of financial assets and liabilities, 31 December 2014

Financial liabilities

Financial Associated Unutilised Paymentflows,

assets Loans Supplier companies Accrued lines of credit intereston loans

0-3 months 256.8 84.2 22.0 14.2 48.0 0.9 12.6

3-12 months - 953.6 - - - 96.4 37.6

1-2 years - 849.3 - - - 50.7 33.8

2-5 years - 1,404.1 - - - 595.9 15.0

More than 5 year - 166.4 - - - - 82.4

Total 256.8 3,457.6 22.0 14.2 48.0 743.9 181.4

>
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Interest-rate risk

The interest-rate risk is the risk of changes in market inter-
est rates negatively impacting cash flow or the fair value of
financial assets and liabilities. Catena’s financial policy stipu-
lates a framework for how work with managing interest-rate
risk should be carried out. One overriding goal is that the ma-
turity structure of leases should be taken into consideration
when determining the fixed-interest term. This is performed
mainly through adapting the loan portfolio to the risk strategy
through the use of derivatives, interest-rate swaps and inter-
est-rate cap agreements.

On 31 December 2015, total interest-bearing liabilities
amounted to SEK 3,754.1 million (3,457.6), SEK 347.2 million
of which was liabilities available for sale (see Note 15), and
SEK 88.5 million (17.0) that will be amortised over 2016.

At the same time, the average effective interest rate was

2.6 percent (2.8) and the average fixed-interest term was
about 0.4 years (0.2), without taking derivatives into consid-
eration. Taking derivatives into account, the average period
of fixes interest was 3.1 years (3.5). The Group’s earnings
can be impacted by the continuous changes to these factors.
The majority of the Group’s interest-bearing liabilities have

a fixed-interest term of less than one year with a floating
interest rate. Interest rates on variable loans are based on the
3-month STIBOR with the addition of a margin. To limit the
interest-rate risk of floating-rate loans, interest-rate swaps
are held in an amount of SEK 2,000.0 million (2,000.0) and in-
terest-rate cap agreements are held in an amount of SEK 0.0
million (0.0). The average protection after taking into account
the interest-rate swap and interest-rate cap agreements lim-
its the interest rate to approximately 2.6 percent (2.9).

Two of Catena’s loan facilities are affected by the negative
Stibor rate with the marginal rate being reduced in these
cases. Derivatives are affected when Catena must also pay
the variable interest component since this is now negative.
The net effect of the negative Stibor rate is SEK 1.9 million.
Other borrowing facilities are not affected by the negative
Stibor rate as these include an interest rate floor that means
the interest rate can never fall below 0 percent.

Interest rate maturity Effective Share
structure, years SEKm interestrate, %* in%
2016 1,603.7 1.6 427
2017 30.7 1.7 0.9
2020 112.0 1.4 3.0
2021 500.0 4.3 13.3
2022 500.0 3.7 13.3
2023 500.0 3.1 13.3
>2024 507.7 2.8 13.5
Total 3,754.1 2.6 100.0

1) Average interestrate, taking into account the contractual interest-rate
swap agreements.

Nominal value

31 December
2015

31 December

Net profit/loss on financial instruments recognised in
profit or loss

Net profit/loss comprises earnings attributable to financial
instruments excluding interest. For information about interest
income and interest expense, refer to Note 9 Financial income
and expenses.

Net profit/loss
2015 via profit or loss

Loans and receivables -

Financial assets measured at fair

value via profit or loss 30.5

Net profit/loss

2014 via profitor loss
Loans and receivables -0.1
Financial assets measured at fair

value via profit or loss -150.6

A one percentage-pointrise in the interest rate for inter-
est-bearing liabilities, assuming unchanged loan volumes and
fixed-interest terms in line with valid derivative agreements,
would have a negative impact on earnings of SEK 37.5 m
(neg: 34.6).

Creditrisks
Credit risk is defined as the risk of making a loss as a result
of the failure of a counterparty to discharge its obligations.
Credit risk can primarily be attributed to accounts receiv-
able outstanding. Losses on accounts receivable arise when
customers are put in receivership or for other reasons are
unable to meet their payment obligations. Credit risk from
financial activities is minimal since Catena’s customers have
high credit ratings. A credit check is made in respect of the
customers’ creditworthiness and, where any uncertainty ex-
ists, Catena requires bank guarantees or guarantee commit-
ments. All rents are invoiced in advance. In 2015, Catena was
not impacted by any financial loan losses nor were there any
significant loan losses in operations.

For a time analysis of overdue accounts receivable, and
information on bad debt losses, refer to Note 14.

Concentration risk

Concentration risk means, for example, the risk of substantial
dependence on a few customers. As of 31 December 2015,
Catena’s ten (10) largest tenants accounted for 61 percent
(65) of the Group’s contracted income from property.

31 December 31 December
Creditrisk exposure 2015 2014

Cash and cash equivalents 201.5 199.4
Accounts receivable 1.9 1.6

Other current receivables 46.2 65.9
Other long-term receivables 617.0 2.6
Total 866.6 269.5

Fair value (excl.
accrued interest)

31 December
2015 2014

Carrying amount

31 December 31 December
2015 2014

Interest-rate swap contracts

(receive floating, pay fixed interest) 2,000.0

-115.7 -146.2 -115.7 -146.2

Of the carrying value of interest rate swap agreements, the full amount, SEK -115.7 million (-146.2), pertains to the non-current

portion.

The above table shows that the fair value and book value of
the Group’s derivatives do not differ. Also in the case of other
contracted financial assets and liabilities in the Group and
the Parent Company, fair values correspond to the carrying
amounts as of 31 December 2015.
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NOTE 20. Classification of financial instruments

2015 Measurement categories
Loan and

Measured at fair Measured at accounts Carrying
Financial assets value via profit or loss amortised cost receivable amount
Other long-term receivables - 613.1 613.1
Accounts receivable - - 1.9 1.9
Other current receivables - - 333 33.3
Cash and cash equivalents - - 201.5 201.5
Total - - 849.8 849.8
Non-financial assets 5,538.9
Non-financial assets
available for sale 559.2
Total 6,947.9

Financial liabilities

Non-current liabilities to credit institutions - -2,409.4 - -2,409.4
Interest-rate derivatives -115.7 - - -115.7
Non-current liabilities available for sale - -351.2 - -351.2
Current liabilities to credit institutions - -997.4 - -997.4
Accounts payable - -45.9 - -45.9
Current liabilities to associated companies - -14.9 - -14.9
Accrued expenses - -36.9 - -36.9
Total -115.7 -3,855.7 - -3,971.4
Non-financial assets -485.5
Non-financial liabilities

available for sale -13.2
Total -4,470.1

Carrying amounts correspond to fair values for all balance-sheet items.

2014 Measurement categories
Loan and

Measured at fair Measured at accounts Carrying
Financial assets value via profit or loss amortised cost receivable amount
Other long-term receivables - - -
Accounts receivable - - 1.6 1.6
Other current receivables - - 55.8 55.8
Cash and cash equivalents - - 199.4 199.4
Total - - 256.8 256.8
Non-financial assets 5,879.2
Total 6,136.0

Financial liabilities

Non-current liabilities to credit institutions - -2,404.1 - -2,404.1
Interest-rate derivatives -146.2 - - -146.2
Current liabilities to credit institutions - -1,053.5 - -1,053.5
Accounts payable - -22.0 - -22.0
Current liabilities to credit institutions - -14.2 - -14.2
Accrued expenses - -48.0 - -48.0
Total -146.2 -3,541.8 - -3,688.0
Non-financial assets -463.2
Total -4,151.2

Carrying amounts correspond to fair values for all balance-sheet items.
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NOTE 21. Pledged assets and
contingent liabilities

31Decem- 31Decem-
Pledged assets ber 2015 ber 2014
Property mortgages for liabilities
to credit institutions 3,430.4 3,836.5
Shares for liabilities to credit
institutions? 2,157.9 2,838.6
Guarantee obligations 20.9 20.9
Total 5,609.2 6,696.0
Contingent liabilities
Responsibility for Group
companies’ liabilities (HB/KB) 737.6 681.0
Guarantees given for Group
companies 3,315.5 3,451.3
Guarantee obligations for the
benefit of associated companies 99.5 10.0
Other contingent liabilities 0.1 0.1
Total 4,152.7 4,142.4

1) Pertains to shares in Group companies.

NOTE 22. Accrued expenses and
prepaid income

31 Decem- 31Decem-

ber 2015 ber 2014

Advance payment of rents 28.8 31.1
Accrued operating expenses 5.5 12.5
Prepaid media expenses 0.6 10.9
Accrued interest expenses 14.1 9.9
Accrued salary-related expenses 11.1 9.7
Other items 5.5 5.0
Total 65.6 79.1

NOTE 23. Related parties

Close associations

The Group is under a significant influence from Erik Paulsson,
with his family and companies. At 31 December 2015, his
holding amounted to 46.8 percent (45.6) of the voting rights
in the Group’s Parent Company. Erik Paulsson is a Board
member of Catena. Erik Paulsson’s influence means that the
Group has related-party transactions with Backahill AB and
Hansan AB. Related party transactions also took place with
AB Elmsaters in Enhérna, a company owned by Board Mem-
ber, Catharina Elmsater Svard, for consulting services.

In addition to the above related party relationships, through
subsidiaries, Catena owns the following associated compa-
nies: Log.Sunnana AB, Log. Sunnana Tva AB, Log.Tostarp
AB, Log. Tostarp Tva AB, PeBri Projektutveckling AB and SFF
Holding AB. See Note 13 Participations in associated compa-
nies.

In 2015, no Board member or senior executives in Catena
AB or its subsidiaries have themselves, via companies or re-
lated parties, had any direct involvement in business transac-
tions carried out by Catena that were or are unusual in their
nature or their terms and conditions. See Note 8 Employee
and personnel expenses.

In two cases, Catena has given guarantees for Group com-
panies’ associated companies, see Note 21 Pledged assets
and contingent liabilities.

2015 2014
Transactions with the Group’s
associated companies
Sales 3.2 8.7
Interest income 1.5 -
Currentreceivables 67.0 55.7
Interest-bearing liabilities 14.9 14.7
Guarantees given 99.5 10.0
Transactions with other related parties
Purchasing 118.7 4.8
Sales 1,430.7 -
Long-term receivables 613.1 -

Other information
Liabilities and receivables with related parties pertain to the
settlement account, to which interest is charged.

The item Non-current receivables relates to the deferred
purchase consideration incurred in connection with the sale
of the project properties in Solna.

Transactions with related parties are priced at market
rates.

NOTE 24. Significant events after the
end of the financial year

In connection with the public takeover bid for Tribona’s
shares, Catena’s Annual General Meeting decided to issue
new shares and on 29 January 2016, 7,246,971 shares and
votes were registered. At that time, Catena had secured 91.6
percent of the shares in Tribona and extended the acceptance
period.

Following the extended acceptance period, Catena has ac-
quired an additional 2.9 percent of the shares and now owns
94.5 percent of the Tribona Group. A further 346,614 shares
in Catena will be issued. Catena has initiated the compulsory
redemption of the remaining shares in Tribona. The Board
of Tribona has decided to delist Tribona’'s shares from the
Nasdaq Stockholm exchange. The last day of trading in the
shares will be 22 February 2016.

Tribona will be included in Catena’s financial statements as
of the interim report for the first quarter of 2016. Tribona’'s
personnel will be recruited to Catena in the spring of 2016.
The buyers of the Hégsbo 21:2 property took possession of
the facility on 15 January 2016.

Otherwise, no significant events have taken place since
the balance-sheet date that impact the assessment of the
Group’s financial position.



NOTE 25. Cash flow statement

Supplementary disclosures to the cash-flow statement

1 January 2015
31 December 2015
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1 January 2014
31 December 2014

Interest paid and dividends received
Dividends received

Interest received

Interest paid

Adjustments for non-cash items

Amortisation, depreciation and impairment of assets
Change in value of investment properties

Change in value of derivatives

Participations in the earnings of associated companies
Net capital loss from the divestment of non-current assets
Net capital loss from the divestment of operations

Other non-cash profit/loss items

Acquisition of assets via subsidiaries

No business combinations were carried out during the year and the
year's acquisitions of shares in subsidiaries have been classified as

asset acquisitions and net proceeds comprised the following items:

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed:
Investment properties

Financial assets

Operating receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Provisions

Deferred tax liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Current operating liabilities
Total net assets

Purchase consideration paid

Payment for redemption of the company’s debt to the Parent Company

Non-cash issue
Total

Less: Participations in joint ventures
Less: Cash and cash equivalents in the acquisition
Impact on cash and cash equivalents

Divestment of operations
Divested assets and liabilities:
Investment properties
Operating receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Deferred tax liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Remaining shareholding
Capital gains

Total

Purchase consideration received
Vendor's lien

Total

Less: Cash and cash equivalents in the acquisition
Impact on cash and cash equivalents

Acquisitions of other financial assets
Capital contribution made

Acquisitions of associated companies
Changes in interest-bearing items
Total investments in financial assets

Divestment of financial assets
Shareholder contribution received
Settlement of financial receivables
Total divestment of financial assets

4.2
-88.9

0.5
-198.3
-30.5
-12.4
-101.3
-0.9
-5.4
-348.3

555.7

15.0
3.2

-72.0
-31.8
470.1

235.9
234.2

470.1

-3.2
466.9

1,306.7
47.1

-0.5

-26.8

95.4
1,421.9

1,421.9
-650.0
771.9

771.9

625.0

625.0

0.9
-90.2

0.6
-392.5
150.6
-0.6
6.5

-0.1
-235.5

477.2

-6.3
12.8

0.8
-236.9
-13.5
234.1

163.1

71.0
-50.0
184.1

-12.8
171.3

1.0
55.8
56.8
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Financial statements - Parent

Company

Parent Company Income Statement
1Jan.2015 1 Jan.2014

SEKm Note 31 Dec.2015 31 Dec.2014
Net turnover 4 30.2 27.2
Cost of services

performed 5,6,7,8 -55.1 -54.7
Operating profit/loss -24.9 -27.5
Financial income and

expenses 9

Interest income and

similar profit/loss items 73.2 41.7
Profit from participations

in affiliated companies 102.7 49.2
Interest expense and

similar profit/loss items -99.4 -219.6
Pre-tax profit 51.6 -156.2
Tax on profit for the year 10 -17.7 22.1
Comprehensive income

for the year 16 33.9 -134.1

No items in the Parent Company are recognised in other
comprehensive income and total comprehensive income is
therefore consistent with profit for the year.

Balance Sheet, Parent Company

31 Decem- 31 Decem-
SEKm Note ber2015 ber2014
ASSETS
Fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets

Equipment 11 1.6 1.8
Financial fixed assets

Participations in Group companies 12 1,242.4 1,227.4
Participations in associated companies 13 610.2 -
Deferred tax asset 10 29.4 39.1
Other long-term receivables 3.8 2.3
Total financial fixed assets 1,885.8 1,268.8
Total fixed assets 1,887.4 1,270.6
Current assets

Current receivables

Accounts receivable 14 0.2 0.6
Receivables from Group companies 1,210.3 1,373.3
Other receivables 35.6 57.1
Prepaid expenses and

accrued income 16 3.3 3.4
Total current receivables 1,249.4 1,434.4
Cash and bank balances 201.2 198.7
Total current assets 1,450.6 1,633.1
Total ASSETS 22 3,338.0 2,903.7

SEKm

31 Decem-

31 Decem-

Note ber2015 ber2014

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
AND LIABILITIES

Shareholders’ equity 17

Restricted shareholders’ equity

Share capital 112.8 112.8

Statutory reserve 10.0 10.0

Total restricted shareholders’ equity 122.8 122.8

Unrestricted shareholders’ equity

Share premium reserve 962.4 1,130.2

Accumulated profit - 43.2

Comprehensive income for the year 33.9 -134.1

Total unrestricted

shareholders’ equity 996.3 1,039.3

Total equity 1,119.1 1,162.1

Liabilities

Provisions

Other provisions 18 0.5 0.7

Total provisions 0.5 0.7

Non-current liabilities

Liabilities to credit institutions 15 316.8 -

Deferred tax liabilities 10 - -

Interest-rate derivatives 15 115.7 146.2

Total Long-term liabilities 432.5 146.2

Current liabilities

Liabilities to credit institutions 15 67.2 -

Accounts payable 4.8 1.5

Liabilities to Group companies 15 1,667.5 1,553.9

Other liabilities 19.8 16.0

Accrued expenses and prepaid

income 19 26.6 23.3

Total current liabilities 1,785.9  1,594.7

Total liabilities and provisions 22 2,218.9 1,741.6

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS'

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 3,338.0 2,903.7

31 Decem- 31 Decem-

20 ber2015 ber2014

Pledged assets 20.9 20.9

Contingent liabilities 2,730.7 3,385.6
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Parent Company changes in shareholders’ equity

Restricted share-

holders’ equity Unrestricted equity
Share Comprehen-
Share Statutory premium Accumulated siveincome
SEKm equity reserve reserve profit fortheyear Totalequity
Opening equity, 1 Jan 2014 110.9 10.0 1,082.2 94.4 1,297.5
New share issue 1.9 48.1 50.0
Comprehensive income for the year -134.1 -134.1
Dividend -51.3 -51.3
Closing equity, 31 Dec 2014 112.8 10.0 1,130.3 43.1 -134.1 1,162.1
Equity brought forward 1 Jan 2015 112.8 10.0 1,039.3 - 1,162.1
New share issue - - -
Comprehensive income for the year 33.9 339
Dividend -76.9 - -76.9
Equity carried forward 31 Dec 2015 112.8 10.0 962.4 - 33.9 1,119.1

Parent Company Cash Flow Analysis

Note 1 January 2015 1January 2014
SEKm 21 31December2015 31December2014
Operating activities
Pre-tax profit 51.6 -156.2
Adjustment for items not included in cash flow -30.1 151.5
Cash flow before changes in working capital 215 -4.7
Changes in working capital
Change in operating receivables -10.4 -6.6
Change in operating liabilities 10.1 -7.6
Cash flow from operating activities 21.2 -18.9
Investing activities
Acquisitions of property, plant and equipment -0.3 -1.8
Divestments of tangible fixed assets - 0.5
Acquisitions of financial assets -625.2 -0.1
Sales and net amortisation of financial assets 299.7 60.4
Cash flow from investing activities -325.8 59.0
Financing activities
Loans raised 384.0 -
Dividend -76.9 -51.3
Cash flow from financing activities 307.1 -51.3
Cash flow for the year 2.5 -11.2
Opening cash and cash equivalents 198.7 209.9

Closing cash and cash equivalents 201.2 198.7
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Notes - Parent Company

NOTE 1. Accounting principles

Amounts in SEK m unless otherwise specified.

Catena AB (publ), 556294-1715, is the Parent Company of a
Group comprising companies that own and operate proper-
ties or run property-related projects. All inter-Group functions
are centralised to the Parent Company.

The Parent Company has prepared its Annual Reportin
accordance with the Swedish Annual Accounts Act and the
Swedish Financial Reporting Board’'s recommendation no.
RFR 2 Accounting for legal entities, which entails that the Par-
ent Company in its annual report for the legal entity applies
all of the EU-approved IFRS and statements, to the fullest
extent possible, within the framework of the Annual Accounts
Act, and taking into consideration the connection between
accounting and taxation. Recommendations indicate the
exceptions and the supplements to be made to the IFRS.

The Parent Company applies the same accounting policies
as the Group, detailed in Note 2 for the Group, except in the
cases stated below.

Differences between the accounting policies of the Group
and the Parent Company

The following accounting policies for the Parent Company
have been applied consistently for all periods presented in the
Parent Company’s financial reports, unless specifically stated
otherwise.

Subsidiaries, associated companies and joint ventures
Participations in subsidiaries, associated companies and joint
ventures are recognised in the Parent Company under the
cost method.

Shareholder contributions and Group contributions
Shareholder contributions are recognised directly in equity
by the recipient and capitalised in shares and participations
by the payer. Group contributions paid to subsidiaries are
recognised as an increase in the shares in the subsidiary
and, thereafter, tested to identify whether any impairment
need exists. The tax effect is recognised in profit or loss.
Group contributions received from subsidiaries are treated as
dividends and are recognised as financial income in profit or
loss. The tax effect is recognised in profit or loss.

Presentation of income statement and balance sheet

The Parent Company follows the presentation formatin the
Swedish Annual Accounts Act for the income statement and
balance sheet, which means that a different presentation
format for equity and that other provisions are reported as a
separate item in the balance sheet.

NOTE 2. Financial risk management

The Group applies common risk management for all units.
Consequently, the description included in Note 19 is, to all
intents and purposes, also applicable to the Parent Company.

NOTE 3. Significant estimates and as-
sumptions for accounting purposes

Estimates and assessments are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reason-
able under the circumstances.

For accounting purposes, the Group’s descriptions of key
estimates and assessments are also applicable to the Parent
Company.

NOTE 4. Net turnover

Turnover primarily comprises intra-Group administration fees.

NOTE 5. Cost of services performed

2015 2014
Personnel costs 34.1 325
Other external costs 20.5 21.6

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 0.5 0.6
Total 55.1 54.7

NOTE 6. Employee and personnel
expenses

Average number of whom of whom

of employees 2015 men 2014 men

Employees in Sweden 21 69% 20 67%
Board of Senior
Directors executives

Gender distribution in

executive management 2015 2014 2015 2014

Men 67% 83% 75% 86%

Women 33% 17% 25% 14%

2015 2014
Salaries, fees, benefits and
other remuneration
Chairman of the Board 0.2 0.2
Other Board members 0.4 0.4
Chief Executive Officer
Base salary 2.7 2.6
Other remuneration 1.4 1.6
Other senior executives
(7 and 6 individuals respectively)
Base salary 5.6 4.9
Other remuneration 1.4 2.4
Other employees 9.7 9.8
Total 21.4 21.9
Pension expenses
President 1.3 0.8
Other senior executives
(7 and 6 individuals respectively) 2.1 1.2
Other employees 1.2 1.1
Total 4.6 3.1
Statutory social security
contributions incl. payroll tax
Chairman of the Board 0.1 0.1
Other Board members 0.1 0.1
President 1.6 1.5
Other senior executives
(7 and 6 individuals respectively) 2.7 2.5
Other employees 3.3 3.3
Total 7.8 7.5
Total 33.8 32.5

For information about directors’ fees, the terms and condi-
tions governing the employment and dismissal of senior ex-
ecutives, remuneration of related parties, bonuses, pensions,
severance pay, etc. please refer to Note 8 for the Group.



NOTE 7. Fees and expenses
to auditors

2015 2014
Audit engagement 1.2 1.2
Audit activities in addition to the audit engagement 0.5 0.2
Tax consultancy 0.2 0.5
Other Services 0.1 0.1
Total 2.0 2.0

Fees for audit engagements pertain to fees for the statutory
audit, thatis, all work necessary to prepare the auditors’ re-
port, as well as audit advice provided in conjunction with the
audit engagement.

Audit activities in addition to the audit engagement pertain
to fees for various types of quality assurance services.

Other services pertain to activities not included in the audit
engagement, audit activities or tax consultancy services.

Costs for audits and other assignments from PwC pertain-
ing to all subsidiaries were charged to the Parent Company.

NOTE 8. Leasing fees pertaining to
operational leasing

2015 2014
Minimum lease fees? 0.6 0.6
1) There were no variable fees.
Contractual future minimum leasing fees
pertaining to non-cancellable leases fall due:
Within one year 0.7 0.6
Between one and five years 0.4 0.7
Total 1.1 1.3

The Parent Company’s operational leases mainly comprise
operational vehicle leases.

NOTE 9. Financial income
and expenses

Interestincome and similar

profit/loss items 2015 2014
Interest income, Group companies 39.6 41.0
Interest income, other 3.1 0.7
Interest-rate derivatives, changes in value 30.5 -
Total 73.2 417
Profit from participations in

affiliated companies 2015 2014
Group contributions received 131.2 104.8
Impairment of shares in subsidiaries -28.5  -55.6
Total 102.7 49.2
Interest expense and similar

profit/loss items 2015 2014
Interest expense, Group companies -49.9  -44.8
Interest expense, other -44.4 | -20.9
Interest-rate derivatives, changes in value - -150.9
Other financial expenses -5.1 -3.0
Total -99.4 -219.6
Net financial items 76.5 -128.7
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NOTE 10 Tax

Recognised in profit or loss 2015 2014
Current tax

Tax for the year 8.0 -15.6
Deferred tax

Deferred tax for temporary

differences, derivatives -9.7 37.7
Total recognised tax -17.7 22.1
Reconciliation of effective tax 2015 2014
Pre-tax profit 51.6 -156.2
Tax according to current rate: 22% -11.4 34.4
Non-deductible expenses -6.3  -12.3
Recognised effective tax -17.7 22.1

The recognised effective tax rate in percent totalled 34.3 (14.1).

Recognised in profit or loss

OB CB CB
Deferred tax asset 2014 2014 2014 2015 2015
Pension provisions 0.9 -0.2 0.7 -0.2 0.5
Interest-bearing liabilities - 322 322 -6.7 25.5
Loss carry-forwards 1.5 4.7 6.2 -28 34
Total deferred tax assets 2.4 36.7 39.1 -9.7 29.4
Deferred tax liabilities
Interest-bearing liabilities 1.0 -1.0 - - -
Total deferred tax liabi-
lities 1.0 -1.0 - - -
NOTE 11. Property, plant
and equipment
Equipment 2015 2014
Opening expenses 2.3 1.2
Acquisitions 0.3 1.8
Sales and disposals - -0.7
Closing cost 2.6 2.3
Opening depreciation -0.5 -0.1

Sales and disposals - 0.2

Depreciation for the year -0.5 -0.6
Depreciation carried forward -1.0 -0.5
Carrying amount 1.6 1.8

Depreciation is distributed over the following items in profit
or loss.

2015 2014
Cost of services performed 0.5 0.6
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NOTE 12. Participations in Group companies

31 Decem- 31Decem-
ber2015 ber2014
Accumulated cost
At beginning of the year 1,294.5 1,238.8
Acquisitions - 0.1
Group contributions paid? 28.5 55.6
Capital contribution made 15.0 -
Closing balance 1,338.0 1,294.5
Accumulated write-downs
At beginning of the year -67.1 -11.5
Impairment for the year? -28.5 -55.6
Closing balance -95.6 -67.1
Carrying amount at year end 1,242.4 1,227.4

Specification of Parent Company’s direct holdings of shares in subsidiaries

1) Group contributions paid to subsidiaries are recognised as an increase in the
shares in the subsidiary and, thereafter, tested to identify whether any impair-
ment need exists. Group contributions received from subsidiaries are treated
as dividends and are recognised as financialincome in profit or loss.

2) Impairment for the year is included under the profit/loss item “Profit from
participations in Group companies”, see Note 9.

31 December2015 31 December 2014

Subsidiary Corp. No. Registered office No.of shares Holdingin%?" @ Carrying amount Carrying amount
Catena Logistik AB 556922-7365 Helsingborg 1,000 100.0 1,154.8 1,154.8
Catena Byggnads AB 556048-4726 Helsingborg 50,000 100.0 47.7 47.7
Catena Fastigheter AB 556754-0843 Helsingborg 1,000 100.0 0.1 0.1
Catena i Stenungsund AB 556754-0835 Helsingborg 1,000 100.0 0.1 0.1
Catenai Vinsta AB 556754-0868 Helsingborg 1,000 100.0 24.6 24.6
Catenai Taby AB 556754-7509 Helsingborg 1,000 100.0 0.1 0.1
Catena Obl. Holding AB  556984-8467 Helsingborg 1,000 100.0 15.1 0.1
Total 1,242.4 1,227.4
1) Pertains to the percentage of share capital, which corresponds to the proportion of voting rights.
Specification of indirectly owned subsidiaries

Registered Registered
Name Corp. Reg. No. office  Name Corp. Reg. No. office
Catena Backa Invest AB 556758-6838 Helsingborg  Catena Log. Muskdtgatan AB  556633-8157 Helsingborg
Catena Backa 23:5 KB 916624-0797 Helsingborg  Catena Log. Morby AB 556713-8572 Helsingborg
Catena Bronsringen AB 556702-8153 Helsingborg  Catena Log. Norrkoping AB 556703-2809 Helsingborg
Catena Hogsbo AB 556649-7730 Helsingborg  Catena Log. Projekt AB 556824-7570 Helsingborg
Fastigheten Preppen HB 969684-0983 Gothenburg  Catena Log. Regulatorn AB 556584-0005 Helsingborg
Catena Konen AB 556802-4771 Helsingborg  Catena Log. Sockret 4 AB 559025-6698 Helsingborg
Catena Log. Backa AB 556595-0002 Helsingborg  Catena Log. Stockholm AB 556519-4148 Helsingborg
Catena Log. Basfiolen AB 556697-7129 Helsingborg  Catena Log. Sodertalje AB 556524-7433 Helsingborg
Catena Log. B-Krakebo 1:56 AB 559016-9198 Helsingborg  Catena Log. Tahe AB 556102-5304 Helsingborg
Catena Log. Boras AB 556519-4155 Helsingborg  Catena Log. Vanda AB 556672-1402 Helsingborg
Catena Log. Boras Tre AB 556691-3223 Helsingborg  Catena Log. Varalév AB 556663-0025 Helsingborg
Catena Log. Boras Tva AB 556537-6141 Helsingborg  Catena Log. Vasslan AB 556697-7137 Helsingborg
Catena Log. Férmannen AB 556667-7299 Helsingborg  Catena Log. Vindtunneln 2 AB 556685-3064 Helsingborg
Catena Log. Godsvagnen AB  556740-8801 Helsingborg  Catena Log. Vissol AB 556140-0135 Helsingborg
Catena Log. Gavle AB 556697-7194 Helsingborg Catena Log. Vissol Tva AB 556717-7653 Helsingborg
Catena Log. Haninge AB 556660-1596 Helsingborg  Catena Log. Vardshuset AB 556697-7145 Helsingborg
Catena Log. Hasthagen AB 556252-1616 Helsingborg  Catena Log. Vaxjo Ett AB 556222-2595 Helsingborg
Catena Log. Invest AB 556649-9108 Helsingborg  Catena Log. Adelmetallen AB 556740-9874 Helsingborg
Catena Log. Jakobsberg AB 556607-0925 Helsingborg  Catena Log. Orebro AB 556636-3270 Helsingborg
Catena Log. Jarfalla KB 969628-1634 Helsingborg  Catena Log. Ostanvinden AB  556697-7111 Helsingborg
Catena Log. Jonkoping AB 556536-7587 Helsingborg  Catena Logistikposition
Catena Log. Jonkodping Tva AB 556691-3215 Helsingborg  Helsingborg AB 556688-6635 Helsingborg
Catena Log. Kopparverket AB  556700-1275 Helsingborg  Catena Obl. AB 556984-8426 Helsingborg
Catena Log. Kristianstad AB 556697-7202 Helsingborg  Catena Séderasen Fastighets AB556634-8776 Helsingborg
Catena Log. Kungsbacka AB  556969-5439 Helsingborg  Catena Transportstaden
Catena Log. Képingegarden HB 916626-8806 Helsingborg ~ Orebro AB 556591-2309 Helsingborg
Catena Log. Lagret 1 AB 556660-1539  Helsingborg  Catena Attehdgen AB 556659-9360  Helsingborg
Catena Log. Lagret 2 AB 559007-5544 Helsingborg Hallsbergs Terminal AB 556317-5966 Helsingborg
Catena Log. Ljungby AB 556536-7595 Helsingborg Hallsbergs Kombiterminal AB 556643-8023 Helsingborg
Catena Log. Malmé AB 556537-6166 Helsingborg Logistikposition Karlshamn AB 556752-6040 Karlshamn
Catena Log. Malmé Tva AB 556824-2944 Helsingborg Logistikposition Katrineholm AB 556692-4147 I(:-rl_trineholm
Catena Log. Misteln AB 559011-1307 Helsingborg ~ Queenswall AB 559001-6696 Angelholm
Catena Log. Mosas AB 556710-4459 Helsingborg



NOTE 13. Participations in associated
companies
31 December 31 December
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Pertains to the percentage of share capital, which corre-
sponds to the proportion of voting rights.

On 23 October 2015, Catena acquired 29.55 percent of the
shares in Tribona AB (publ). Tribona is a streamlined property
company in logistics and logistics properties. In connection

i i 201 201 . 2. ; h .
Associated companies 015 014 with the acquisition, a public takeover bid was submitted,
Accumquted cost resulting in Catena AB owning 94.5 percent of Tribona AB as
At beginning of the year - -  per February 2016. In 2016, compulsory acquisition pro-
Acquisitions 610.2 —  cedure has been initiated and Tribona's shares have been

. _  de-listed from the stock exchange.

Carrying amount at year end 610.2 In addition to the proportion of ownership and the Parent
Company’s recognised values, the following table displays
the associated companies’ income statements and balance
sheets, SEK million (100 percent).

2015

Joint ventures/ Registered Carrying

Associated companies Corp. Reg. No. office  Participation Assets Liabilities Income Results amount

Tribona AB (publ) 556870-4646 Lund 29.55% 5,452.0 3,534.0 402.0 140.0 610.2

Total 5,452.0 3,534.0 402.0 140.0 610.2

For more information, see Group Note 13, Participations in associated companies.

NOTE 14. Accounts receivable

The Parent Company'’s accounts receivable amounted to SEK
0.2 m (0.6). Of these, SEK 0.0 m (0.6) has not fallen due. No
bad debt losses arose for the Parent Company during the year.

NOTE 15. Financial instruments and
financial risk management

Financial policy

The Parent Company’s assumption of financial risk is gover-
ned by the risk mandate set by Catena’s Board. The policy
and targets are detailed in Note 18 for the Group.

Financing and financing risks

Loan terms and conditions, effective interest rate and
maturity structure

Nominal amountin Average effective
original currency interest rate

31 Decem- 31Decem- 31Decem- 31Decem-
ber2015 ber2014 ber2015 ber2014

Liabilities to
credit institu-
tions

Liabilities to
Group
companies
Liabilities to
associated
companies

384.0 - 2.6% -

1,667.5 1,553.9 3.0% 3.0%

14.9 14.2 0.0% 3.0%
The Group’s interest-rate risk is hedged in the Parent Compa-
ny. All carrying amounts in the Parent Company correspond
to fair values. The carrying amounts on the closing date are

shown in the following table.

Nominal value Carrying amount

31 Decem- 31Decem- 31Decem-
ber 2015 ber 2015 ber 2014

Interest-rate swap
contracts 2,000.0 -115.7 -146.2

A one percentage-pointrise in the interest rate for inter-
est-bearing liabilities, assuming unchanged loan volumes,
would have an impact of SEK 20.7 million (15.7).

NOTE 17. Equity

Number of shares in issue at 31 December 2015

NOTE 16. Prepaid expenses
and accrued income

31 December 31 December

2015 2014
Prepaid fee for credit facility 2.6 2.1
Prepaid marketing expenses - 1.0
Prepaid rent for premises 0.1 0.2
Other prepaid expenses 0.6 0.1
Total 3.3 3.4

Number of registe- Quotient value Total value Votingrights Total number
Class of shares red shares per share, SEK per share, SEK per share of votes
Ordinary shares 25,641,921 SEK 4.40 SEK 112,824,452.40 1 25,641,921

All shares confer equal rights to participate in the company’s assets and earnings. >
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Share capital progress

Total number

Increasein share Total share Increase in number Total number of of shares

Year Transaction capital, SEK capital, SEK of registered shares registered shares outstanding
1999 New share issue 49,075,400 50,000,000 490,754 11,555,662 11,555,662
2006 Bonusissue 883,800 50,883,800 8,838 11,564,500 11,564,500
2013  Private placement 59,976,189 110,859,989 13,630,952 25,195,452 25,195,452
2014  Private placement 1,964,464 112,824,452 446,469 25,641,921 25,641,921

The dividends adopted by the Annual General Meeting and
paid in 2015 were SEK 3.00 per share or a total of SEK 76.9
million. For 2015, the Board proposes an ordinary dividend of
SEK 3.00 per share. Based on the number of shares outstand-
ing entitled to receive a dividend for the 2015 financial year,
the proposed dividend means a total dividend amount of

SEK 99.7 million. The dividend amount corresponds to 98.6
percent of the dividend target in Catena’s financial targets,
SEK 101.1 million.

NOTE 18. Other provisions

2015 2014
Special payroll tax 0.5 0.7
Payments
2015 2014
Amount for which a provision is expected
to be paid after more than 12 months 0.4 0.6
2015 2014
Opening balance 0.7 0.8
Settled commitments -0.2 -0.1
Closing balance 0.5 0.7
NOTE 19. Accrued expenses and
prepaid income
31Decem- 31Decem-
ber 2015 ber 2014
Accrued salary-related expenses 11.0 9.7
Accrued interest expenses 10.6 9.4
Other accrued expenses 5.0 4.2
Total 26.6 23.3

Following the end of the year, new shares were issued as
part of the acquisition of Tribona. A total of 7,593,585 shares
were issued. The total number of shares following the share
issue is 33,235,506 and the total share capital amounts to
SEK 146,236,226.40 after the issue.

The Parent Company’s target for asset management and
the financial targets correspond with the Group’s and are
detailed in Note 18 for the Group.

NOTE 20. Pledged assets and
contingent liabilities

Pledged assets 2015 2014
Guarantee obligations 20.9 20.9
Total 20.9 20.9
Contingent liabilities 2015 2014
Guarantees given for Group companies 2,631.2 3,375.6
Guarantee obligations for the benefit of

associated companies 99.5 10.0
Total 2,730.7 3,385.6
NOTE 21. Cash flow statement
Supplementary 1 January 2015 1 January 2014

disclosures 31 December 2015 31 December 2014

Interest paid and
dividends received

Interest received 42.7 41.7
Interest paid -104.6 -61.4
Adjustment for

items notincluded

in cash flow

Amortisation,
depreciation and
impairment of assets 0.4 0.6

Change in value

of derivatives -30.5 150.9

Group contributions

received - -

Total -30.1 151.5
NOTE 22. Classification of financial instruments
2015 Measurement categories

Measured at fair Measured at Loanand Carrying

Financial assets valueviaprofitorloss amortised cost accountsreceivable amount
Other long-term receivables - - -
Accounts receivable - - 0.2 0.2
Interest-rate derivatives - - -
Other current receivables - - 1,249.2  1,249.2
Cash and cash equivalents - - 201.2 201.2
Total - - 1,450.6 1,450.6
Non-financial assets 1,887.4
Total 3,338.0

>
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Non-current liabilities to credit institutions - -316.8 - -316.8
Interest-rate derivatives -115.7 - - -115.7
Current liabilities to credit institutions - -67.2 - -67.2
Accounts payable - -4.8 - -4.8
Other current liabilities - -1,687.3 - -1,687.3
Accrued expenses - -26.6 - -26.6
Total -115.7 -2,102.7 - -2,218.4
Non-financial assets -0.5
Total -2,218.9
Carrying amounts correspond to fair values for all balance-sheet items.
2014 Measurement categories

Measured at fair value Measured at Loansand Carrying
Financial assets viaprofitorloss amortised cost accountsreceivable amount
Other long-term receivables - - - -
Accounts receivable - - 0.6 0.6
Interest-rate derivatives - - - -
Other current receivables - - 1,429.0 1,429.0
Cash and cash equivalents - - 198.7 198.7
Total - - 1,628.3 1,628.3
Non-financial assets 1,275.4
Total 2,903.7
Financial liabilities
Non-current liabilities to credit institutions - - - -
Interest-rate derivatives -146.2 - - -146.2
Current liabilities to credit institutions - - - -
Accounts payable - -1.5 - -1.5
Other current liabilities - -1,569.9 - -1,569.9
Accrued expenses - -23.3 - -23.3
Total -146.2 -1,594.7 - -1,740.9
Non-financial assets -0.7
Total -1,741.6

Carrying amounts correspond to fair values for all balance-sheet items.

NOTE 23. Significant events after the
end of the financial year

Following the end of the financial year, Catena AB acquired
an additional 65 percent of the shares in Tribona AB (publ)
as a result of the public takeover bid submitted in December
2015.

As per February 2016, Catena owns a total of 94.5 percent
of shares in Tribona and a compulsory redemption procedure
and delisting of Tribona’s shares from the stock exchange
have taken place. In addition, in early 2016, Catena issued a
total of 7,593,585 new shares in Catena in connection with
the acquisition of the shares. The decisions to implement the
share issues were taken by Extraordinary General Meetings in
Catena on two occasions.

All personnel in Tribona will be recruited to Catena in the
spring of 2016 as a result of the transfer of operations that is
being implemented.

Otherwise, no significant events have taken place since the
balance-sheet date that impact the assessment of Catena’s
financial position.

NOTE 24. Related parties

Close associations

In addition to the related parties detailed for the Group in
Note 23, the Parent Company exercises controlling influence
over its subsidiaries, see Note 12 Participations in Group
companies

2015 2014
Transactions with subsidiaries
Purchasing 0.8 0.7
Sales 28.9 26.5
Interest income 39.6 41.0
Interest expenses 49.9 44.8
Group contributions received 131.2 104.8
Group contributions paid 36.5 71.3
Current receivables 1,210.3 1,373.3
Interest-bearing liabilities 1,667.5 1,553.9
Guarantees given 2,631.2 3,375.6
Transactions with the Group's
associated companies
Sales 3.2 8.7
Interest income 1.5 -
Current receivables 67.0 55.7
Interest-bearing liabilities 14.9 14.7
Guarantees given 99.5 10.0
Transactions with other related parties
Purchasing 0.2 4.8

Other information

Liabilities and receivables with related parties pertain to the
settlement account, to which interest is charged. Transac-
tions with related parties are priced at market rates.
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Signing of the Annual Report

The Board of Directors and the President certify that the
Annual Report hasbeen prepared in accordance with gener-
ally accepted accounting standards in Sweden and that the
consolidated accounts have been prepared in accordance with
the international accounting standards referred to in Regula-
tion (EC) No 1606/2002 of the European Parliament and of
the Council of July 19, 2002 on the application of interna-
tional accounting standards.

The annual accounts and consolidated financial state-
ments provide a true and fair view of the financial position
and performance of the Parent Company and Group. The

Administration Report provides a true and fair view of the
development of the Group’s operations, financial position
and performance and describes significant risks and uncer-
tainty factors facing the Group.

The annual accounts and consolidated financial state-
ments were approved for release by the Board on 22 March
2016. The consolidated statement of comprehensive, state-
ment of financial position and the Parent Company’s income
statement and balance sheet are subject to the approval of the
Annual General Meeting on 27 April 2016.

Solna, 22 March 2016

Henry Klotz

Chairman of the Board

Bo Forsén

Board member

Katarina Wallin

Board member

Erik Paulsson

Board member

Catharina Elmsater-Svard

Board member

Gustaf Hermelin

Board member
Chief Executive Officer

Our auditors’ report was submitted on 22 March 2016

PricewaterhouseCoopers AB

Lars Wennberg

Authorised Public Accountant
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To the Annual General Meeting of Catena AB Corporate Registration Number:

556294-1715

Report on the annual accounts and consolidated financial
statements

We have conducted an audit of the annual and consolidated accounts of
Catena AB (publ) for the year 2015 with the exception of the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 102-113. The annual accounts and consoli-
dated financial statements of the company are included in the printed
version of this document on pages 11-27 and 36-113.

Responsibility of the Board of Directors and the President for the
annual and consolidated accounts.

The Board of Directors and CEO are responsible for the preparation
of annual accounts that provide a true and fair representation, pursu-
ant to the Annual Accounts Act, and consolidated financial statements
that provide a true and fair representation pursuant to the International
Financial Reporting Standards, IFRS, as adopted by the EU, and the An-
nual Accounts Act and for the internal control that the Board and CEO
assess as necessary for preparing annual accounts and consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the annual and consoli-
dated accounts based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accor-
dance with International Standards on Auditing and generally accepted
auditing standards in Sweden. These standards demand that we adhere
to professional requirements and that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance that the annual and consolidated accounts
are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the annual accounts and conso-
lidated financial statements. The auditor selects the procedures to be
conducted based on such assessments as the risk of material misstate-
ment in the annual accounts and consolidated financial statements, and
whether such misstatement is due to fraud or error. In this risk assess-
ment, the auditor takes into account those parts of the internal control
processes that are relevant to how the company prepares the annual and
consolidated accounts to provide an accurate view with the purpose of
drawing up review measures that are appropriate to conditions, albeit
not with the purpose of making any statements regarding the efficacy of
the company’s internal control processes. An audit also includes an eva-
luation of the appropriateness of the accounting policies applied and of
the reasonableness of the Board’s and CEQ’s estimates in the accounts,
as well as an evaluation of the overall presentation in the annual report
and consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have gathered is sufficient
and appropriate as a basis for our statements.

Statements

In our opinion, the annual accounts have been prepared in accordance
with the Annual Accounts Act and present, in all material respects, a
fair portrayal of the financial position of the Parent Company as of

31 December 2015 and its financial performance and its cash flows

for the year in accordance with the Annual Accounts Act. and that the
consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with the Annual Accounts Act and provide, in all significant respects,

a true and fair representation of the Group’s financial position at 31
December 2015 and of its earnings and cash flows for the year pursuant
to International Financial Reporting Standards, as adopted by the EU,
and the Annual Accounts Act. Our opinions do not cover the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 102-113. The Board of Directors’ report is
consistent with the other parts of the annual accounts and the consolida-
ted accounts.

We therefore recommend that the Annual General Meeting approve
the consolidated Income Statement and Balance Sheet and the Income
Statement and Balance Sheet of the Parent Company.

Reporton other legal and regulatory requirements

In addition to our audit of the annual accounts and consolidated finan-
cial statements, we have also examined the proposed appropriations of
the company’s profit or loss and the administration of the Board and
CEO of Catena AB (publ) for 2015. We have also conducted a statutory
review of the Corporate Governance Report.

Responsibility of the Board of Directors and the President

The Board of Directors is responsible for the proposal for appropria-
tions of the company’s profit or loss, and the Board of Directors and the
CEO are responsible for administration under the Companies Act and
for the Corporate Governance Report on pages 102-113 being prepared
in accordance with the Annual Accounts Act.

Auditors ' responsibility

It is our responsibility, based on our audit, to express an opinion, with
a reasonable degree of certainty, on the proposed appropriation of the
company’s earnings and the administration of the company. We have
conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards in Sweden. As a basis for our statement regarding the propo-
sed appropriation of the company’s profit or loss, we have reviewed the
statement by the Board of Directors explaining its proposal and a selec-
tion of the data on which this is based to ascertain whether the proposal
complies with the Companies Act.

As a basis for our statement regarding discharge from liability, we
have, in addition to our audit of the annual and consolidated accounts,
reviewed significant decisions, measures and conditions in the company
to ascertain whether any director or the President is liable for compen-
sation to the company. In our review, we have also considered whether
any director or the President has in any other way contravened the Com-
panies Act, the Annual Accounts Act or the Articles of Association.

We believe that the audit evidence we have gathered, in accordance
with the above, is sufficient and appropriate as a basis for our state-
ments.

We have read the Corporate Governance Report and based on that
reading and our knowledge of the company and the Group, we believe
that we have a sufficient basis for our statements. This means that our
review of the Corporate Governance Report, as required by law, has
another focus and is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted
in accordance with International Standards on Auditing and generally
accepted auditing practices in Sweden.

Statements
We recommend that the Annual General Meeting appropriate
Company’s profit or loss in accordance with the proposal presented in
the statutory administration report (Board of Directors’ Report) and
that the directors and the President be discharged from liability for the
financial year.

In my view, a Corporate Governance Report has been prepared and
its statutory information is consistent with other parts of the annual and
consolidated financial accounts.

Stockholm, 22 March 2016
PricewaterhouseCoopers AB

Lars Wennberg
Authorised Public Accountant



Férmannen 4, Angelholm
There is a 22,241 square-metre logistics warehouse on the
Férmannen 4 property in Angelholm, which is well located in a

trade and logistics area closely adjacent to the EG/E20
motorway.

One of the tenants, Ingrid Skoog Bengtsson, CEO of Skoogs
Akeri & Logistik AB:

logistics, from where the Nordic

metropolitan regions, Copenhagen /
Malmé, Oslo and Stockholm can be reached
within a day.

, , Angelholm is an ideal location for
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Committed, clear and trans-
parent corporate governance
imbues confidence

The 2015 year of operations was characterised by strong growth. In addition
to acquisitions of a number of properties, in the autumn, we were able to sub-
mit a bid for Tribona, which was completed in early 2016. This pervaded the
work of the Board over the year. Alongside the valuation and financial issues
associated with growing operations, the work of the Board also became more
future-oriented, focusing increasingly on balancing opportunities and risks
responsibly. To maintain the confidence of stakeholders, we have developed
and adapted our corporate governance for an expanded organisation.

Particularly follow-
ing the sale of the
project properties in
Solna, Catena has, in
a short space of time,
been transformed
into a focused and
leading company

for logistics prop-
erties. Following

the acquisition of
Tribona, which dou-
bled our operations,
Catena also manages
Sweden’s largest
portfolio of logistics
properties. Our rapid

transformation has
been possible thanks to dedicated and smooth cooperation
between the company’s management and Board, which
have, without delay, been able to weigh up commercial
risks and opportunities, and make informed decisions.
Catena’s Board is, I would say, a practised team that has
proven itself capable of cooperating well. Its members
possess valuable experience and skills that are of use to
the operations in different ways. Both existing and poten-
tial, future board members are continuously assessed by
the Chairman of the Board and the Nomination Commit-
tee. This makes it possible to compose a well-considered
Board, based on the company’s plans and requirements.
Ahead of the increased focus on core operations, such
considerations led, among other things, to the Nomination

Committee proposing a somewhat altered Board of Direc-
tors to the 2015 Annual General Meeting.

Alongside conscientious board work, transparency
is crucial in maintaining and developing stakeholders’
confidence in our business. Accordingly, we continue,
as far as is possible without damaging our business, to
maintain proper, open and frequent communications
with customers, shareholders and all other stakeholders.
Our employees in particular are especially important as
we now integrate Tribona’s operations into Catena. Our
employees create our product and serve our customers.
Without them, there would be no business. I would like to
extend a special thank you to them for their efforts.

To maintain and develop Catena’s responsibility for
operations, including in the merged operations, we have,
over the year, revised and updated our business plan and
developed and clarified our policies, including those on
ethics and crisis management. Together with our control
and risk management, our well thought-out policies,
which are close to our business processes, are all import-
ant components in responsible corporate governance,
which generates the trust that is crucial to our business.
Together with our competent organisation, leading posi-
tion and financial strength, this gives us good opportuni-
ties to both develop the business and provide the owners
with a return on their capital contributions.

Solna, March 2016

Henry Klotz
hklotz@clsholdings.com
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Corporate governance report

All business decisions at Catena must be justifiable from a financial and ethical
perspective. Through active and responsible board work, we balance the risks
and opportunities associated with all commercial operations, and thereby gen-
erate value for shareholders and other stakeholders. Through transparency and
availability we provide our shareholders and other stakeholders with insight
into decision paths, responsibility, powers and control systems. The informa-

tion we provide must be correct, reliable and up to date.
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Corporate governance

Catena is a Swedish public limited liability company list-
ed on NASDAQ Stockholm. The applicable regulations
for governance and control of the Group are primarily
the Articles of Association, the Swedish Companies Act,
the Swedish Annual Accounts Act, Nasdaq Stockholm’s
Regulations for Issuers, the Swedish Code of Corporate
Governance, internal guidelines and policies, as well as
other applicable laws and regulations.

Catena’s Board and executive management endeavour
to ensure that Catena complies with the requirements
imposed by the stock exchange, shareholders and other
stakeholders. The Swedish Code of Corporate Gover-
nance (the “Code”, available at www.bolagsstyrning.
se) is aimed at ensuring favourable conditions for active
and responsible ownership. It is based on the principle of
comply or explain. Deviations from the Code must be jus-
tified and explained. This Corporate Governance Report
describes how Catena applied the Code during 2015.

Deviations from the Swedish Code

of Corporate Governance

The company follows the Swedish Code of Corporate
Governance with the following exceptions: The com-

pany has no separate internal audit function. The Board
assesses the need for such a function annually and has
determined that ongoing internal control efforts, which
should preferably be performed by management, consti-
tute a sufficient audit function in terms of the company’s
business and size.

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting (AGM) is the company’s
highest decision-making body. At the AGM, all share-
holders are provided with the opportunity, not subject

to limitation, to exercise influence over the company
corresponding to their respective share-holdings. The
company applies no special arrangements concerning the
function of the AGM — neither based on any provisions in
the Articles of Association or, insofar as the company is
aware, any agreements between shareholders.

The AGM appoints the Board and auditors and adopts
principles for the remuneration of the Board, auditors
and Group management. When necessary, the AGM also
makes decisions on items including the Articles of As-
sociation, dividends, and changes in share capital. At the
AGM, which must be held within six months of the close
of the financial year, resolutions must be passed on the



adoption of the balance sheets and income statements, the
appropriation of Catena’s profit or loss and the discharge
of responsibility of the Board and the CEO.

Annual General Meeting, 28 April 2015

The 2015 Annual General Meeting decided to authorise
the Board to make decisions on new share issues, as well
as on acquisitions and transfers of treasury shares. The
purpose of the authorisation is to be able to continuously
adapt the company’s capital requirements and thereby
contribute to increased shareholder value and to be able
to transfer shares in connection with financing of possible
property or company acquisitions, through payment with
the company’s own shares.

Up until the next AGM, the Board was authorised to
decide on the acquisition and disposal of a maximum of
1/10 of all shares with funds available for profit distribu-
tion. Decisions may be made on one or several occasions.
The authorisation includes the right to decide to deviate
from shareholders’ preferential rights. Disposals may be
made in connection with possible acquisitions or other
structural transactions or through sale on the open market.
In connection with acquisitions or disposals via Nasdaq
OMX Nordic Stockholm, the price shall be within the
price interval registered at any given time. Shares may
be acquired to adjust the capital structure, to be used in
financing acquisitions or other transactions, or otherwise
for disposal or redemption.

The Board was authorised, on one or more occasions
prior to the next AGM, to issue new shares, with or with-
out preferential rights for shareholders to participate in the
issue and with or without provisions regarding payment
in kind or set-off. The authorisation may cover at most a
combined 1/10 of the total number of shares outstanding
at the time of the Board’s first decision to issue shares.
New share issues are to be implemented on the usual
market terms.

Extraordinary General Meeting, 23 June 2015

The Extraordinary General Meeting in Stockholm on 23
June approved Catena’s sale of its wholly-owned sub-
sidiary Catena i Solna AB and indirectly of the Solna
Stora Frosunda 2 and Solna Hagalund 2:2 properties.
The buyer in the proposed transaction is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Fabege AB (publ), which, at the time, held
approximately 10.2 percent of all shares in Catena AB.
Accordingly, the sale is to be viewed as a transaction with
a related party in accordance with generally accepted
practices in the stock market and should be approved by
the General Meeting, as has been the case.

Extraordinary General Meeting, 30 November 2015
In accordance with the Board’s proposal, a decision was
made by an Extraordinary General Meeting on 30 Novem-
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ber 2015 to issue new shares. The decision increased the
share capital by a maximum of SEK 56,562,000 through
the issue of at most 12,855,000 shares. Only shareholders
of Tribona AB shall be entitled to subscribe for shares.
Subscribed shares shall be paid for entirely through the
contribution (in kind) of shares in Tribona, with each com-
plete group of eight existing shares in Tribona entitling the
holder to subscribe for three new shares in the company.
In January 2016, Catena registered part of the issue with
the Swedish Companies Registration Office, whereby the
total number of shares and votes increased by 7,246,971.
In another part of the issue, the number of shares and
votes increased by a further 346,614.

On 29 February 2016, Catena’s registered share capital
amounted to SEK 146,236,226.4 distributed between
33,235,506 shares. All shares are of the same class of
shares and each share entitles the holder to one vote at
Catena’s General Meetings.

Remuneration of Board and senior executives

In line with the decision of the AGM on 28 April 2015,
the Chairman of the Board receives SEK 200,000 and
other members SEK 100,000 each. No directors’ fees

are payable to the CEO. Salary, other remuneration and
pension premiums for the CEO and other senior execu-
tives are presented in Note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements. In 2015, variable remuneration paid to the
CEO and management amounted to just under SEK 2.6
million.

Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee is tasked with preparing
and submitting proposals for the Board, Chairman of the
Board, directors’ fees, policies for appointing the Nomi-
nation Committee, the Chairman at the AGM and, when
applicable, auditors and auditors’ fees. Catena’s Annual
General Meeting on 28 April 2015 decided to appoint a
Nomination Committee consisting of representatives of
the four largest sharcholders and the Chairman.

In accordance with the decision, the following Nom-

Ownership structure, per 31 Decem- No.of Votes,
ber 2015. Ten largest shareholders shares, 000s %
Backabhill 11,221  43.8
Endicott Sweden AB (CLS Holding plc) 3,719 14.5
Lansforsakringar fondférvaltning 2,382 9.3
SFU Sverige AB 1,847 7.2
CRHE Invest AB 770 3.0
Swedbank Robur fonder 539 2.1
Handelsbanken Fonder AB 507 2.0
Banque Carnegie Luxembourg SA 481 1.9
JP Morgan Bank Luxembourg SA 405 1.6
JP Morgan Europe Limited 241 0.9
Other shareholders 3,530 13.7

25,642 100.0
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ination Committee was formed in advance of the 2016
Annual General Meeting: Henry Klotz appointed by
Endicott Sweden AB (CLS Holdings plc), Klas Andersson
appointed by SFU Sverige, Svante Paulsson appointed by
Backahill AB and Eva Gottfridsdotter-Nilsson appointed
by Lansforsdkringar Fondforvaltning AB. The Chairman
of the Nomination Committee is Klas Andersson, while
the Chairman of the Board Henry Klotz convenes the
meetings. In accordance with applicable decisions, new
shareholder representatives are to be appointed when
ownership changes.

Board of Directors

The Board’s overriding task is to manage Catena’s and the
Group’s activities on behalf of the owners in a way that
best secures the owners’ interest in a favourable long-term
return on capital. The members are elected annually at the
AGM for the period up to the end of the following AGM.
The Board’s work is carried out in compliance with statu-
tory provisions, the Articles of Association and the formal
work plan. The formal work plan is discussed at the

Principal content of Board meetings in 2015

16 Oct Tribona
27 Oct Loan agreement Swedbank

5 Nov Budget

EKDNOMISK
UPPFOLINING

14 Sep Strategy and organisation

statutory Board meeting and is set annually. The composi-
tion of the Board includes expertise and experience from
the areas that are of major importance as part of efforts
to support, monitor and control operations in a property
company. Board members have expertise in properties,
the real estate market, and financing and business devel-
opment, for example. In accordance with the Articles of
Association, Catena’s Board is to comprise not fewer than
five and not more than nine members with no deputies.
Catena’s Board comprises six members who were
elected at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) on 28
April 2015. For further information about the Board mem-
bers, please refer to the section “Board, senior executives
and auditors”.

9 Feb Decision regarding Nya SFF
25 Feb Year-end report
23 Mar Annual Report

28 Apr Statutory meeting following AGM
28 Apr Interim report for the first quarter

Assessment of the work of the Board

Each year, the Chairman of the Board performs an
evaluation of the Board’s ability to perform its duties, its
working methods and composition in relation to the direc-
tion and challenges facing the company. The individual
Board members’ competence, commitment and suitability
(from a variety of perspectives) are tested by means of an
extensive questionnaire that each member is required to
respond to in isolation. The responses received are fol-
lowed up in a private discussion based on the company’s
planning and its expectations of that member.

The results are discussed in the Nomination Commit-
tee, which, based on the completed evaluation and other
considerations, proposes a Board for the coming year of
operations. Well-functioning Board work demonstrates
that the process has been effective.

The work of the Board
The Chairman of the Board is responsible for leading
the work of the Board in an efficient and appropriate
manner. In addition to leading the work, the Chairman
monitors the Group’s on-going developments through
contact with the CEO on strategic issues. During 2015,
ten minuted Board meetings were held, one of which
was statutory. During the year, the CFO acted
as the secretary of the Board. In addition
to the above items, Board meetings have
addressed market issues, plans and
strategies for the Group’s development
and the on-going follow-up of results
and position, valuations of the Group’s
properties, liquidity and financing as
well as investment decisions. Catena’s
auditor in charge Lars Wennberg, PwC,
was called in to the Board meetings in
February, April, July and November.

Formal work plan
The Board of Catena works in accordance
with a formal work plan consisting of instructions
in respect of the division of duties and financial reporting.
The formal work plan represents a complement to the
provisions of the Swedish Companies Act and Catena’s
Articles of Association and is reviewed annually. The
Board appoints the CEO and assesses his/her work.
The CEO does not attend this assessment. The Board is
responsible for continuously monitoring and controlling
Catena’s operations. Consequently, it is the duty of the
Board to ensure there are a functioning reporting systems.
These were evaluated during the year and have proven
appropriate and effective.

Regular reports concerning Catena’s and the Group’s
economic and financial position, current market issues,
project reporting, and, in certain cases, underlying infor-
mation for investment decisions and property sales, are



presented at Board meetings. In addition to being respon-
sible for Catena’s organisation and administration, the
Board’s key task is to make decisions on strategic issues.

Each year, the Board sets the overall goals for the
Group’s operations and decides on strategies to attain
these goals. The CEO’s instructions and internal policy
documents are also reviewed annually.

Auditor
Catena’s auditors are elected at the AGM. At the 2015
Annual General Meeting, the accounting firm PwC was
elected as the new auditor, with Lars Wennberg as the
principal auditor. The auditor reports the results of his
examination to the shareholders in the auditor’s report.
This is presented at the AGM. In addition, the auditor
presents a detailed report to the Board twice annually.
In conjunction with this report, a discussion is also held
concerning the observations of the audit. In addition to
auditing, PwC has also provided services in the areas of
taxes and accounting.

Fees are paid according to approved invoices on an
on-going basis.

CEO

The CEO leads operations on the basis of the CEO’s
instructions drawn up by the Board. According to the in-
structions, the CEO is tasked with ensuring that the Board
members receive regular information and reports on Cat-
ena’s progress to enable them to make sound assessments
and well-founded decisions.

The CEO must also ensure that Catena observes the
obligations regarding information and so forth that arise
from the listing agreement with NASDAQ Stockholm.

The CEQO’s duties also include supervising compliance
with the goals, policy and strategic plans established by
the Board and ensure that they are submitted to the Board
for updating or review whenever necessary.

Remuneration Committee

The Board of Catena has established a Remuneration
Committee. The task of the Remuneration Committee

is to prepare matters concerning remuneration and other
conditions of employment for the CEO. The CEO, on the
basis of principles established by the Board, determines
remuneration of senior executives. During 2015, the
Remuneration Committee comprised Henry Klotz (Chair-
man), Bo Forsén and Katarina Wallin.

Audit committee

Catena’s Board has established an Audit Committee.

The task of the Audit Committee is to maintain and add
to efficiency in contacts with the Group’s auditor and to
supervise the procedures for auditing and financial report-
ing. The Committee also evaluates the work of the auditor
and monitors how accounting principles and requirements
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are progressing. The Board has decided that all its mem-
bers, with the exception of the CEQ, are to be part of the
Committee.

Stock market information
Catena submits prompt, simultaneous, correct and reliable
information to existing and potential shareholders and
other stakeholders. The company submits interim reports,
a year-end report and an annual report for the entire
financial year. Catena’s website, www.catenafastigheter.
se, presents current information on Catena, such as press
releases and financial statements.

Shareholders can download financial information from
the company via the website. This information can also be
ordered directly from Catena by telephone or by post.

Internal control

The Board is responsible for internal control pursuant to
the Swedish Companies Act and the Swedish Code of
Corporate Governance. This Corporate Governance Re-
port is prepared in accordance with Chapter 6, Section 6
of the Swedish Annual Accounts Act and is thus limited to
internal control and risk management related to financial
reporting. The basis of internal control is the control en-
vironment in which the work of the Board and executive
management is set. The Board has adopted a number of
important policies and basic guidelines for internal control
programs, such as a financial policy, an ethics and crisis
management policy and information policies. The CEO
presents regular reports to the Board on the basis of estab-
lished routines and documents. Catena’s internal control
structure is based on a clear division of responsibility and
work between the Board and CEO, as well as within op-
erational activities. Operational activities include business
control and business planning processes. Examples of
these include tools for monitoring operations, prepara-
tions ahead of the purchase and sale of properties/compa-
nies, and underlying data for property valuations. Control
activities are performed at the individual property level

in the form of current results and investment monitoring
and, at the overall level, in the form of results analysis

at the area level, analysis of key data and reviews of the
Group’s legal structure.

In order to prevent and detect errors and deviations,
there are, for example, systems for attestation rights,
reconciliations, approval and reporting of business trans-
actions, reporting templates as well as accounting and val-
uation policies. These systems are continuously updated.

Internal information and external communication are
regulated at the overall level by means of the information
policy. Internal information in disseminated through regu-
lar information meetings.
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Risks and opportunities

Successful business operations are built on the responsible and control-
led management of risks. Well managed, risks can lead to opportunities
and generate value, while risks that are not managed properly can lead to
damage and losses. Accordingly, risk management is an important part of
the governance and control of Catena’s business operations.

The company works continuously to assess, manage and
monitor the risks always associated with commercial
operations.

For identified risks that may arise in the operations
and from behaviours that could affect the company’s
brand and reputation, the Board of Directors and senior
management have developed policies, instructions and
mandates that are continuously reviewed.

company takes out carefully considered insurance cover-
age. The risk of personal injury or harm to property that
could be incurred as a consequence of Catena’s actions is
treated in the same way.

In the assessment of risks, those representing the
greatest present effect on the company, should they occur,
are prioritised. That is to say that the probability of a risk
occurring and the damage it could cause are weighed up.

Risks based on events beyond the company’s control
and which could disrupt business are evaluated on an
ongoing basis. To reduce potentially harmful effects, the

Rental income and expenses
RISK

Vacancies

The letting ratio is influenced by factors
including general economic conditions,
the pace of production for new proper-
ties, infrastructure changes as well as
population growth and employment.
Changes in these factors can impact
vacancy rates and rent levels.

Cancelled leases

After a tenant vacates a property, there
is a risk pertaining to the length of time
that elapses before a new tenantis in
place. The risk of substantial changes in
vacancies and rental income increases
in line with the number of individual
major tenants a property company has.

Bad debt losses

Commercial tenants are not always
able to discharge their obligations.

priority.

MANAGEMENT

Catena’s lease portfolio is long term.
The majority of the company’s prop-
erties are also modern and located at
key logistic hubs by ports and along the
major European motorways adjacent to
population centres. This makes Catena
less sensitive to market fluctuations
and their impact on the overall letting
ratio.

New leases are generally signed for

a term of more than five years. Local
asset managementin close collabora-
tion with tenants reduces the risk of
unexpected termination of leases.

Risk decreases through a solid under-
standing of customers. In certain leas-
es, tenants’ obligations are guaranteed
by a parent company or by way of bank
guarantees, accordingly, Catena’s bad
debt losses have been marginal over
the past five years.

The table shows:
@for High priority,

for Medium Priority, @ for Low

EXPOSURE PRIORITY

Lettable space and letting ratio in
terms of space by region, %

Oresund, 93.6

Stockholm, 94.4

Gothenburg, 93.0

Distribution lease durations, per year

%
40

30 27

20
20 4
10 8 10 10 9

0
-16-17 -18 -19 -20 -21-22+

Customer losses/rental income
SEK'm
3

-12 -13 -14  -15



Rental income and expenses, cont.

RISK

MANAGEMENT

Increased operating and maintenance costs

Earnings can be impacted if increases
in operating and maintenance costs
outpace growth in compensation to
Catena in the form of contractual rents.
Unforeseen and extensive renovation
needs can also have an impact.

Increased ground rents

Ground rents are periodically renego-
tiated and there is no guarantee that
the ground rent will not increase at the
respective renegotiation, which can
negatively impact Catena’s earnings.

Taxes

In Sweden, there are extensive oppor-
tunities for tax deferral when an asset
is divested within a group. Instead, tax-
ation takes place when the asset leaves
the group. Through so-called packag-
ing, tax credits can also be obtained in
situations where assets are sold exter-
nally. In 2015, the Swedish government
assigned a special investigator the

task of reviewing certain aspects in the
area of property tax and stamp duty. A
reportis to be presented by 31 March
2017. It may affect Catena’s earnings.

Changes in value

Properties

Catena reports its property portfolio at
its assessed market value. This means
that changed market values as a result
of changed rent levels and vacancy
rates, changed yield requirements and
detailed development plan processes,
etc., will impact Catena’s financial
statements.

Corporate acquisitions

Catena sometimes acquires properties
under corporate formats. In 2015, Ca-
tena also made a bid on an operational
property company with a broader risk
profile. Historical decisions and actions,
as well as the future financial perfor-
mance of the acquired companies could
affect Catena’s earnings.

Leases for logistics properties are
normally linked to the Consumer Price
Index (CPI). Catena also works continu-
ously to identify cost-efficient solutions,
particularly in the area of energy. Any
unforeseen renovation needs should
primarily only arise for damage, for
which Catena has arranged insurance
solutions.

Catena has freehold ownership of most
of its properties. Increases in ground
rents are generally offset through
indexation in the lease contract or
through renegotiation of the lease.

Progress is monitored carefully.

Payment of reasonable acquisition pri-
ces and a thorough analysis based on
extensive experience reduces the risk of
impaired property values, which is also
balanced by the favourable earnings po-
tential. Each quarter, Catena performs
an internal valuation of its properties.
External valuations and completed
transactions confirm Catena'’s internal
valuations.

Through its expertise in logistics properties,
Catena is in a good position to make an
accurate assessment of potential future
acquisitions. To minimise the risks associa-
ted with historical decisions and actions,
Catena performs thorough due diligence
prior to each acquisition. In addition to a
thorough financial examination, this also
includes a number of other areas, including
customer relationships, commitments and
the environment.
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EXPOSURE PRIORITY

Index contracts:
share of the contract volume

%
100

80
60
40
20

0

-12 -13 -14 -15

Proportion of freehold properties

%
100

80
60
40
20

0

-12 -13 -14  -15

Internal property valuation vs. external

SEK'm %
6,000 2

4,000

2,000

0

2,000

4,000

6,000 -2
12 -13  -14  -15

External
M Internal
B Net

The value of assets is checked
regularly based on the cash flows
they generate, ensuring as far as
possible a correct valuation on
each occasion.
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Changes in value, cont.
RISK

Projects

Catena pursues active project develop-
ment, which is important for the com-
pany’s continued growth. Investments
are often made several years before to
the completed property can be putinto
operation. There is a certain degree of
risk that the property will not correspond
to market needs when completed.

Financial instruments

As part of managing interest-rate risk,
Catena utilises financial instruments

in the form of interest-rate derivatives,
primarily nominal interest-rate swaps.
Interest-rate derivatives are recognised
in the balance sheet on an on-going
basis.

Financing risks

Liquidity risks

Insufficient access to the liquid funds
or credit facilities necessary to meet
payment obligations could negatively
impact Catena’s earnings and financial
position.

Refinancing

The properties and shares owned by
Catena are financed by a combination
of loans and equity. The majority of
financing comprises bank loans. There
are no guarantees that existing credit
providers will renew loans when they
fall due.

Interestreceived

Catena’s single largest cost item is
interest, which can vary over time.
These changes can substantially impact
Catena’s earnings. Property values are
also impacted by raised interest rate
levels.

Indemnity risks

Acquired environmental damage

According to the Swedish Environmen-
tal Code, those who conduct operations
that contribute to contamination are
responsible for the ensuing treatment
and remediation thereof. If the party that
has conducted such operations cannot
carry out or defray the cost of subsequent

treatment and remediation, then the party

that acquired the property - and who at
the time of acquisition was aware of or

should have been aware of the contamina-

tion - is liable.

MANAGEMENT

Catena’s investments in the project de-
velopment are initially limited because
they are largely based on development
rights. These are capitalised with
increased investment only when a cont-
ract has been signed with a customer.

In pace with changes in market interest
rates, theoretical positive or negative
values arise that do not impact cash
flow. On reaching maturity, the value
of derivatives is always zero. Positive or
negative values are recognised in the
statement of financial position.

At the closing date, Catena had
unutilised lines of credit totalling SEK
146.2 million and cash and cash equiva-
lents of SEK 201.5 million.

The Group’s financial policy stipula-

tes how funding and liquidity is to be
secured. Borrowing takes place in
Swedish currency using a fixed-loan
term of one to ten years. Existing credit
frameworks have a remaining contract
term of up to 2.5 years. Catena also
has opportunities to secure funding on
the bond market through Nya Svensk
FastighetsFinansiering.

Catena’s properties have been financed
at market interest rates and financing
costs are secured through derivatives
equivalent to 53 percent of the Group’s
liabilities. The company expects to be
able to maintain a low interest rate
level that follows changes in the market
with a time lag. The derivatives are
specified in note 19 to the consolidated
accounts.

Prior to each acquisition, Catena
conducts a thorough analysis and risk
assessment.

EXPOSURE PRIORITY

Project development

SEK'm
200

160
120
80
40
0

-12 -13 -14  -15

Catena’s average interest rate and
5-year swap interest rate

%

4 Catena

3 B SEKSwap5Y
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Capital tied-up

SEKm
2,500

2,000
1,500
1,000
500 Unutilised

0 M Utilised
-16 -17  -20 24+

Interest maturity year

Year SEK m Interest rate, % Share, %
2016 1,603.7 1.6 42.7
2017 30.7 1.7 0.9
2020 112.0 1.4 3.0
2021 500.0 4.3 13.3
2022 500.0 3.7 13.3
2023 500.0 3.1 13.3
2024 507.7 2.8 13.5
Total 3,754.1 2.6 100.0

1) Refers to the current average interest rate as per 31 December 2015.
Interest rates change in line with the changes in the general interest rate but
are limited by interest-rate caps.

Despite in-depth analyses, no complete
investigation of possible, hitherto unk-
nown environmental contamination in
the property portfolio has been carried
out. It cannot be precluded that environ-
mental contamination exists that could
result in costs and/or claims for compen-
sation on Catena.



Indemnity risks, cont.
RISK

Injury to person or property

Property belonging to Catena can be
destroyed by fire, theft or other da-
mage. Similarly, through, for example,
negligence Catena can cause injury to
another person or another person’s
property.

Otherrisks

Shortage of skills

Catena’s future development depends
extensively on the knowledge, expe-
rience and commitment of a limited
number of individuals in senior mana-
gement and other key persons.

MANAGEMENT

Insurance has been contracted to cover
any liability or property damage claims.
The properties are covered by unlimited
buildings insurance.

All of Catena’s executives have com-
prehensive knowledge of property de-
velopment and management. On-going
dialogues and development together
with market terms also contribute to
low employee turnover. The company
also actively applies an order of succes-
sion for key personnel.

Deficient procedures and irresponsible behaviour

The company may suffer harm as

a result of criminal or irresponsible
behaviour by the its employees or other
representatives.

Unsound business practices

Catena'’s projects extend over long
periods of time and include numerous

sub-contractors and other stakeholders.

Despite the company’s zero tole-
rance policy, applicable to all involved,
regarding unsound business practi-
ces, whether these involve working
conditions, corruption and restraint of
competition, there is always the risk
that an individual operator fails to live
up to Catena’s values.

Disputes

It cannot be excluded that Catena may
become involved in a legal dispute

or arbitration proceedings that have
significant impact on Catena’s earnings
or financial position.

Sensitivity analysis

The table presents the theoretical effect on pre-
tax profit of Catena’s annual earnings capacity
after financial items with full disclosure of an

isolated change in each variable.

The company has developed procedu-
res for how executives should be bound
to the company and duties should be
delegated. In addition, there are clear
policies and instructions regarding how
all processes should be implemented.
Well-developed internal control mo-
nitors operations continuously . In the
event that damage nonetheless occurs,
the company is insured.

Catena has an express Code of Conduct
that everyone is required to follow. Sub-
contractors are initially checked so that
any financial discrepancies are discove-
red as soon as possible. The partner-
ship is then evaluated on a continuous
basis. Subcontractors are also encou-
raged to check that their suppliers also
adhere to Catena’s values. The slightest
suspicion of any deviation from the
values is investigated promptly. If the
supplier does not adhere to Catena’s
values, the company may terminate the
cooperation immediately.

The risk is reduced through diligently
prepared contracts and agreement.

Factor
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EXPOSURE

Over the last few years, no company

in the Catena Group has had any signi-
ficant insurance claim. The exception
was 2014, when the company suffered
two fires. The insurance company com-
pensated Catena for the damage.

A large part of Catena’s current mana-
gement has been active in the company
or its predecessor, Brinova’s, manage-
ment for up to 12 years. No one has left
the management team since 2013 in
connection with the reverse acquisition,
in which management and staff were
transferred from Brinova.

Over the past six years, the company
has not suffered any damage attri-
butable to criminal or irresponsible
behaviour.

Itis the view of the Board of Directors
and senior management that there

is good control of the suppliers with
whom the company has direct contact.

Over the last three years, Catena has
not been involved in any significant
disputes.

PRIORITY

Impact on
Change, % earnings, SEK m

Contractual rental income
Economic letting ratio

Interest on interest-bearing liabilities

Property expenses

Changes in value of investment

properties

+/- 1.0
+/- 1.0 percentage point
+/- 1.0 percentage point

+/- 1.0

+/- 1.0

+/-4.9
+/-5.1
+/-37.5
+/-1.3

+/- 53.4
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Board of Directors

Henry Klotz

Katarina Wallin

Gustaf Hermelin

Catharina
Elmsater-Svard

Bo Forsén

Erik Paulsson

BORN

POSITION ON
THE BOARD

YEAR ELECTED
EDUCATION

PRINCIPAL
EMPLOYMENT

OTHER
ASSIGNMENTS

TERMINATED
ASSIGNMENTS

OWN SHAREHOLD-
ING AND HOLDINGS
OF RELATED
PARTIES 2015

DEPENDENT ON:
THE COMPANY
MAJOR SHARE-
HOLDERS

PRESENCE
BOARD MEETINGS

ATTENDANCE, AU-
DIT COMMITTEE

ATTENDANCE,
REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

Henry Klotz
1944.
Chairman.

2007.

Engineer in property
engineering, M.Sc.
Economics

Executive Vice Chair-
man, CLS Holding plc.

Board Member of

a large number of
companies in the CLS
Group. Board Member
of Note AB.

Chairman of the
Board of COOD
Investments AB.
Board Member of 24
Media Network AB
and Fielden House
Investment Ltd.

No
Yes

10/10

2/2

1/1

1948.
Member.

2012.

Business administra-
tion studies, Lund
University.

Board work.

Chairman of the
Board of Victoria Park
AB, Norén Fastigheter
AB, Scandinavian Re-
sort AB. Board Mem-
ber of Knackekarr
Holding AB, Forsiva
AB, Cale Access AB
and Backahill AB.

Deputy CEO of the
Trelleborg Group.
CEO of the Wihlborgs
Group. Various board
assignments

1,000 shares via
companies.

No
No

10/10

2/2

1/1

1) 2015-02-09. Erik Paulsson not in attendance due to conflict of interest.

Furthermore, Andreas Philipsson, who resigned in connection with the
2015 Annual General Meeting, attended the Board meetings on 9 February 2015, 25
February 2015, 23 March 2015 and 28 April 2015.

Gustaf Hermelin
1956.
Member.

2013.

Business admin-
istration studies,
Stockholm School of
Economics.

CEO, Catena AB.

Board member of

a large number of
subsidiary companies
within or associated
with the Catena
Group and SFU
Sverige AB.

CEO and Board Mem-
ber of Klévern AB,
Brinova Fastigheter
AB and a large num-
ber of subsidiaries
within the Brinova
Group. Board Member
of AMF Fastigheter
AB, Dios Fastigheter
AB, Fabege AB and
Platzer Fastigheter
Holding AB (publ).

1,848,899 shares
via companies and
related parties.

Yes
Yes

10/10

Erik Paulsson
1942.
Member.

2013.
Elementary school.

Company leader and
entrepreneur since
1959.

Chairman of the
Board of Fabege AB,

SkiStar AB, Wihlborgs

Fastigheter AB,
Backahill AB and a
number of regional
companies. Board
Member of a number
of regional compa-
nies.

Chairman of the
Board of Dios Fas-
tigheter AB, Brinova
Fastigheter AB and a
number of regional
companies. Board
Member of Nolato
AB, Klévern AB and
Platzer Fastigheter
Holding AB (publ).

11,990,751 shares
via companies.

No
Yes

8/10%

2/2

1965.
Member.

2015.

Advertisement and
marketing, Berghs
School of Commu-
nication. Diploma in
market economics.

Self-employed and
advisor at AB El-
msaters i Enhérna.

Chairman of the
Board of Sodertdljes
Sportklubb (SSK),
Chairman of the
Board of Institutet
for framtidsstudier
and Chairman of
the Board of Drive
Sweden.

Minister, Infrastruc-
ture Minister and
Acting Minister of
Defence. Member of
the Riksdag (Swedish
parliament) and chair-
man of a number of
parliamentary com-
mittees. Chairman of
the County Council
and County Council
Commissioner of
Finance in Stockholm
County.

No
No

6/7

2/2

Katarina Wallin
1970.
Member.

2013.

M.Sc. Engineering,
Royal Institute of
Technology. Be-
havioural Science and
Business Adminis-
tration, Stockholm
University.

Strategy Consultant
and Partner at Evi-
densgruppen.

Chairman of the
Board of Ekologi-
gruppen Ekoplan AB,
Belatchew Arkitekter
AB, Evimetrix AB and
Bernow Lindqvist
Wallin AB. Board
Member of Au Point
AB and Evidens blw
AB. Deputy Board
Member of Belatchew
Fastigheter AB.

Board Member of
REIM Real Estate
Interim Management
Sweden AB.

No
No

9/10

2/2

1/1

Auditor: Lars Wennberg, PwC.

) Additional and updated information on assignments

and holdings is available at www.catenafastigheter.se
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Management Team

Mikael Halling Sofie Bennsten

Gustaf Hermelin

Maths Carreman Johan Franzén | Lena Haraldsson s Goran Jénsson

Gustaf Hermelin Mikael Halling Peter Andersson Sofie Bennsten
BORN 1956. 1952. 1966. 1969.
POSITION CEO. Deputy CEO CFO. HR Manager.
EMPLOYEE SINCE 1 October 2013. 1 October 2013. 1 October 2013. 1 October 2013.
EDUCATION Business administration MBA and Structural Engineer.  M.Sc. in Business Administra- ~ M.Sc. Economics.
studies, Stockholm School of tion.
Economics.
PREVIOUS POSITIONS CEO of Klévern AB and Deputy CEO and Business Area CFO of the Brinova Group. CFO Head of Administration and
the Brinova Group. Manager for Logistics in the of Fastighets AB Skanehus. Accounting of the Brinova
Brinova Group. CEO of Birsta CFO of Riksbyggen Norra Group.
Fastigheter AB. Skane.

OWN SHAREHOLDINGS AND 1,848,899 shares via compa- - - -
SHAREHOLDINGS OF RELATED nies and related parties.
PARTIES IN 2015

Maths Carreman Johan Franzén Lena Haraldsson Goran Jonsson
BORN 1958. 1978. 1970. 1961.
POSITION Regional Manager, Stockholm. Eegional Manager, Gothen- Market Area Manager, Malmé. = Regional Manager, Oresund.
urg.
EMPLOYEE SINCE 1 October 2013. 1 October 2013. 1 November 2015 1 October 2013.
EDUCATION Structural Engineer. Business administration Graduate Engineer, Lund Structural Engineer.
studies, School of Business, Institute of Technology

Economics and Law at
Gothenburg University

PREVIOUS POSITIONS Unit Manager at Klévern Ny- Business Developer in the Bri- | Senior executive at ICA Business Area Manager for
koping. Several management | nova Group. District Manager | Fastigheter Sverige AB and Commercial/Residential in
positions within Skanska. at Jungheinrich Svenska AB. Fastighets AB Briggen. the Brinova Group. CEO at

Maintech Férvaltning Syd.

OWN SHAREHOLDINGS AND 1,000 shares. - - -
SHAREHOLDINGS OF RELATED
PARTIES IN 2015

) Additional and updated information on assignments and holdings is available at www.catenafastigheter.se
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Multi-year overview

Key financial figures for the Group 2015 2014 2013 2012
Financial

Profit for the year, SEK m 571.5 344.2 138.4 220.3
Pre-tax profit, SEK m 590.3 440.3 184.7 232.3
Interest-coverage ratio, multiple 4.8 3.1 2.8 4.0
Profit from property management, SEK m 259.3 204.9 147.0 178.8
Cash flow before change in working capital, SEK m 241.5 204.8 187.8 128.0
Total assets, SEK m 6,947.9 6,136.0 5,038.0 3,443.1
Interest-bearing liabilities, SEK m 3,754.1 3,457.6 2,963.0 2,058.9
Average interest rate, % 2.6 2.8 3.1 2.9
Capital tied-up, years 2.5 2.9 2.3 5.1
Fixed interest, years 3.1 3.5 3.0 0.2
Debt/equity ratio, multiple 1.5 1.7 1.8 2.8
Equity/assets ratio, % 35.7 32.4 32.6 21.4
Return on equity, % 25.6 19.0 11.7 34.1
Return on equity, % 10.5 12.3 6.3 9.7

Share-related

Share price at year end, SEK 115.75 105.75 100.00 63.00
Price trend over the year, % 9.0 5.8 58.7 9.6
Highest price paid during the year, SEK 141.00 115.00 103.50 102.00
Lowest price paid during the year, SEK 103.00 94.00 62.00 48.10
Profit from property management per share, SEK 10.11 8.02 10.29 15.41
Comprehensive income per share, SEK 22.29 13.49 9.81 19.26
Dividend per share, SEK 3.00 3.00 2.00 1.00
Dividend yield, % 2.6 2.8 2.0 1.6
Total return on the share, % 12.3 7.8 60.3 13.0
P/E ratio 5.2 7.8 10.2 3.3
Cash flow per share, SEK 0.08 -0.56 14.93 0.01
Equity per share, SEK 96.46 77.22 64.95 62.93
Net asset value per share, EPRA NAV, SEK 115.00 96.60 75.00 80.80
Turnover rate, % 21.3 11.6 6.1 -
No. of shares at year end, 000s 25,642 25,642 25,195 11,564
Average number of shares, 000s 25,642 25,556 14,291 11,564
Market value, SEK m 2,968 2,712 2,520 729

Property-related

Number of properties 55 47 45 45
Lettable area, thousand sq. m. 816.8 753.1 690.6 575.8
Fair value of the properties, SEK m 5,340.3 5,750.9 4,722.3 3,382.4
Rental value, SEK m 511.5 480.1 419.3 356.3
Rental income, SEK m 464.2 431.3 316.8 286.2
Economic letting ratio, % 95.5 95.8 87.2 89.0
Net operating surplus, SEK m 351.3 325.7 221.3 184.9
Surplus ratio, % 75.7 75.5 69.9 64.6
Project development 131.6 180.4 186.7 1.5
Loan-to-value ratio, % 70.3 60.1 62.7 60.9

In the Annual Report’'s consolidated financial tables and diagrams, Catena reports financial data for four years,
thatis, from Catena AB’s acquisition of Brinova Logistik on 30 September 2013, plus the comparison year 2012.
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Definitions and glossary

DEFINITIONS

Financial

Return on equity, %

Net profit for the year as a percentage
of average equity.

Return on capital employed, %
Pre-tax profit plus interest expenses,
divided by average capital employed.

Return on total capital, %
Pre-tax profit plus financial expenses
as a percentage of average total assets.

Average interest rate
Average interest on the loan portfolio
with derivatives being taken into account.

Average interest on interest-bearing
liabilities, %

The estimated annual interest expense
atyear-end as a percentage of interest-
bearing liabilities.

Associated companies

Companies in which Catena has a
minority ownership and that are not
subsidiaries.

Joint venture

A joint venture is a partnership whereby
two or more companies investin a new
company to carry out a project together.

Capital tied-up
The average remaining period of fixed
interest in the loan portfolio.

Fixed interest

Average remaining period of fixed
interest on the loan portfolio with
derivatives being taken into account.

Interest-coverage ratio, multiple
Pre-tax profit before reversal of financial
expenses and unrealised changes in
value in relation to financial expenses.

Debt/equity ratio, multiple
Interest-bearing liabilities divided
by equity at year end.

Equity ratio, %
Equity including non-controlling interests
as a percentage of total assets.

Capital employed, SEK m
Total assets at year-end less non-interest-
bearing liabilities and provisions.

Share-related

Dividend yield, %

Dividend in relation to the share price
at year end.

Total return on the share, %

The change in share price change over
the year plus dividends paid in relation
to the share price at the beginning of the
year.

Market capitalisation

The number of shares outstanding
multiplied by the latest price paid on the
specified day.

Equity per share, SEK

Equity attributable to Parent Company
shareholders in relation to the number
of shares outstanding at year end.

P/E ratio
Share price at year end in relation to
earnings per share for the year.

Earnings per share, SEK

Profit for the year attributable to the
Parent Company’s shareholders in
relation to the average number of shares
outstanding.

Net asset value per share,

EPRA NAV, SEK

Equity per share with reversal of interest
rate derivatives and deferred tax in accor-
dance with the balance sheet.

Dividend per share, SEK

Dividend for the financial year in relation
to the number of shares outstanding on
the record date.

Property-related

Loan-to-value ratio, %

Interest-bearing liabilities attributable
to the properties as a percentage of the
carrying amounts of the properties at
year end.

Dividend yield, %

Net operating surplus excluding property
administration as a percentage of the
properties’ book value at year-end.

Net operating surplus, SEK m

Income from property less operating and
maintenance costs, property tax, ground
rents and property administration costs.

Economic letting ratio, %
Contractual rents under valid leases at
year end as a percentage of rental value.

Profit from property management
Pre-tax profit with reversal
of changes in value.

Profit from property management

per share, SEK

Profit from property managementin rela-
tion to the number of shares outstanding
at year-end.

Rental value, SEK m

Contractual rents on an annual basis plus
a supplement for assessed market rents
for vacant space.

Contractual annual rent

Contractual rents are the applicable rents
for the existing portfolio that is leased as
of the balance-sheet date.

Lettable area
Total area available for letting.

Vacancy ratio for floor space, %
Vacant space as a percentage of lettable
area at year-end.

Surplus ratio, %
Net operating surplus as a percentage
of income from property.

GLOSSARY

Logistics properties

Property constructed with a terminal
and/or warehouse intended for goods
handling and distribution for logistics
companies’ customers.

Terminals/Container terminals
Properties that are primarily designed
for transshipment operations. This type
of property includes container terminals,
where possibilities of moving goods from
one mode of transport to another are
optimised.

Logistics warehouses

These are defined as properties with
inventories of finished goods and import-
ers’ stocks of goods awaiting sale.

Distribution centres

A property with goods that are stored for
a shorter period to then be transported
onward.

City logistics

A distribution centre that is optimised
for rapid and short-distance freight dis-
tribution activities, of fast moving goods
such as perishable goods.

E-commerce

E-commerce is defined as when a com-
pany or consumer buys or sells a product,
normally over the Internet or other com-
puter networks.
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Catena through the year

Catena strives to provide an accurate portrayal of the company, with continu-
ous, immediate, simultaneous, correct and reliable information to existing and
potential shareholders and other stakeholders. The publication of information
is characterised by openness, simultaneity and uniformity in accordance with
current legislation, Nasdaq's requlations, the Swedish Code of Corporate
Governance and the company’s IR policy.

Annual General Meeting w3 B

We warmly invite Catena’s shareholders to the An-

wy meay B
——" o ru =

nual General Meeting, which will be held on 27 April
2016 at 4:00 p.m. at the IVA Conference Centre, Grev o
Turegatan 16 in Stockholm, Sweden. See the formal .

’ ~— 3 Q. THE
invitation on the cover flap. =T AKE THE SHORT: CUT IC

LOGISTICS OF THE FU

Interim reports

The company submits interim reports, a year-end report
and an annual report for the entire financial year. The
following publications are planned for 2016: @

27 April
Interim report for the first quarter of 2016.

11 July ¥
Interim report for the second quarter of 2016.

10 November

Interim report for the third quarter of 2016.
Follow us on our new website

17 February 2017 R . .
) Catena’s website, www.catenafastigheter.se, presents up-
Interim report the fourth quarter and year-end . . , . .
to-date information on Catena’s operations and financial
report for 2016. . . .
information. This includes, press releases, as well as
Interim and annual reports are sent by post to those who financial reports and presentations. The company’s stake-
request this. holders can also download Catena’s financial publications
from the website. This information can also be ordered
Financial presentations directly from Catena by telephone or by post.
In conjunction with the publication of interim reports, the
interim financial statements are presented to investors at Other
meetings arranged by the banks. In addition, the company  Logistics trends
plans in its own individual meetings with investors and Catena analyses current logistics trends drives these

banks. Presentations traditionally include that of the inter- ~ forwards in various ways. Including by organising the
im report for the second quarter at the company’s Capital Logistics Trends seminar, at which various aspects of
Markets Day in Bastad. These are posted on the compa- logistics are discussed. The 2016 seminar will be held in
ny’s website immediately on being published. Helsingborg on 21 April.



Selection of press releases from 2015

16 Dec Catena sells property in Gothenburg and
continues to streamline its operations and
strengthen its cash position.

14 Dec Catena publishes public offer document.

20 Oct Catena has acquired Klovern’s shares in Tribona
and submitted a public takeover bid to the share-
holders of Tribona.

9 Oct  Catena acquires terminal in Véxjo for
SEK 80 million.

1 Oct  Catena acquires a logistics property in
Angelholm for SEK 22 million.

1 Sep Catena acquires a logistics property in Boras
for SEK 80 million.

14 July Catena acquires a logistics property in Jonkdping
for SEK 35 million.

25 June Catena acquires a logistics property and land
in Angelholm.

16 June Catena acquires a logistics property in Jonkdping
for SEK 60 million.

28 May Catena sells the project property in Solna.

20 May Catena constructs a logistics property
in Katrineholm.

19 May Catena acquires a logistics property in Ahus

for SEK 20 million.

16 April Catena appoints Erik Penser as liquidity
guarantor.

7 April Catena participates in a new issue by Nya SFF.
18 Mar Catena acquires and constructs in Katrineholm.

17 Mar Catena acquires a logistics property in
Angelholm for SEK 120 million.

12 Jan Catena becomes a partner in a new finance
company with an MTN program of
SEK 8,000 million.

En svensk version &r tillgdanglig pa www.catenafastigheter.se.

Catena AB is a Swedish public limited-liability company. The company
is incorporated and registered under Swedish law with the company name
Catena AB (publ) and the corporate registration number 556294-1715. The
company has its registered office in Solna, Sweden. Catena’s annual report
is available in Swedish and English with the Swedish version as the official
version. The Annual Report is published on the company’s website www.
catenafastigheter.se from 29 March 2016. Printed copies are distributed
to shareholders and other stakeholders on demand. The Administration
Report comprises pages 11-63. The financial reports comprise the pages
65-99 and were prepared in accordance with IFRS. All amounts are stated
in SEK million unless otherwise specified. The figures in parenthesis per-
tain to 2014 unless otherwise stated.

Market information is based on Catena’s assessment unless another
source is specified. Assessments are based on the highest quality of data
available at the time of preparing the Annual Report. This report also
contains forward-looking statements. Even if Catena’s management assess
these statements as reasonable, no guarantees can be provided that these
expectations will prove correct. Accordingly, actual future results can vary
compared with what is shown in the forward-looking statements depend-
ing on, items including, changing conditions for the economy, market and
competition, changes in the regulatory environment and other government
actions as well as fluctuations in exchange rates and other factors. For
financial and operational definitions, please refer to page 115.
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Diagrams and tables, excluding notes Page
Loan-to-value ratio - properties 61
Current account, current prices 40
Share price/equity 62
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Direct return 63
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Equity and liabilities 5
E-commerce trend, growth 40
Energy use 17
eNPS 17
Property divestments 48
Property portfolio by region 45,47
Development of property portfolio 47
List of properties by region 54
Property acquisition 48
Property portfolio development and purchased energy/
square-metre 32
Profit from property management 46
Profit from property management and cash flow

before changes in working capital 4
The impact of the acquisition on Catena'’s

key performance indicators 25
Average capital tied-up 17, 18
Average contract period 14, 17, 47
Average rent levels 41
Rental income 4, 46
New tenancies/vacancies 4
Industrial production, fixed prices, change 40
Purchased energy 32,34
Capital tied-up 61
Capital structure 61
Client categories 46
Share price trend 62
Employee distribution - gender 37
Employee distribution — age 37
Net increase in new tenancies 46
Key data 4,114
Key performance indicators - regions 49, 50, 51
Pre-tax profit 5
Earnings per share 5
Interest-coverage ratio 18
Composition of the company 37
Absence due to illness 36
Created and distributed economic value 31
Equity ratio 5,18
Net asset value, EPRA NAV and total return 63
Growth 17
Total emissions, tonnes COze 35
Training hours/person 37
Dividend and payout ratio 63
Letting ratio 47
Vacancy rates, logistics properties 41
Fair value/economic letting ratio - regions 49, 50, 51
Appropriation of surplus 58
Valuation model 53
Greenhouse gas emission, total and per square-metre 35
Ownership structure 63
Surplus ratio 17




CATENA

Catena owns, actively develops and manages efficient logistics proper-
ties in prime locations. The overriding objective is to show strong cash
flow to enable stable development and dividends for shareholders.
Catena AB is listed on the Nasdaq Stockholm exchange.



	CATENA ANNUAL REPORT 2015
	Contents
	Notification of General Meeting
	Catena in brief
	The year in brief
	President's statement
	Three trends – Smarter, Better and Faster
	Operations and strategy
	Business model
	Financial targets
	Customer offering
	Project portfolio
	Acquisition of Tribona
	Sustainability
	The CEO comments on the year's sustainability work
	Catena's sustainability activities
	Sustainable logistics and societal development
	Environmentally efficient properties
	Attractive employer
	The market
	The market for logistics properties
	Property operations
	The property portfoilo
	Stockholm region
	Gothenburg region
	Öresund region
	Property valuation
	List of properties by region
	Important events
	Market outlook and Appropriation of surplus
	Funding
	Interest-bearing liabilities
	The Catena share and owners
	Financial information
	Contents
	Financial statements – Group
	Notes – Group
	Financial statements – Parent Company
	Notes – Parent Company
	Signing of the Annual Report
	Audit Report
	Corporate Governance
	Chairman of the Board: Committed, clear and transparent corporate governance imbues confidence
	Corporate governance report
	Risks and opportunities
	Board of Directors
	Management Team
	Multi-year overview
	Definitions and glossary
	Catena through the year
	Press releases and Index
	Addresses



